# ARTUR YUSUPOV





# BOOST YOUR CHESS 1 THE FUNDAMENTALS

# QUALITY CHESS

# **Boost Your Chess 1** The Fundamentals

By

# Artur Yusupov



Quality Chess www.qualitychess.co.uk First English edition 2010 by Quality Chess UK LLP Translated from the German edition *Tigersprung auf DWZ 1500 II* 

Copyright © 010 Artur Yusupov

# **BOOST YOUR CHESS 1**

All rights reserved. No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic, electrostatic, magnetic tape, photocopying, recording or otherwise, without prior permission of the publisher.

ISBN 978-1-906552-40-4

All sales or enquiries should be directed to Quality Chess UK LLP, 20 Balvie Road, Milngavie, Glasgow G62 7TA, United Kingdom Office phone (+44) 141 227 6771 e-mail: info@qualitychess.co.uk website: www.qualitychess.co.uk

Distributed in US and Canada by SCB Distributors, Gardena, California www.scbdistributors.com Distributed in Rest of the World by Quality Chess UK LLP through Sunrise Handicrafts, Smyczkowa 4/98, 20-844 Lublin, Poland

Cover Photo: Nadja Jussupow

Translated by Ian Adams Edited and typeset by Colin McNab Proofreading by Jacob Aagaard Cover design and generic typeset by Augusto Caruso of Caissa Italia Printed in Estonia by Tallinna Raamatutrükikoja LLC

# CONTENTS

	Key to symbols used	4
	Preface	5
	Introduction	6
1	The windmill	8
2	Pawn weaknesses	16
3	Back rank combinations	26
4	Exploiting weaknesses	34
5	The 7th rank	46
6	Fortresses	56
7	The pawn wedge	66
8	Opening traps	76
9	The use of traps	86
10	Stalemate combinations	96
11	The semi-open file	106
12	Mate with bishop and knight	118
13	Combinations involving files	128
14	Outposts	140
15	Combinations involving diagonals	152
16	Elementary endgames	160
17	Combinations with knights	170
18	The principles behind mobilization	180
19	Perpetual check	190
20	Mate in two moves	200
21	Combinations with the major pieces	208
22	Coordination of the pieces	218
23	Combinations with knights 2	228
24	Zugzwang	238
	Final test	246
Ар	pendices	
	Index of composers	256
	Index of games	257
	Recommended books	265

# Key to symbols used

- $\triangle$  White to move
- Black to move
- ± White is slightly better
- **∓** Black is slightly better
- ± White is better
- ∓ Black is better
- +- White has a decisive advantage
- -+ Black has a decisive advantage
- = equality
- ↑ with the initiative
- $\rightarrow$  with an attack
- $\overline{\overline{\mathbf{z}}}$  with compensation
- $\neq$  with counterplay
- ∞ unclear
- □ better is
- $\Delta$  intending
- □ only move
- zugzwang
- × weak point
- ? a weak move
- ?? a blunder
- ! a good move
- !! an excellent move
- !? a move worth considering
- ?! a move of doubtful value
- # mate

It was a pleasure to have Artur Yusupov working as my second, both personally and professionally. It is therefore an honour for me to write the preface to the new manual Build Up Your Chess with Artur Yusupov.

This new book was created by expanding and improving the original online lessons from the Chess Tigers University. As an honorary member of the Chess Tigers, it has given me great pleasure to see this logical follow-up take concrete form and meet the twin challenges of being both a valuable textbook and a bedside book.

It was in 1994 that I met Artur Yusupov in the semi-finals of the Candidates' cycle in Wijk aan Zee. I managed to come out ahead by 4.5–2.5, but I recognized that Artur harboured great potential, both in his chess knowledge and extensive match experience.

Artur's systematic and professional approach to analysing games was the decisive factor in having him as my second in the World Championship Finals in New York 1995 and Lausanne 1998. His mastery of the methods of the Russian chess school was very helpful in the preparation for the matches, as well as during the matches themselves. It was his idea that I should play the Trompovsky in the last game in Lausanne. I was 3-2 down, but was able to level the match at 3–3 and thus force a play-off.

I am still very grateful for everything that Artur did for me.

Artur's vast experience as a trainer convinced him that there is a considerable need for better tuition for amateurs. Matching the level to the needs of the student is perhaps not too difficult, but the masterstroke is structuring the information in such a way that makes it immediately useful for amateurs. I am naturally enthusiastic about the rich variety of material in this series, which can help beginners become top amateurs.

I wish Artur Yusupov all the best with the publication of the first book in the series Build Up Your Chess with Artur Yusupov. Making this work available in English means that even more people who are keen to learn can enjoy it to the full.

World Champion, Viswanathan Anand



# Introduction

During my many years of work as a chess trainer, I have noticed that there are only a few books which are really suitable for most amateur players. Some good books treat individual aspects of the game (middlegame or endgame, tactics or positional play) without paying any real heed to the reader's playing level. This brought about the idea of working out a teaching programme aimed specifically at a certain playing strength. Such teaching programmes, in a brief form and intended as systematic help for trainers, are common only in Russia, where they are very popular. One very well known and much valued example is a publication by Golenischev, which inspired some aspects of my methodology.

In 2003 I began a 3-year training programme in my chess academy. Three groups were set up according to playing strength: under Elo 1500, under Elo 1800 and under Elo 2100. Each annual stage consisted of 24 teaching modules and 24 tests, plus a final test at the end of the course.

This programme was later taken over, in a different form, by the Chess Tigers University and is still being used there.

The overwhelmingly positive comments of my students encouraged me to rework this programme in the form of a series of books. In doing so, I was able to make use of many evaluations, corrections and suggestions from my students. While I was redrafting, especially the explanations in the solutions, that feedback from my students was very valuable.

This book is the first volume in a series of manuals designed for players who are building the foundations of their chess knowledge. The reader will receive the necessary basic knowledge in

six areas of the game – tactics, positional play, strategy, the calculation of variations, the opening and the endgame.

The reader will benefit from the methodical build-up in this book, even if some of the material is familiar, as it will close any possible gaps in his chess knowledge and thus construct solid foundations for future success. To make the book entertaining and varied, I have mixed up these different areas, but you can always see from the header to which area any particular chapter belongs.

At this point I must emphasize that just working with this book does not guarantee a rise in your rating. It simply gives you a solid basis for a leap forward in chess ability. You should also play in tournaments, analyse your own games, play through well-annotated games of stronger players and read books on chess (I have included some suggestions at the end of this book).

I have also been concerned with another problem area since I moved to Germany: the role of trainers in chess education. In Germany there are unfortunately too few qualified trainers. There is also a widespread opinion that a talented chess player does not need a trainer. I do not share that opinion. I believe that many talented chess players could develop much further, if they had support at the correct time and if they had not left gaps in their learning.

Chess is a complicated sport, which has to be studied for many years. It is hard to imagine any other sport without coaches. (Is there a single athletics club or football club that does not have a trainer?) This manual is intended for the many club players who unfortunately receive no support in attempting to master our complicated sport. In this way it is intended as a substitute for a trainer for those that have none (and a support for trainers), but not an equal replacement for a trainer.

I further believe that many chess lovers, who show great commitment to working with young players in chess clubs, will gain with this series of books (as well as with the programme of the

Chess Tigers University) important methodological support and high quality training material for their chess lessons. The students will certainly profit from the supplementary explanations given by trainers and from lively discussions about the themes in the books.

#### How to work with this book

# First read through the lessons. You absolutely must play through all the examples and all the variations on a chessboard.

First think about every diagram position (for at least 5 minutes) and try to find the solutions on your own. On average, you will need 1 to 2 hours per lesson. However, there is no time limit; some students may need more time for specific lessons.

It is important to have a good understanding of the subject.

The second part of the lesson is a test with 12 positions. The stars near the number of each exercise indicate the level of difficulty and, at the same time, the maximum number of points which you can earn for the correct solution with all necessary variations ( $\star = 1$  point). Try to solve the positions without moving the pieces! If you cannot solve the position straight away, you must try for a second time for approximately 10 minutes. This time you may move the pieces. You must look for new ideas.

#### On absolutely no account may you get help from a computer!

Normally you will also need 1 to 2 hours for each test. Try to solve all the exercises. Consider each position as though it were appearing in one of your own games and look for the best possible continuation. You do not always have to mate or win quickly. It is sometimes enough to suggest a good move. Especially in the lessons on the opening, it is more important for you to reflect on the position, take a decision and then carefully play through the solutions. This will help you better understand the ideas of the opening. Mistakes are part of the learning process!

It is very important to write down all the necessary variations. If you do this you will be able to compare your solution with the one given in the book and you can also see how well you have understood the particular subject. If your score is too low, we recommend that you work through the chapter again. We also recommend that you play through the solutions, including all the variations, on a chessboard.

You will find an explanation of the standard chess symbols used in this book on page 4.

At this point I should like to express my gratitude to a large number of people who have supported my work in various ways. There is firstly my wife Nadja for the design of the German edition book and her help in working through the solutions, my daughter Katja for many corrections to my German, my chess trainer Mark Dvoretsky, from whose training methods I have learned so much, the Chess Tigers and Hans-Walter Schmitt for their constructive and productive cooperation, Mike Rosa for correcting some mistakes, Reinhold from Schwerin for his proofreading, and finally to Semen Oxman and Oleg Aizman, who gave valuable advice concerning the design of the book.

I would also like to thank Augusto Caruso for his elaboration of Nadja's design for the English edition and Ian Adams for translating the book.

GM Artur Yusupov

# CHAPTER

# Contents

- ✓ The windmill
- ✓ Coordination of the pieces
- ✓ Mating attack



# The windmill

The windmill is one of the most beautiful combinations in chess. Kotov provided the definition of a windmill as 'a forcing series of attacks with discovered check.'

The following famous game made this type of combination so well-known.

#### Diagram 1-1

# C.Torre – Em.Lasker

Moscow 1925

The white bishop is pinned and attacked. However, White's surprising reply turns the tables.

#### 1.**£f6**!!

White sacrifices his strongest piece in order to set up a windmill.

#### 1....鬯xh5 2.邕xg7†

Now the white bishop and rook display unbelievable coordination.

#### 

White sets the windmill in motion. The rook first eliminates almost all of the black pieces on the seventh rank. The only way for Black to meet the discovered checks is with king moves.

# 

It is important that the white bishop is not under attack. Otherwise it could not participate in the windmill without being in danger.

#### 5....岱g8 6.邕g7† 岱h8 7.邕g5†

With another discovered check White wins back his queen. White could also have first taken the pawn on a7, but he did not want to unnecessarily open the a-file for the opposing rook.

#### 7...查h7 8.邕xh5 蛰g6

This double attack wins the piece back, but White will have a good three pawns more!

#### 9.2h3 \$xf6 10.2xh6†

1–0

8

The attacking side exploited the power of a rookbishop battery. It is very important to learn how to coordinate these different pieces. They complement each other very well. We have already seen some similar examples of this in Chapters 2 and 7 of *Build Up Your Chess 1*.

The windmill and other similar attacking set-ups are very dangerous and often lead not 'only' to a gain of material, but also directly to mate.

#### Diagram 1-2

Variation from the game V.Smyslov – M.Euwe

Zürich Candidates 1953

**1. @xe5!** A deflecting sacrifice.

A deflecting sacrifice. Another good move is 1.<sup>10</sup>/<sub>2</sub>c5+-.

5.¤b5#

# Diagram 1-3

N.N. – W.Steinitz

London 1869

Here is another example which confirms how strong the rook-bishop battery is.

# 1...蹭h4‼

A spectacular move. The threat is  $2...\Xi xg2^{\dagger}$  and then  $... \Xi f2^{\dagger}$ , as well as the simple  $2...\Xi 2xf3$ .

# 

The threat is 3... 莒f1#. White is left with no satisfactory defence.

# 3.②g6†

Other moves are no better:

a) 3.h3 舀f1† 4.杏h2 禽g1† 5.杏h1 <sup>4</sup>2g3#.

b) 3.g3 罩e2† 4.堂h1 罩xe1† 5.堂g2 罩g1† 6.堂h3 约f2#.

c) 3.∕⊡f3 \\2xf3†-+.

3...hxg6 4.g3 筥e2† 5.空h1 邕xe1† Black has a forced mate.



# Diagram 1-3



Tactics 1



Diagram 1-5



#### Diagram 1-4

#### O.Duras – R.Spielmann

Bad Pistyan 1912

# 1.**\$d**4!

White begins a forcing attack.

#### 1....包xf3† 2.鬯xf3 e5 3.h6! 鬯e7

4.¤e2

4.營xd5! would be simpler: 4...exd4 5.營xd4†+-.

#### 4....莒xg5 5.莒xe5

White sets up his battery. There is a strong alternative in 5.এxe5†! 空g8 6.急f4+-.

#### 5...₩d6

 $\wedge$ 

#### Diagram 1-5

The only chance. Black pins the white rook.

#### 6.g3‼

White prepares an elegant way to unpin. But not the immediate 6. h1?? on account of 6...  $wxh6^{+-+}$ .

#### 6...₩xh6†

6...\Zxg3 7.\Zxe8#

#### 7.凹h3! 凹d6 8.空h1!+-

Black cannot avoid losing a piece.

In the test which follows, you should try to set up a windmill! Calculate only the necessary variations. Always end your variations with an evaluation. It is important to concentrate on the first few moves and also to take into account the various possible replies by your opponent.

# Exercises

11

**▶**Ex. 1-4 **《** 

ġ

Ī

8





Δ

Ï

# Exercises



 $\mathbb{C}^{-1} = \mathbb{C}^{-1} = \mathbb{C}$ 



Ex. 1-1

<u> Kreichik – Laitgeb</u>

Vienna 1951

1.鬯xg5!!+-

(1 point)

# 1...hxg5

If 1...曾xg2†, then 2.曾xg2 \$xg2 3.罩xg6† 垫h7 4.罩xg2#. **2.罩xg6† 空h7 3.罩xe6† 垫g8 4.罩g6† 垫h**7

# Ex. 1-2

L.Schmid – Muth 1950

# 1.₩xf6†‼

(1 point)

1. \$h6! also wins easily.

Don't be impatient! The windmill can keep on working!

(another 1 point)

This is the only winning move.

9....鬯xf7 10.思xa8† 鬯e8 11.思xe8† 查f7 12.思xh8 1-0

Ŭ

#### Ex. 1-3

# A.Beni – Schwarzbach Austria 1969

# 1.₩h3‼

(1 point)

After deflecting the black queen, White can open up the diagonals for both his bishops. 1.<sup>W</sup>h5!!+- does this equally well.

On the other hand 1. #f4? would be wrong.

After a queen sacrifice, you must calculate your variations very carefully! Black plays 1...營xf4 2.罩xg7† 登h8 3.罩xf7† ②e5 (or even 3...鬯e5) and wins.

1...豐xh3 2.邕xg7† 堂h8 3.邕xf7† 堂g8 4.邕g7† 堂h8 5.邕g8#

(another 1 point for this variation)

### Ex. 1-4

<u>G.Antunac – R.Hübner</u>

Dresden 1969

#### 1.邕c7‼

(1 point)

#### 

(another 1 point for the whole variation)

#### Ex. 1-5

#### F.Dos Santos – M.Ginzburg

San Rafael 1992

#### 1....¤e2!

(1 point) 2.營xb6 鼍xg2† 3.堂h1 鼍xc2† 4.堂g1 鼍g2† 5.堂h1 鼍xb2† 6.堂g1 鼍g2† 7.堂h1 鼍xa2† 8.堂g1 axb6 0-1

#### Ex. 1-6

B.Verlinsky – I.Rabinovich

USSR Ch., Leningrad 1925

# 1.≝xc7†!

(1 point)

# 1...莒xc7 2.邕xc7† 杏b8 3.邕c1†

There is the equally good 3.\Zc3\+-.

#### **3...₫**a7

3...罝d6 is followed by 4.盒xd6† 岱a7 5.罝a1† 盒a6 6.罝xa6†! 岱b7 (or 6...岱xa6 7.盒f4†+--) 7.罝b6†! 岱a7 8.盒c5+-.

# Solutions

#### 4.舀a1† 氯a6 5.舀axa6† 查b7 6.舀eb6† 查c8 7.舀a8† 查d7 8.舀xd8† 查xd8 9.舀d6† 1-0

(another 1 point for this variation)

Ex. 1-7

### Afanasjev – Koshelev

USSR 1968

#### 1....營xh5!!

CITE A THTEER

(1 point)

1...公f5? would be bad: 2.奠xf5 罩xf5 3.罩xf5 exf5 4.e6†+-

### 2. ②xh5 罩xg2† 3. 垫h1 罩gxf2†

Of course not 3... 罩gg8† 4. 垫h2 罩xf2†? due to 5. 象xf2 and Black will have to give perpetual check: 5... 罩g2† 6. 垫h1 罩g5†=

4.��g1 莒g2† 5.��h1 莒xc2†

(another 1 point)

# 6.**垫g1 邕g2**†

There is an even faster win: 6...莒g8†! 7.峦f1 象g2† 8.峦g1 象c6† 9.峦f1 象b5† 10.鬯c4 象xc4† 11.莒d3 象xd3#

# 7.空h1 罩xb2† 8.空g1 罩g2†

Here too there is a win after 8... \approx g8<sup>†</sup>!.

9.호h1 필d2† 10.호g1 필xd1† 11.호h2 필d2† 12.호g1

12.堂g3 is met by 12...罩g2† 13.堂h4 约行#. 12...罩g2† 13.堂h1 罩c2†

Or 13....\fif1†!.

14.햪g1 邕xc7

0-1

#### Ex. 1-8

M.Taimanov – N.N. Simultaneous 1964

# 1.¤xg7†!

(1 point)

1.皇xe5 (1 consolation point) is not so precise, as after 1...避xf1†! 2.垫xf1 罩xe5 Black has a rook, bishop and pawn for the queen and can still defend his position.

#### 1...✿h8

1....\$xg7 2.\$xe5++-

2.\$xe5!

# 2...增xc2 3.筥f8†!

But not 3.\Exg6†?? \Exe5-+. 3...\Exf8 4.\Exg6†

1--0

(1 point)

(another 1 point)

Ex. 1-9

Based on the game

**B.Malich** – Litkiewicz

East Germany 1967

#### 1.¤xf7!

(1 point)

1.違g4 (1 consolation point) is not so strong: 1...①xf3† 2.鬯xf3 鬯g5 3.皇xc8 岂xc8±

### 1....營xe2

1... ②xh3† 2.gxh3 鬯g6† is followed by 3. 鬯g4 鬯xg4† 4. hxg4 邕xf7 5. 愈xc8+-.

#### 2.邕xg7† 岱h8 3.邕xe7†!

(1 point)

After 3. 置g8† 查h7 White has to repeat moves by 4. 置g7† 查h8.

3. $\exists xg5^{\dagger}$ ?? would be bad, on account of 3... $\&f6_{-+}$ .

3...增xe5 4.dxe5 罩c2 5.象b3 罩cxf2 6.罩c1 罩xb2 7.罩c6+--

#### Ex. 1-10

I.Boleslavsky – A.Ufimtsev

Omsk 1944

#### 1....邕xg2†!

(1 point)

1...@xa5?! 2. $\exists xa5 @d2$  would not be so good, in view of 3. $\&xg4 @xf1 4.\&xe6\dagger$  fxe6 5. $\&xf1\pm$ .

### 2.②xg2 ②d2! -+

(another 1 point)

Also possible is 2... 0c3!? +; but  $2... \textcircled{2}xg2 \ddagger?$  $3. \textcircled{2}xg2 \textcircled{0}g5 \ddagger$  is refuted by  $4.f3! \pm$ .

#### 3.營d5

3.এxb6 is met by 3... 邕xg2† 4. 堂h1 邕xh2† 5. 堂g1 邕h1#.

3.f3 also leads to a quick loss: 3...遵xe3† 4.空h1 鬯h6-+

4....ĝxd5 5.cxd5 ₩xb2-+

**Ex. 1-11** The end of a study by

#### <u>L.Topko</u>

1966

### 1.**禽b2**!

(1 point)

# 2.邕c7† 堂g8 3.邕g7† 堂h8 4.堂a2+-

(1 point)

Black is in zugzwang and loses after any move he makes.

#### Ex. 1-12

### V.Faibisovich – K.Lerner

USSR Ch. semifinal, Alma Ata 1971

Here it is all about achieving equality. **1.2xf6!** 

(1 point)

1...,營xh5 2.邕xg7† 杏h8 3.邕f7†!

(1 point)

# 1/2-1/2

White delivers perpetual check, naturally avoiding 3.置g5†? 邕xf6-+.



If you scored less than 12 points, we recommend that you read the chapter again and repeat the exercises which you got wrong.

# Contents

✓ Compact pawn structure

CHAPTER

- ✓ Pawn islands
- Exploiting the weaknesses
- Evaluating the position



# Pawn weaknesses

If we advance our pawns and these pawns are able to offer each other mutual support, then what we have are strong and mobile pawns. Without the support of other pawns, a single pawn can become very weak, since the opponent is in a position to attack it effectively with his pieces. The superior pawn structure is an important and long-term strategic advantage.

There are many situations in which a pawn structure is to some extent damaged: *doubled* or *backward* pawns, *isolated* or *hanging* pawns. Frequently it is simply impossible to hang on to the ideal compact structure. The pawn structure of the two sides can be evaluated rapidly by comparing the number of socalled *pawn islands*.

# Diagram 2-1 Y.Averbakh – M.Taimanov USSR Ch., Moscow 1948

Black has four pawn islands to worry about, White, on the other hand, only has two. White's pawn structure is considerably better. He is able to attack each of the opposing pawn weaknesses in turn. This advantage is simplest to exploit in the endgame, because then the opponent can find even less counterplay. Averbakh soon obtains a decisive material advantage.

#### 1.莒b3 纪c8 2.莒b5 邕c3

Passive defence would hold out no prospects at all: 2...單f6 3.公d5 罩d6 4.壺e2 公a7 5.公c7†! 杏d8 6.罩xf5+-

#### 3.¤e5†!

A useful intermediate check, which disrupts his opponent's defence.

# 3...De6

3... 曾d8 is bad, due to 4. 创d5 with the threat of 黛g5†.

#### 4.②xe6 dxe6 5.邕xe6† 魯f7 6.邕h6

Another point of attack is quickly found.

winning endgame, since the b-pawn is somewhat weak.

# 7.\"f6 \"xa3 8.\"sh6+-

The immediate 8. Ξxf5 is also winning. The following moves need no further comment 8....Ξd3† 9. 堂e2 罩d8 10. Ξxf5 心d6 11. Ξf4 b5 12.h4 心c4 13.h5 Ξb8 14. 堂d3 心e5† 15. 堂d4 心d7 16. 堂c3 b4† 17. 堂b2 罩b6 18. 罩g4† 堂f7 19. 罩g7† 堂e6 20. 罩xh7 罩b5 21. Ձg7 b3 22. 횙d4 罩d5 23. 횙e3 罩b5 24. 횙d4 罩d5 25. 횙c3 罩b5 26. 罩xd7 茔xd7 27.g4 堂e6 28.h6 罩b7 29.f4 茔d5 30. 횙g7 茔c4 31.h7 罩e7 32.h8=凹 罩e2† 33. 堂c1 1-0



White wins back the d4-pawn and is better placed, since Black has more pawn islands. The d6-pawn is particularly weak. White has a simple plan: direct his major pieces against the pawn weakness. But in doing so he has to be careful not to allow his opponent any unnecessary counterplay.

# 1.**皇xf6 鬯xf6 2.**包xd4

Of course the exchange of queens would be to White's advantage. But after 2. Advantage with 2... Design of the opponent keeps the queens on the board with 2... Design of the would have to retreat his knight to a less attractive position. The exchange on e5 hardly comes under serious consideration, because after ... dxe5 Black's only weakness would disappear.

# 2....@e5

2... $\triangle$ c5 would be more interesting: 3.b4 (3. $\$ d2!? is also possible) 3... $\triangle$ e6 4. $\triangle$ f5  $\triangle$ f4, but here too White is better after 5. $\$ f3.

If 2...&b7, then 3.&15  $\boxtimesxb2$  4.&1xd6 and the knight has a splendid post on d6. In this variation White has exchanged a static advantage (the weak pawn) for very promising dynamic advantages (active knight placement, attacking chances).

# 3.\$b3 \$d7

The bishop is developed here in order to control the f5-square.

#### 4.¤c1



Diagram 2-3

4.<sup>™</sup>d2 would be somewhat more precise.

#### alegy I

4....呂ac8 5.端d2









# 5....Øg6

Black should try to swap off all the rooks, to make it harder for White to attack the d6-pawn. But White should keep at least one pair of rooks on the board. If 5....臣xc1 6.鼍xc1 鼍c8, then 7.鼍d1!? 幽g6 8.幽e3 心c4 9.逸xc4 bxc4 10.心e2 逸c6 11.心g3! 鼍e8 12.幽b6 逾xe4 13.鼍xd6±.

# 6.¤cd1! Ôe5

Nothing is achieved by 6... If 4 on account of 7. De2±.

### 7.f4

White must swap off this active knight or drive it away.

# 7....乞c4 8.奠xc4 bxc4

8... 至xc4 9.b3 至c7 10. 句f3 至c6 is followed by 11.e5 and White wins the pawn.

# 9.②e2!

A very strong regrouping. White brings his knight to c3, in order to better protect the central e-pawn. The d-file remains open for the major pieces. In addition, 2d5 becomes a threat, the b2-pawn is better protected and the black d6-pawn is definitively fixed on its spot!

# 9...**\$**a4

Only a short-term success for Black. After a few moves the white rook will return to the d-file.

# 10.罩c1 罩fd8 11. 2c3 皇c6 12.罩cd1 h6

12... Eb8!? would, after 13. Ee2!, lead to the same situation as in the game.

# 13.凹e3 Ib8 14.Ie2 Ibc8

Black can no longer find any active play.

# 15.骂d4 鼻b7 16.骂ed2 鬯e7

# Diagram 2-4

Not only is the pawn on d6 weak, the same applies to its colleague on c4. Spassky finds another way to regroup in order to take possession of the weak square on d6.

# 17.營g3! 空f8 18.f5 罩e8

18...邕c6 is met by the typical move 19.e5!+-.

# 19.邕xd6 鬯e5

After winning the pawn, White has no major problems, since the pawn structure of his opponent

is still weak. However, it is worth playing through the game until the very end, in order to see how this advantage is converted into the full point.

19....兔xe4 20.f6 gxf6 would be followed by 21.Ee2 (or 21.營f4 兔g6 22.營xh6† 壺g8 23.營f4 and White is clearly better) 21...Ξcd8 22.Ξxd8 營xd8 23.Ξxe4 Ξxe4 24.ᡚxe4 營d4† 25.ᡚf2 and White is winning. 20.營xe5 Ξxe5 21.Ξ2d4 a5 22.Ξb6 兔a8 23.Ξa6 壺e8 24.壹f2 壹f8 25.壹e3 Ξec5 26.Ξd7 兔c6 27.Ξda7 a4 28.壹d4 兔e8 29.Ξb6 h5 30.g4 h4 31.Ξbb7 Ξ5c6 32.ᡚd5 Ξd8 33.g5 Ξcd6 34.壹xc4 Ξc6† 35.壹d4 Ξc2 36.壹e5 Ξc4 37.g6 f6† 38.ᡚxf6 gxf6† 39.壹xf6 Ξc6† 40.壹g5 1-0

#### Diagram 2-5

Eger – M.Taimanov Luxembourg 1963

#### 1...a4!

This game demonstrates how to obtain a better pawn structure. White would do better to decline the pawn sacrifice.

#### 2.bxa4?!

Better is 2.\arrangleac1 (or 2.\arrangleab1) 2...a3 3.\overline2a1 and although the far-advanced a3-pawn has disrupted White's queenside, it also needs to be defended.

2.21 f1 a3 3.23 xd8 $\ddagger$  20 xd8 4.2 c1 20 f6 5.2 e3 20 d8 (Sokolsky) leads to a better position for Black, who is in control of the only open file.

#### **2...∕**∕∂d7

Black wins back the a4-pawn and obtains the better pawn structure on the queenside.

#### 3.②b3 皇f8!?

3... 2b6 is not so good, due to 4.2c5.

### 4.a5 @xa5 5.@xa5 \xa5 \xa5 6.c4 \\$g7∓ Diagram 2-6

It is very interesting to watch how Black exploits his structural advantage.

#### 7.皇f1 凹a8

First he takes aim at the a2-pawn. 8.愈c3 罩a3 9.凿b2 營a7 10.罩d2 罩a8 11.②e1





Strategy 1



#### Diagram 2-7

White can still hang on to the pawn. Black now looks to the ending, in which he can attack the opposing weaknesses more easily.

#### 11...썝b6!

11...④b6 12.奠xe5 奠xe5 13.鬯xe5 ④xc4 fails to 14.奠xc4 奠xc4 15.罩ad1 with the threat of 罩d8†.

#### 

Now Black attacks the c4-pawn.

#### 13.c5! \arac3

13... 创d7 14. 遑b4 骂xa2 would be simpler.

#### 14.cxb6 cxb6 15.邕b2

White is now hoping for counterplay down the b-file.

#### 15....\araca3

If 15... \$18, then 16. 43.

#### 16.\Larger 16.\Larger 16.\Larger 16.\Larger 16.\Larger 17.\Larger 17.\Larger 17.\Larger 16.\Larger 16.\Larger 17.\Larger 17.\Larger

The loss of the f-pawn weakens the kingside. The only chance would be 17. $\Xi xa2 \ \Xi xa2 \ 18.$^{D}g2 \ \Xi a1$ 19.\$^{f3} \$^{T}g2 (19...\$xh3\$^{t} 20.\$^{D}xh3 \$^{T}g1 21.\$^{D}g2 \$^{T}ga1 22.\$^{T}ga4 23.\$^{T}gb7 \$^{D}g1 \$^{T}g1 \$^{T}g

#### 17...鼍xf2† 18.堂g1 莒fa2 19.鼍xb7 邕8a3 20.g4 皇f6 21.邕1b2 邕g3† 22.皇g2 邕aa3

The dark squares are weak and allow the black pieces to penetrate decisively.

#### 23.堂h2 皇g5 24.纪c2 莒ac3 25.堂g1 皇c1 0-1

It has to be understood that, when evaluating a position, it is not only the pawn structure which is important, but also other elements of the position (e.g. piece activity, the presence of an open file or the open position of the opposing king). Sometimes these factors can even play a greater part and more than compensate for a weakened pawn structure!

# Exercises





# Exercises



日本語 学 清潔子 3



# **Solutions**

#### Ex. 2-1

#### R.Fine – A.Alekhine

Margate 1937

White can simply win the b4-pawn. **1.e4! ∕∆f6 2.<sup>™</sup>xb4±** 

(1 point)

The game continued: 2...還d8 3.買xd8 營xd8 4.包c5 營d6 5.營c3 h6 6.包d3 包d7 7.h4 包g6 8.皇h3 包gf8 9.b4 h5 10.包c5 包f6 11.營c4 營e7 12.包b3! 營d6 13.包a5 營d2 14.包xc6 營e1† 15.皇f1 包xe4 16.營c2 營xe2 17.皇xe2 g6 18.包xe5 包c3 19.皇d3 查g7 20.f4 包d5 21.b5 查f6 22.查f2 包b6 23.查e3 包a4 24.查d4 包e6† 25.查d5 包c7† 26.查c6 包e6 27.b6 包d8† 28.查d7 包e6 29.b7 包ac5† 30.查c8 1-0

#### Ex. 2-2

A.Kotov – N.Kopylov USSR Ch., Moscow 1951

Here too, White can attack the weak d6-pawn directly.

1.②dc3!

(1 point)

#### 1... 包f7 2.骂fd1 皇e7 3. 包b5 骂d8 4. 鬯d2±

Black can no longer protect the d6-pawn. In the game, there followed a sacrifice born of despair.

### 4...🖄d4

If 4...a6, then 5. 创bxd6 创xd6 6. 创xd6 罩xd6 7. 罩xd6 盒xd6 8. 豐xd6 營xd6 9. 罩xd6+-.

5.exd4 exd4 6.包c7 包e5 7.包d5 凹f7 8.凹e1 g5 9.骂b3 包xc4 10.包xe7† 凹xe7 11.包xg5! 包e3

11...鬯xg5 12.敻xh4+-

12.皇xe3 dxe3 13.②e4 d5 14.罩xe3 dxe4 15.罩xe4 罩xd1 16.營xd1 罩e5 17.罩g4† 空h8 18.營d2 罩e6 19.營c3† 1-0 Ex. 2-3

M.Taimanov – A.Suetin

USSR Ch., Kiev 1954

### 1.②xc5

(1 point)

1.b3 would not be so good, because of 1...②d4.

1....皇xc5 2.皇xc5 包xc5 3.鬯xc5 罩xb2 4.包xe5!

(another 1 point)

The point of White's play. After 4.豐xc6? 豐xc6 5.昱xc6 象b7 6.昱c7 於d8! 7.昱c1 昱xa2 Black would already be better.

# 4...₩e6

4...fxe5? 5.鬯xe5†+-

5.營xc6†營xc6 6.包xc6± 盒h3 7.f3 0–0 8.查f2 罩e8 9.包d4 罩xa2 10.罩a1 罩b2 11.罩xa7+-



#### 

(2 points)

The black king first goes to d4, to defend its own passed pawn. After that the king can also carry on to c3 and attack the opposing b3-pawn.

### 2.查g2 垫e7 3.皇g8 垫d6 4.皇f7 垫c5 5.皇xh5 赵xb3 6.堂f3

6.g4 is followed by 6...包d2 7.皇f7 b3 8.皇xb3 包xb3 9.g5 (9.堂f3 堂d4 10.g5 堂d3 11.gxf6 包c5 12.f7 包d7-+) 9...包d4 10.gxf6 堂d6-+.

6...党d4 7.怠f7 党d3!-+ 8.怠xb3 党d2 9.怠c4 b3 10.怠xb3 e2 0-1

#### Ex. 2-5

M.Botvinnik – D.Bronstein

World Ch(3), Moscow 1951

In the game White played: **1.a4**?

# Solutions

And Black was able to hold his position.

1.... 超d8 2. 查付 象f6± 3. 包d4 查g7 4. 包b5 查f8 5. 包c7 d4 6. c4 象e7 7. 包d5 象c5 8. 查e2 罩e8† 9. 查d3 b6 10. g4 查g7 11. 罩h1 h4 12. g5 罩e5 13. 罩g1 查f8 14. f3 查g7 15. f4 罩e8 16. 查d2 罩e6 17. 罩e1 罩xe1 18. 查xe1 查f8 19. 查e2 查e8 20. 查d3 查d7 21. 查e4 查d6 22. 包f6 查e6

#### 1/2-1/2

Instead of that, White could have attacked the d5-pawn at once and won:

1.De3!

(1 point)

#### 1...d4 2.包c2 d3 3.包d4! 鼻xd4 4.骂xd3±

(another 1 point for this variation)

#### Ex. 2-6

#### A.Yusupov – Mankus

Moscow 1977

#### 1.c5!

(1 point)

This weakens the black pawn structure. **1... @e7 2.cxd6 cxd6 3. @b6±** 

Now Black has three pawn islands instead of two and his pawn on d6 is weak.

#### 3...ĝ.e4?

Better is 3... \area ed8 4. \area d4 \area d7 5. \area c1+.

# Ex. 2-7

#### G.Iskov – A.Yusupov Esbjerg 1980

#### 1...d5!

(2 points)

The threat was  $\exists x d3$ , after which the d6pawn would also become weak. For that reason Black must sacrifice the d6-pawn in order to support his stronger pawn on d3.

1...f5 (only 1 point) 2.\mathbb{Z}xd3 fxe4 would not be so good, on account of 3.\mathbb{Z}xd6.

#### 2.exd5?!

2.f3 is countered by 2...d4!? 3. 罩xd3 違f8!干.

2.\arXd3!? would be an improvement: 2...dxe4 3.\arXd6 \arXetaa8\arT

#### 2....e4**∓** 3.b3?

3.¤fe1 would be more stubborn: 3...f5 4.¤xd3 &xb2∓

3...0-0-+ 4.包c4 罩cd8 5.d6 皇c3

Intending ... \$b4.

#### 6.a3?!

The immediate 6.g3 would be more stubborn.

#### Ex. 2-8

#### A.Yusupov – J.Eslon

C'an Picafort 1981

#### 1.a5!

(1 point)

A typical idea. White swaps off his potentially weak pawn and in doing so also weakens the opposing pawn structure.

# 1....增c7 2.axb6 axb6 3.骂ac1±

Black is left with a weakness on b6.

#### Ex. 2-9

#### G.Levenfish – V.Mikenas

USSR Ch., Moscow 1940

#### 1...b5!

(1 point)

#### 2.₩e2 ₩e6∓

Black prepares b4, after which the a2-pawn will be left without the support of the knight.

# 3.黛c1

3.d5? would be bad, due to 3... 幽e5.

#### 3...b4! 4.De4

4.₩xe6 ②xe6 5. ②e4 ĝe7-+

#### 4....Bxa2 5.Bxa2

5.ᡚxd6 ₩xe2-+

5....莒xa2 6.凹f3 皇f8-+

#### Ex. 2-10

#### V.Simagin – P.Keres

Moscow 1963

### 1.\$c4!

(1 point)

The c5-pawn is weak. The white king must attack it!

1....皇c7 2. 2a4! 皇xa5 3. 2xc5

The weak a6-pawn now falls.

3...遑b6 4.包xa6+- 皇e3 5.包b4 皇c1 6.b3 皇f4 7.包c2 皇e5 8.包d4 皇f6 9.b4 皇e7 10.包f3 皇f6 11.堂d3 c5 12.b5 堂d5 13.c4† 堂e6 14.堂e4 堂d6 15.b6 堂c6 16.包e5†

Eyeing the weakness on g6.

16....**垫b**7

#### 17.包d7 巢d4 18.空d5

Finally the weakness on c5 is targeted. **1–0** 

#### Ex. 2-11

# <u>R.K</u>holmov – Goljak

Ashkhabad 1961

#### 1.b3!

(1 point)

This prepares 2a3 with an attack on the weakness on c5.

1....皇e7 2.皇a3 创d7 3.罝ad1! e5 3...0-0 4.d4± 4.①xc5!! ②xc5 5.d4 exd4 5...營c7 6.皇xc5 皇xc5 7.dxc5 f6 8.f4+-(Kholmov) 6.罝xd4 營e6 7.營d2! 營xe1† 7...營f5 8.g4+-

8.營xe1 ②e6 9.營e4 邕c8 10.臭d6+-

#### Ex. 2-12

A.Yusupov – S.Hmadi Tunis 1985

Tunis 1985

# 1.②d4!

(2 points)

In the endgame it is easier to exploit the opposing pawn weaknesses.

1.\existen 1.\existen 1 (1 point) would be weaker, since the f2-pawn still needs to be defended.

Nor would 1.ዿxe4 (also 1 consolation point) be exact, due to 1...dxe4 2.ऄd4 增xe2 3.ऄxe2 (not 3.এxe2? ዿa6) 3...এf7 4.ऄg3 এd2祥.

#### 1....鬯xe2

1...≝h6 2.f3 e5 3.�c2±

2.¤xe2 ¤f6 3.¤fe1

Aiming at the weakness on e6.

3...e5 4.∕2b3!

4.2c2? is bad, because of 4...2c5. 4...a5 5.f3 a4 6.2c1 2d6 7.Exe5+-

# Scoring

Maximum number of points is 17

- 15 points and above **Excellent**
- 12 points and above Good
  - 9 points Pass mark

· manapianan minimum minimum

If you scored less than **9** points, we recommend that you read the chapter again and repeat the exercises which you got wrong.



- ✓ A far-advanced pawn
- ✓ Deflection





# **Back rank combinations**

In this chapter we shall take a look at another typical motif in combinations: the weakness of the back rank.

When files are opened, it is the time for the major pieces. Then you have to be especially careful and protect the back rank. A bolt-hole for your king is often extremely necessary. Back rank combinations are extremely effective and mainly employ the typical ideas of deflection and the double attack.

### Diagram 3-1

#### V.Tukmakov – A.Kochiev

Ashkhabad 1978

#### 1....Äxa2?

Black does not spot the danger. The correct continuation is 1... Wxc4 2. Exc4 Exa2 3. Eb1 Ea5! and White has only a positional advantage.

Now comes a tactical blow which exploits the weakness of the back rank.

#### 2.**遑d**5!

Black cannot take the bishop in view of the weakness of his back rank  $(2... \\ $^{$}xd5 3. \\ $^{$}xd5 \\ $^{$}xd5 \\ $^{$}ad5 \\ $^{$}$ 

Diagram 3-2

B.Sliwa – G.Stoltz

Bucharest 1953

In this position there is firstly a typical combination involving promotion.

#### 1.\mathbf{Wxc6! bxc6 2.b7 \mathbf{Wd8 3.b8=\mathbf{W}}

Black now counters with a deflection.

#### 3....Id1† 4.IIxd1 凹xb8

But here White exploits the weakness of the back rank again and wins the queen.

#### 5.∕2b7!+-

Black has no defence against  $\mathbb{Z}d8^{\dagger}$ . After a few more moves he resigned.





d

с

f

h

g

e

3

2

1

b

а



#### Diagram 3-3

Another typical mating combination. 1...鬯xf2†!! 2.昱xf2 邕b1† 3.邕f1 皇c5† 4.亞h1 邕xf1#



A far-advanced pawn can play a decisive role in back rank combinations.

### 1.**¤c8!**

1. $\Xi$ c7? would not be so good, since it gives Black time to make his back rank secure: 1...g6 2. $\underline{\mathbb{P}}$ d6  $\underline{\mathbb{P}}$ xd6 3.exd6  $\underline{\mathbb{P}}$ g7!

# 1....**¤xc8**

Black has no choice. 1... <sup>1</sup>/<sup>1</sup>/<sup>2</sup>/<sup>2</sup> xd7 allows the typical finish 2.<sup>1</sup>/<sup>1</sup>/<sub>2</sub> xf8 3.<sup>2</sup>/<sub>2</sub> xf8#.

# 2.₩e7!

The key move. The threats are d8=  $\textcircled{B}^{\dagger}$  and B xe6. The queen is taboo on account of mate after 2... B xe7 3.dxc8=  $\textcircled{B}^{\dagger}$ .

#### 1-0

# Diagram 3-5 D.Minic – K.Honfi

Vrnjacka Banja 1966

In order to deflect the black major pieces from the defence of the back rank, White is even prepared to sacrifice his queen!

# 1.@a7!!+-

A typical deflecting sacrifice, which compelled Black to resign on the spot.

As the following variations show, Black no longer has any chance to hold the position:

Tactics 2



- a) 1...₩xa7 2.¤xd8†+-
- b) 1....\arappaxa7 2.\arappaxd8\dot+-
- c) 1... 凹c8 2. 罩xd8† 凹xd8 3. 罩xd8† 罩xd8 4.g3+-
- d) 1... Idc8 2. Wxc7 Ixc7 3. Id8++-

#### Diagram 3-6

#### V.Mikenas – D.Bronstein

USSR Ch., Tallinn 1965

Black's next move hits White like a bolt from the blue.

#### 1....¤xa3‼

White resigned, in view of the following variations: a) 2.  $\exists xa3 \forall e1^{++}$ 

- b) 2. <sup>w</sup>xa3 <sup>w</sup>e1<sup>†</sup> 3.<sup>z</sup>xe1 <sup>z</sup>xe1<sup>#</sup>
- c) 2.bxa3 @xa1† 3.\u00edb 1 \u00edb 1 \u00edb 1 \u00edb 2.bxa3 \u00edb xa1† 3.\u00edb 1 \u00edb 2.bxa3 \u00edb \u0

In the test which follows please try to exploit the weakness of the back rank just as energetically. Deflect the opponent's pieces – the best way being with the help of a double attack. You absolutely must have these important combinations in your tactical arsenal!

# Exercises





W

b с d e f g h

a

Ï

4

3

2

1

ISU,



පී පී

K

# Exercises



2111월 - 1146년 1147년 월 31111



#### Ex. 3-1

#### V.Jansa – Jongsma

Budva 1963

#### 1.¤xa6!

(1 point)

Double attack and deflection. 1...≌xa6 is met by 2.e8†+-. **1-0** 

#### Ex. 3-2

# <u>N.N. – N.N.</u>

#### 1....鬯b2!-+

(1 point)

Once more there are two rooks protecting the back rank, and yet again there is a way to exploit the lack of a bolt-hole. The threat is now 2... \mathbb{Z}xa1.

But Black had to avoid 1...\"Efa8?? which loses to 2.\"xa8\".

# 2.₩d1

2.邕xb2 邕xa1†-+ 2...營xf2† 0-1

#### Ex. 3-3

#### Novichkov – Luzganov 1963

#### 1...≌b7!

(1 point)

Double attack and deflection.

White resigned at once. 2.營e1 is followed by 2...營xe4! 3.營xe4 邕c1†-+.

On the other hand, 1...  $\Xi c1$ ? would have been a mistake, in view of  $2.\Xi c1$  Wb7 3.Wd2+-.





(1 point)

Deflection.

But not 1....鬯f1†? 2.鬯g1!±.

White resigned, since after 2. Wxc1 there follows 2... Wf1<sup>+-+</sup>.

#### Ex. 3-5

#### **N.N. – K.Richter** 1957

#### 1....**¤dxe8!**

(1 point)

1...鬯xe1† (1 consolation point) would not be so strong: 2.鬯xe1 骂fxe8干.

### 2.<sup>₩</sup>xe8 h6!

(another 1 point)

The threat is now simply ... 臣xe8. The queen has no good retreat, e.g 3. 鬯e4 鬯f1†-+ or 3. 鬯e2 鬯xe2 4. 臣xe2 邕f1#.

# 0–1



#### 1.邕f7!

(1 point)

1.豐xc6 would not be so good, due to 1...豐xe7±; nor 1.豐d8?! in view of 1...罝c8.

Black resigned. He either loses a whole rook or is mated.

1....莒xf7 is met by 2.營d8†+-; if 1....莒fc8, then 2.莒f8†+-; and 1...營xe3† loses after 2.空h1 邕g8 3.營xc6+-.

#### Ex. 3-7

P.Keres – P.Troeger

Hamburg 1960

#### 1.¤xd8†!

(1 point)

1.營f??! (1 consolation point) would not be so strong: 1..., 這c8 2.營xc7 邕xc7 3.鼍d8† 邕c8 4.邕xc8† 邕xc8 5.邕d7+- offers White 'only' a winning endgame.

1.骂d7? is answered by 1...鬯b6!±.

# Solutions

#### 1....Ixd8 2.增f7!

(n finn)

(another 1 point) Black resigned, since after 2...曾c8 3.骂xd8 營xd8 4.營xc4 he loses his knight.

#### Ex. 3-8

Streck – Barash 1912

### 1.**\$h6**!

#### 1....**\mathbf{Wxh6**?

1...鬯g8 would be more stubborn: 2.莒f8† 鬯xf8 3.逸xf8 心c1 4.h3 b6 5.逸h6± **2.鬯h4!** 

(another 1 point) 2.營g5! would be just as good, but not 2.營h3?? 營xh3 3.邕f8† because of 3...營c8-+. **1-0** 

#### Ex. 3-9

### B.Malich – J.Kort

Amsterdam 1971

#### 1.₩b2!

(1 point)

(1 point)

Double attack and deflection. After 2.흹xf7†? 岱xf7 3.罩d7† 岱f8 4.罩xb7 c5 White is worse.

1...₩e7

1....鬯xb2 2.邕xe8#

# 2.營xb7!

(another 1 point)

- 2.邕xe8†? 鬯xe8 3.鬯xb7=
- 2...₩xd8
- 2...增xb7 3.Ξxe8# **3.豐xf7**†
- 1–0

#### Ex. 3-10

# Guldin – Bagdatiev

1963

1.≌b4!

(1 point)

There is the equally good 1.  $\underline{\mathbb{W}}$ c1!  $\underline{\mathbb{W}}$ a6 2.  $\underline{\mathbb{Z}}$ c6!+- (2 points for this variation).

#### 1...ጃd8

1...骂xb4 2.骂c8†+-; 1...骂b3 2.鬯xb3+-

#### 2.邕cd5!

#### Ex. 3-11

B.Ivkov – E.Eliskases

Munich Olympiad 1958

### 1.₩d2!

Deflection.

After 1.<sup> $\square$ </sup>d3 Black can reply 1...<sup> $\square$ </sup>a8, as in the game.

### 1...🖗a8

Other moves also lose:

a) 1...鬯f8 2.鬯e3+- and then 邕e8.

b) 1.... 凹b8 2. 違d7+- and 罩e8†.

# 2.₩a5!

(1 point)

(1 point)

Another good move is 2.營e1!+- (also 1 point).

### 2....營Ь8

Or 2...f6 3.豐xa8† 違xa8 4.罝e8† 查f7 5.罝xa8+-. **3.豐xc7!** 1-0

#### Ex. 3-12

Based on the game

#### P.Keres – G.Levenfish

USSR Ch., Leningrad 1947

#### 1.**皇e**6!

(2 points)

1.এxf7? would be bad: 1...鬯xf7 2.罩xd7 鬯xd7 3.鬯a8†鬯d8-+.

Nothing is achieved by 1.營c8†?! 氯d8!, nor by 1.氯xf6?! 營xf6 2.營xf6 gxf6=.

# 1...h6

Other moves are no better:

# Solutions

二 多度 不是 化氯化氯化乙基

a) 1...罩xd3 2.鬯e8# b) 1...拿xe6 2.鬯c8† 罩d8 3.鬯xd8† 拿xd8 4.罩xd8# c) 1...fxe6 2.鬯c8†+-**2.拿xd7+-**



If you scored less than **10** points, we recommend that you read the chapter again and repeat the exercises which you got wrong.

# Contents

CHAPTER

- ✓ Weaknesses
- The emergence of weaknesses
- Occupying weak squares
- ✓ Basic rules
- Advantages of a direct attack on the weaknesses

# **Exploiting weaknesses**

This chapter continues and amplifies what was described on the subject of 'Weak points' (*Build Up Your Chess 1*, Chapter 20).

# By a weakness (or a weak point) we mean a square, or a pawn, which is not protected by a pawn.

Such weaknesses often arise when a pawn is moved forward. However, they are only relevant if you (or your opponent) can exploit them.

Weak squares constitute ideal positions for pieces. You should attempt to occupy such squares with your pieces. They are especially suitable for knights. But other pieces can also make successful use of these squares. You can attack other points in your opponent's position from these outposts.

#### Basic rules

1) **Provoke weak squares** and try to occupy them with your own pieces!

2) **Exploit any weaknesses in the castled position** for an attack on the king!

3) As well as the king or unprotected pieces, pawns can also be objects to be attacked. **Look for a weak point** (weak pawn) in your opponent's position and attack it.

#### Attacking weaknesses

Even though a direct attack does not always mean the gain of a pawn, an attack does however present you with certain advantages.

1) Your opponent has to defend and is often forced to put his pieces in passive positions. Then you may employ other resources in order to crank up the pressure on the weakness. You will often find that *manoeuvring* (alternating attacks on the weakness or attacking from different sides or with different pieces) brings about the desired success.

2) We enjoy greater freedom and we can also seek out other objects to attack. If we manage to **provoke a second weakness** and then alternate attacks on these weaknesses, then the defender is often stretched to breaking point. The following five examples from master praxis will illustrate these ideas.

# Diagram 4-1 M.Euwe – S.Flohr

Amsterdam 1939

White exploits the weakness of the dark squares. **1. \(\mathbf{1.5}\)**.

A surprising regrouping. The white rook arrives via the fifth rank to join the attack.

White's position is so good that even quieter play would have been just as strong, e.g. 1.a3, intending 罩c3, 曾f4 and 罩h3.

# 1...₩xa2

If 1... 2xc5? then 2.dxc5 2c7 3.263 followed by 26 holds and White wins easily, since Black has no pieces which can protect the dark squares.

# 2.筥h5! e5

Other moves are no better:

a) 2...gxh5? loses to 3.\gammag3t.

b) 2....皇g7 is followed by 3.皇xg7 岱xg7 4.罝xh7‡! 岱xh7 5.鬯xf7† 岱h8 6.罝d3+-.

# 3.dxe5 鼻e6 4.凹f4

White is preparing an attack on the h7-pawn. Black is powerless. What is remarkable is the position of the bishop on f6, which is restricting the opposing counterplay and also playing a decisive part in the attack.

# 4....營xb2 5.臭f1 臭e7

Black will be unable to take on f6, since then the black squares would be even weaker. But even after the logical 5...a5 Black could not parry the white attack:  $6.\mathbb{Z}d3!$  leads to a quick finish.

# 6.營h4?!

Here too, 6.\vec{E}d3!+- would have been very strong. 6...\vec{e}c5! 7.\vec{E}h6

The idea of the defence is clear: 7. 亞xh7?? is refuted by 7... 遊xf2† 8. 遊xf2 奠xf2† 9. 並xf2 垫xh7-+.

# 7...a5 8.邕d3!

Now White brings his reserves into the game. The






threat is  $\Xi$ f3 and with the f2-pawn protected,  $\Xi$ xh7 would again be an option.

#### 8....<u></u>象xf2†

The best try.

9.營xf2 營xf2† 10.空xf2 a4

# Diagram 4-2

Black is hoping that his passed pawn on the queenside will give him some counterplay. But even without queens, White can attack the weakened castled position.

#### 11.黛e2!

The threat is 12.g4 and then  $\Xi$ dh3 or  $\Xi$ xh7 with mate to follow.

#### 11....Ba5

11...a3 12.g4 a2 13.\array\_kh7!+-

12.g4 Ξxe5 13.&xe5 &c4 14.Ξdh3 &xe2 15.&f6+-Ξe6 16.e5 &xg4 17.Ξxh7 Ξxf6†

#### 18.exf6

Here the rook will not find it difficult to deal with the black pawns.

1–0

# Diagram 4-3

# A.Yusupov – A.Miles

Bugojno 1986

White already has a wonderful square for his knight on c4. With his next move he creates a new outpost on b6. Later White will open the b-file (after c2-c3) and occupy the b6-square with his rook.

# 1.a5!± \$h6 2.2c4 0-0 3.c3 bxc3

After 3...f5!? 4.cxb4 cxb4 5.2b6!± the b4-pawn becomes weak.

# 4.bxc3 f5 5.宫b1 fxe4 6.愈xe4 宫f4 7.凹e2 愈f8

In the variation 7... 臣xe4 8. 豐xe4 急行 9. 豐e2 象xb1 10. 臣xb1± you can clearly see the difference between a good knight and a bad bishop.

# 8. ව b6 🛙 a7

#### Diagram 4-4

#### 9.②xc8!

The knight was good, but it blocked the b-file. After the exchange White will be better placed to attack the weakness – the a6-pawn.

#### 9....鬯xc8 10.罩b6

# Second Walter

# 10.g3!?

# 10....皇e7 11.g3 邕f8 12.空g2

It would be better to play the prophylactic move 12.  $\mathbb{Z}a1!$  first, and only then  $\mathfrak{D}g2$  and then h4+-.

#### 12...增d7! 13.凹a1!

13.¤xa6 is not clear, because of 13...¤xa6 14.₩xa6 ₩a4之.

# 13...**¤fa**8

#### Diagram 4-5

## 14.h4!

The attack on the a6-pawn ties up the black pieces on the queenside. White now wants to create a second weakness on the kingside. The threat is h5.

# 14....創d8 15.骂bb1?!

15.\deltac6 would be stronger, so as not to release the pressure on the a6-pawn.

# 15...¤b7?

Black should try to do something against the threat of h5. 15...留行! would be better, intending 16.h5 gxh5 17.宫h1 h4圭.

# 16.鼍xb7 鬯xb7

# Diagram 4-6

# 17.h5!

After this move a second weakness appears in the black camp. Now the defence becomes twice as hard. In the middlegame the presence of opposite-coloured bishops can be very effective for the attacking side, since the opponent has nothing which he can set against the attacking bishop.

# 17...g5 18.\g4

The white squares on the kingside are now hopelessly weak.

# 18....曾e7 19.h6!+-

An important move, since the pawn on h6 is very active and dangerous for the opponent.

19.21b1 এxa5 20.鬯e6† would not be so clear after 20... 查f8.

# 19...宮b8 20.臭d3!

A little reminder that the pawn on a6 is also still weak.

# 20...增f7 21.皇xa6 鬯xd5† 22.空g1

The exchange of pawns is not an equal one. White gets a strong passed pawn.

# 22...e4 23.鼻c8! 營e5 24.營e6†

After White has obtained a passed pawn, he has



٩

3

2

1

a b c



d

e f g h

nothing against a transition to the endgame. 24... 空f8

Or 24... 響xe6 25. 象xe6† 查f8 26. 象d5+-.

## 25.鬯xe5 dxe5 26.逸f5 莒b7 27.a6 莒a7 28.逸xe4 g4 29.逸b7!+-

This move ends the struggle to all intents and purposes, since Black will essentially be playing without his rook on a7.

29....皇g5 30.**Ξa5 皇e7 31.**Ξa4 垫f7 32.Ξxg4 皇f8 33.垫g2 皇xh6 34.垫f3 皇f8 35.**Ξh4 h6 36.**垫e4 垫e6 37.c4

The threat is \Zg4-g6 etc.

1-0

#### Diagram 4-7



Although it is White who has the doubled pawns here, he is better placed, because he is controlling the important central square d5. Also his bishop will be more active than the knight.

# 1.¤d5 b6

Nor do other moves bring any relief:

a) 1...莒xd5 2.cxd5 公e7 (2...公d8 3.鬯a4±) 3.d6 鬯xd6 4.鬯xb7±

b) 1....營e7 2.邕fd1 g6 3.g4!圭

2.筥fd1 约a5

Normally the knight is not so badly placed here, but it gets no more support and so remains offside.

#### 3.h3 莒xd5 4.莒xd5

4.cxd5 is not good, on account of 4...鬯d6= (but not 4...心b7? 5.鬯a4!) and the passed pawn is safely blockaded.

#### 4....≝e7

4...罝d8?! 5.罝xe5 ②xc4? would be bad, in view of 6.罝e8† 罝xe8 7.鬯xe8† 空h7 8.鬯e4†+-.

#### 5.<u>\$g</u>4

Threatening \d7.

5**...**≌b7

# Diagram 4-8

# 6.鏿f5!±

White has a large positional advantage. He once more threatens  $\Xi$ d7, as well as Wxe5!.

#### 6...₩b8

6...g6 is met by 7.違xg6 fxg6 8.鬯xg6† 登f8 9.罝d6+-.

# 7.鼍d7 鼍d8 8.鬯xe5! ②xc4

8...鬯xe5? 9.邕xd8†+-

# 9.營xb8 邕xb8

#### Diagram 4-9

## 10.**\$**e4!

White coordinates his pieces and prepares to attack the f7-pawn.

10.\vec{B}xa7?! would not be so good: 10...\vec{D}d6 11.\vec{B}d3 c4 12.\vec{B}d7 (12.\vec{B}f1 \vec{D}b5 13.\vec{B}a6 \vec{B}c8\notin ) 12...cxd3 13.\vec{B}xd6 \vec{B}a8 14.\vec{B}xd3 \vec{B}xa2\vec{L}

# 10....包a3 11.皇d5

If 11.¤xa7? then 11...<sup>©</sup>b5 gives Black counterplay. 11...¤f8

A pleasant result for White. The black rook and king must stand by passively and defend the weak point on f7.

# 12.e4 a5

Or 12...c4 13.≣xa7 <sup>(2)</sup>b5 14.≅b7 <sup>(2)</sup>xc3 15.\$xc4 <sup>(2)</sup>xe4 16.≅xb6+-.

# 13.c4 b5 14.cxb5 🖄 xb5

Only this knight is active, but what can it achieve alone against the whole white army?

15.e5 a4 16.f4 최d4 17.화f2 g5 18.g3 gxf4 19.gxf4 친e6

19.... \$\$g7 is met by 20.e6+-.

# 20.\$e3

After White has consolidated his position, he will once more set his pawns in motion in order to create a passed pawn.

# 21...c4 22.f5 公c5 23.莒c7 凶d3 24.e6 fxe6 25.fxe6 莒e8 26.e7† 空g7 27.鼻c6

A model game by the great Botvinnik! 1–0

Diagram 4-10

M.Feigin – S.Flohr Kemeri 1937

The compact white pawns on the kingside are broken up by an exchange

1...<u>\$</u>e7!

1... 三g8! would also be strong. 2. 盒d2 盒xh4 3.gxh4 凿f5 4. 三b3 三g8 5. 凿h2





Positional play 1

pieces are badly coordinated. The game will last only two more moves! **5... \Ee6** 

The white castled position has been weakened, his

Threatening \[Eeg6.]

# 6.筥f1 幻f2†!

With a forced mate: 7.鬯xf2 (7.罩xf2 鬯b1†-+) 7...鬯h3† 8.鬯h2 鬯xf1†-+

0–1

But sometimes the weak points can be satisfactorily defended.

# Diagram 4-11

# O.Renet – A.Yusupov

Dubai Olympiad 1986

White has an apparently dangerous outpost on d6. But he can only occupy it with his major pieces. Black repositions his knight and protects the d6-square. 1...**2**h8!

Intending …约f7.

# 2.空f1 幻f7 3.罩xd8† 罩xd8 4.罩xd8† 螢xd8

And Black is better because both white bishops are very passive.

In the test which follows, try to find the weak points in the opposing position and then to exploit them.



これには、見いましていました。







CITATINE A



(1 point)

#### Ex. 4-1

## <u> N.Aratovsky – A.Tolush</u>

Leningrad 1948

# 1.營f3

Threatening ⊮f6.

# 1....宮b6 2.b3!?

Not 2.營f6? on account of 2...띨xb2†! 3.堂xb2 營b4† with perpetual check.

However, 2.c5! would also have been strong.

# 2.... 1a3 3. Id3 Wb4 4. Ic1 e4 5. Wf6!

A decisive combination. 5.  $\forall xe4$  is not so strong, due to 5... Dg5.

#### 5....Ibxe6 6.dxe6 exd3 7.If1!

1–0

#### Ex. 4-2

# K.Opocensky – S.Flohr

#### Prague 1928

The white pieces are not well posted. Black exploits the opportunity for a rapid attack via the dark squares.

#### 1...<u>ĝ</u>b4!

# (1 point)

#### 2.¤c4

2.邕c2 loses to 2.... 2e1 †-+; while 2.邕c1 loses to 2.... 题xf4 3. 查xf4 2d2 †.

Finally, 2.罝e3 is followed by 2...罝xf4! 3.峦xf4 盒d6†-+.

(another 1 point for this variation) 2....逸e1† 3.空g2 莒xc4 4.bxc4† 啓xc4 5.逸b8 逸xh4?

Black should have preferred 5...a6 6.f4 화d5 7.f5 gxf5 8.g6 화e6-+.

# 6.f4 a6 7.皇e5?

Better is 7.Åh3! Âf2 8.f5 gxf5 (8...Åd5 9.fxg6⇄) 9.g6 Âd4 10.Åh4 with counterplay. 7...Åd5-+ 8.f5 Åxe5 0-1 Ex. 4-3

# <u>S.Flohr – Sultan Khan</u>

Hastings 1932/3

# 1.②f6!±

(1 point) 1.d5 would not be so good, as after 1...②e5 the pawn on c4 is hanging.

#### 1....g5 2.営he1

Intending d5 followed by \Ze7.

#### 2...d6

2....Ih6 3. ②g4±

## 3.h3 🛛 df8

Better is 3... Ξh6 4. ᡚg4 Ξg6 5.d5 ᡚa5±. 4.f4! gxf4 5.Ξf1 Ξh6 6.Ξxf4 Ξg6 7.Ξd2±

Ex. 4-4

# A.Rubinstein – A.Selezniev

## 1.**¤h6**!

(1 point)

Targeting the weakness on h7; the threat is g6.

1...b4 2.cxb4 cxb4 3.axb4 罩a8 4.罩xh7† 垫b6 5.罩f7 a3 6.罩f1 a2 7.罩a1 垫b5 8.g6 垫xb4 9.h5

1–0

#### Ex. 4-5

W.Schlage – A.Nimzowitsch Berlin 1928

# 1....乞f4!

(1 point)

Black wants to attack the c3-pawn and brings his knight to e2.

2. 2 2 2 2 3. 2 b1 皇c4-+ 4. 查g2 皇d3 5. 2 ca3 2 f4† 6. 查f2 2 d5 7. 查g3 e3 8. 查f3 查e5 9. c4 bxc4 10. b5 查d6 11. b6 查c6 12. b7 查xb7 13. 2 b5 皇xb1 14. 2 d6† 查c7 15. 2 xc4 皇f5 0-1

# Solutions

#### Ex. 4-6

W.von Holzhausen – A.Nimzowitsch

Hanover 1926

#### 1....Bh6! 2.h3 Ig6

(1) 朱金 (4) (4) (4) (4) (4)

(3 points for this strong manoeuvre) Black provokes another weakness on the kingside. The immediate 1...a6!? (preparing ...b5) would be just as good. For the moves 1...b5 and 1...h5 you get 1 consolation point. 3.置e2 a6! 4.置f4 b5∓ 5.b3 置g5 6.g4

Now h3 is a weakness.

6.... 置ge5 7. 堂c3 a5 8. 置ef2 a4 9. bxa4 bxc4! 10. 置f8 置5e7 11. 置xe8 置xe8 12. 心xc4 心xc4 13. 堂xc4 置a8 14. 置f7 置xa4† 15. 堂b3 置b4† 16. 堂c3 置b7! 17. 置f5 置a7 18. 堂c4 置a4† 19. 堂b3 罩d4 20. 罩e5 堂d6 21. 罩e8 罩d3† 22. 堂c4 罩xh3-+

White's remaining pawns are both weaknesses.

23.**Exe4 芭a3 24.Ee2 芭a4**† 25.**空b5 芭xg4** 26.a4 芭b4† 27.**空a5 h5 28.Eh2 空c6 29.Ee2** 29.**Exh5 芭b8-+** 

#### Ex. 4-7

**A.Yusupov – Oushtati** Tunis 1979

Impatient moves do not advance the cause and simply reduce our advantage:

b) 1.@eg5?! hxg5 2.@xg5 g6∞

For either of these you only get 1 consolation point.

It is necessary to strengthen the position quietly and to exploit the weak c6-square. **1.2**)**d4!**±

#### (2 points)

Intending බ්c6. 1....බ්d5 2.g3 g6? This weakens the f6-square. 2...a6 was better.

3.置e2 包g7 4.包d6 凹e7 5.包c6 凹g5 6.置d1 包f5 7.包e4!+- 凹g4 8.罩xd5! 凹xe2 9.凹xe2 exd5 10.包f6† 含g7 11.包xd5 1-0

# Ex. 4-8

# A.Yusupov – G.Vallifuoco

Tunis 1979

White can win the h7-pawn after bringing his knight to f6.

1.@g4

(1 point)

# 1...\$f7 2.2f6

1–0

#### Ex. 4-9

A.Yusupov – H.Schneider

Gelsenkirchen simultaneous 1999

# 1.d5!

(1 point)

White wins a pawn almost by force.

1...cxd5 2.包xd5 莒xc1 3.莒xc1 垫h8

3...罝e8 4.豐f4 包e5 5.包xb6 包xf3† 6.豐xf3 豐xb6 7.豐xf5±

4.②xb6 ②xb6 5.皇xb7±

#### Ex. 4-10

G.Vallifuoco – A.Yusupov

Tunis 1979

#### 1....鬯b4!

(2 points)

This is the way to activate the queen and attack the h4-pawn.

Of course, 1...,f6? 2.exf6 gxf6 would be very bad after 3. 204.

2.d4

Now the c4-square is weak.

# 2....�b6!∓

Intending ...纪c4. 3.a5 ②c4 4.邕g3 皇g6 4...②b2!? 5.營e1 營xe1†6.萬xe1 ②d3-+ 5.②f4 ②b2! The d4-pawn falls. 6.營e1 營xd4 7.②xg6 fxg6 8.奧h3 萬8c6 9.營e3 營xe3 10.萬xe3 d4-+ 11.鼍b3 d3

12.莒aa3 d2 13.莒b8† 空h7

0-1

## Ex. 4-11

A.Yusupov – Kuzovkin

Moscow 1980

#### 1.d6!

(1 point)

Threatening ₩xg6†.

1.<sup>1</sup>/<sup>1</sup>/<sub>2</sub>xe5 is not so good, due to 1...gxh3*≥*. While after 1.hxg4? <sup>1</sup>/<sub>2</sub>xg4 White loses the exchange.

1....莒g5 2.營xf7†! 營xf7 3.皇xf7† 垫xf7 4.d7 皇xd7 5.昱xd7† 空e6 6.莒a7±

(another 1 point for this variation) 6...gxh3 7.g3 c4 8.堂h2 皇c5 9.堂xh3 莒bg8? Better is 9...三f8 10.堂g2 a5 11.公d5±.

10.置xa6 h5 11.划d5 h4 12.萤xh4 罩5g7 13.堂h3+- 罩h8† 14.堂g2 罩gh7 15.划xb6 罩h2† 16.堂f3 罩f8† 17.堂e2 盒xf2 18.划d5† 堂d7 19.划f6† 罩xf6 20.罩xf6 盒xg3† 21.堂f3 盒f4 22.罩b6

1–0

#### Ex. 4-12

S.Flohr – J.Capablanca

Nottingham 1936

Black has an isolated pawn on d5 and his king position is slightly weakened. The move in the game brings White a clear advantage. 1.2515!

(2 points)

After 1.b4 axb3 2.2xb3 Black simply plays 2...\$c4 and White has achieved nothing.

Only 1 consolation point for 1. 創行, since Black does not have to take and replies 1... 凹b7.

1....**¤g**6

1....岂xf5 is followed by 2.皇xf5 鬯xf5 3.鬯xc7+-.

If 1....g6, then 2.<sup>1</sup>/<sub>2</sub>xh6† <sup>4</sup>/<sub>2</sub>h7 3.<sup>1</sup>/<sub>2</sub>g4+-.

2.@d6!

2.₩e5‼±

2....Ēxg3 3. 2xc8 \Box 2xg2 \frac{4}{4}.\Dot 2xg2 \Box 2xc8 5.\Dot 2a2! \Box 2xd5+-\Box 2g6 \frac{7}{2}.\Dot h1 \Dot d3 8.\Box 22 \Box 2d6 9.\Dot f3 \Box 6f6 10.\Dot e4 \Box 2d6 11.\Dot xd3 \Dot xd3 12.f3 \Dot xc2 13.\Box 2xd6 b5 14.\Dot g2 \Dot b3 15.\Box 2b6 \Dot c4 16.\Dot g3 \Dot f8 17.\Dot f4 \Dot e7 18.\Dot e5 \Dot e2 19.f4 \Dot c4 20.\Box 2f6 \Dot f8 21.f5 f6 \frac{2}{2}.\Dot f4 h5 23.e4 \Dot e2 24.e5 fxe5 \frac{1}{2}5.\Dot xe5 \Dot e4 26.\Dot f4 h4 27.\Dot g5 1-0

# Scoring



If you scored less than 9 points, we recommend that you read the chapter again and repeat the exercises which you got wrong.

# Contents

- ✓ Exploiting the 7th rank
- ✓ The advantages of doubling rooks on the 7th rank

CHAPTER

- ✓ Typical tactics
- Operations on the 7th and 8th ranks



# The 7th rank

In *Build Up Your Chess 1*, Chapter 14 ('Open files') we already learned just how important the 7th (or 2nd) rank is.

From the second example in that chapter (the game Nimzowitsch – Capablanca) we gained a lot of important ideas about how to exploit the invasion of the 2nd rank.

Nimzowitsch himself, in his book *My System*, gave a wonderful description of the subject of the '7th rank' and especially the situation when one side controls the 7th rank with two rooks. Here we shall look at another two examples from praxis, which demonstrate the advantages of doubling rooks and some typical procedures linked to play on the 7th rank.



## 1.¤c1!

White is threatening a two rook mate. Black cannot prevent him from doubling rooks on the 7th rank.

## 1....\arrowddiadau 1...\arrowddiadau 1...\arrowddia

1....邕c5 is answered by 2.邕d1!.

#### **2.¤cc**7

This is better than first playing 2.\[2015]c8\] followed by 2...\[2015]e8 3.[[2015]c7\], because Black can then defend his pawns with 3...g5.

#### 2...g5

It is interesting to see how great the advantage of doubling rooks on the 7th rank is. Black cannot defend his pawns satisfactorily because White combines attacking them from behind with threats of mate.

Nothing is achieved by 2... 增移 (intending ... 岜e7) on account of 3. 邕f7† 增e8 4. 邕xf6 邕e6 5. 邕ff7 and Black can no longer exchange the rooks by 5... 邕e7, since it is clear that the pawn ending would be lost.

#### 3.邕g7† 岱f8

3...堂h8 4.置gf7+— is a typical twofold threat: mate and an attack on the f6-pawn.

# 4.**呂af**7†

The typical move 4.\mathbb{E}gb7 is not so clear after 4...\mathbb{E}e7.

# 4.... 空e8 5. 骂xf6+-

White has netted a pawn and remains on the attack.

# 5....莒e1† 6.峦h2 b5 7.莒b6

Threatening \B8#.

# 

# 9.邕f6†!

A typical intermediate check, which worsens the position of the black king. After 9... \$\$\mathcal{D}\$e8 10.\$\mathcal{E}\$g6! the g-pawn is also lost.

#### 1–0



White finds a way to simplify the position. 1.**Ed4!** 

Intending \Xb4.

# 1....¤e2

Nor does 1...a4 2.Exb4 a3† 3.Exa3 🖄d1† 4.&xd1= promise Black any advantage.

2.鼍xb4 鼍c6! 3.鼍xa5! 包d1† 4.堂c1 邕cxc2† 5.堂xd1=

A typical situation. Black can give perpetual check or win a pawn. But that is not enough to win the game, since White has a big enough cushion here with his two extra pawns.

# Diagram 5-3

# 5....筥ed2† 6.空e1 罩xh2

A typical gain of tempo and material, threatening mate on h1 and c1. The only way to save the game is for the king to re-establish contact with one of the rooks in a single move.

# 7.��d1 邕cg2

Mate is threatened again.

# 8.¤e4

Now 8... $\exists xg3$  is met by 9. $\exists e2=$ . Black can still try 8... $\exists b2$ , but after 9. $\oint c1=$  he cannot achieve more than a draw.

1/2-1/2







The position of a major piece on the 7th rank brings a large number of tactical advantages. You just have to be able to exploit them! It is very important – according to the Nimzowitsch system – to concentrate on one object of attack. Try to support such attacks with all your available forces.

# Diagram 5-4

#### M.Botvinnik – M.Euwe

World Ch., Moscow 1948

#### 1.₩g3!

White brings his major pieces onto the 7th rank.

#### 1...fxe5 2.增g7 罩f8 3.罩c7 增xc7

Black can only fight off the concentrated attack by sacrificing material.

3...增d6 is followed by 4.罩xb7 d3 5.罝a7 (Δ罝a8†) 5...鬯d8 6.豐xh7+-.

#### 4. "xc7 皇d5 5. "xe5 d3 6. "e3 皇c4 7.b3

White's advantage in material decides the game.

7...邕f7 8.f3 邕d7 9.鬯d2 e5 10.bxc4 bxc4 11.堂f2+-堂f7

12.호e3 호e6 13.쌭b4 볼c7 14.호d2 볼c6 15.a4 1-0

Diagram 5-5

#### A.Nimzowitsch – A.Duhm

Hanover 1926

#### 1.\angle d7

Sounding the attack.

#### 1...,宮b8 2.営hd1 空g8 3.臭e7!

White wants to play ∅g5 without blocking the way for his bishop.

#### 3.... 🛛 f5 4. 🖓 g5

The knight supports the attack on f7.

# 4....莒e8 5.皇f6 皇xf6 6.exf6 纪a5 7.莒d8

White can choose between several ways to win the game. He plays for mate. Of course 7.2xf7+- would also be possible.

# 7....啓f8 8.邕1d7 包h6 9.包ce4!

White brings his reserves into play.

#### 9...Ðc6

48

Diagram 5-5 8 7 6 5 4 3 2 1 f d а b с e g h



Diagram 5-4

## The 7th rank

# C FERENENES CO



**10.罩xf7†!** Preparing a pretty mate. 10.罩xe8† 堂xe8 11.罩c7 is also good.

And then mate in two mov 1–0

An attack on the 7th rank can often be combined with operations on the 8th rank:

Diagram 5-7

Variation from the game

A.Alekhine – O.Bernstein

Russian Ch., Vilnius 1912

White can mate Black in only four moves! 1.罩xg7†! ②xg7 2.營f7† 登h8 3.營f8† 罩xf8 4.罩xf8#

Active major pieces on the 7th rank can very often be used for effective combinations.



# 1.**¤df**4

The object of the attack is the g7-pawn! 1...e5 2.Ēf7 d5 3.Ēxg7†!





















Δ

# Ex. 5-1

#### <u>W.Steinitz – N.N.</u>

#### 1.營d5†!!

医门腔学 人名加尔 医小白的

(1 point)

1....**&h**8

1...IIXd5 is met by 2.IIXg7† 查h8 3.IIXh7† 查g8 4.IIdg7#.

2.筥d8†!

(another 1 point)

White could still throw away victory by 2.螢xg5? 螢g1† 3.壺g3 營f2† 4.壺h2= (4.壺g4?? even loses the game to 4...營xg2† 5.壹f5 鼍f8† 6.鼍f7 鼍xf7† 7.鼍xf7 營d5† 8.壺g4 營xf7).

2....莒xd8 3.營xd8† 盒xd8 4.莒e8† 營f8 5.莒xf8#

#### Ex. 5-2

B.Katalymov – E.Mnatsakanian USSR 1959

#### 1.営d7!

(1 point)

1.盒h6? 罩xh6 2.營f8†?? would be wrong, because of 2....盒g8, but with 2.罩d7!± you could always earn 1 consolation point.

1...ዿxd7 2.ዿh6!

Ex. 5-3

A.Yusupov – L.Spassov

European Team Ch., Skara 1980

1.\Zxg7†!

(1 point)

But not 1.營xa4? 營d6!=. 1...營xg7 2.營xb8†±

#### Ex. 5-4

V.Korchnoi – V.Chekhover

Leningrad 1951

#### 1.邕d8†!

(1 point)

1.堂xb2? would be bad: 1...骂g2†! 2.鬯c2 (2.堂b3? 鬯b5† 3.堂a3 鬯a5† 4.堂b3 鬯xa2† 5.堂b4 岂b2#) 2...骂xc2† 3.堂xc2 鬯a4†∓

There is only equality after 1. Zxc7† 營xc7 2. 營xc7† 垫xc7 3. 堂xb2 罩g2† 4. 堂b3 罩xb2 5. Zd6=.

1.... **垫b**7

2.\arrow\_xc7t!

#### 2....鬯xc7 3.邕d7

1-0

#### Ex. 5-5

N.Karaklajic – M.Boskovic

Belgrade 1966

White can deliver mate in five moves. 1.茑f7† 岱g8 2.②e7† 岱h8 3.茑f8†

(1 point)

3... 查g7 4.邕g8†! 查f6 5. ④d5#

(another 1 point)

(another 1 point)

Ex. 5-6

D.Bronstein – S.Gligoric

Moscow 1967

Here too, White has a forced mate. 1.¤xg7†!+-

(1 point)

1....皇xg7 2.罩c8† 杏f7 3.凹h5† 杏e7 4.凹e8† 杏d6 5.罩c6†

# **Solutions**

#### Ex. 5-7

#### Flüss – A.Nimzowitsch

Correspondence game 1913

#### 1....筥b7!

(2 points)

It is important to bring the final reserves into the attack. The rook comes onto the 2nd rank with decisive effect.

1... e4?! would be bad, because of 2.\vec{E}c1±.

If 1...f4 (1 consolation point), then once again 2.\mathbb{E}c1=.

#### 2.邕c1

Other moves also lose:

a) 2.莒h2 莒b2† 3.堂g1 莒xg3†! 4.④xg3 鬯e3† 5.堂h1 黛xf3†-+

#### 2....宮b2† 3.空g1 罩xg3†!

White resigned, in view of 4.包xg3 鬯e3† 5.查们 鬯f2#.

#### Ex. 5-8

#### L.Ljubojevic – A.Yusupov

Linares 1991

#### 1....Äxf2!

A typical idea.

#### 2.罩xa2 罩xa2 3.罩xf7† 垫g8 4.罩d7

4.筥f6 d3 5.筥d6 d2 6.堂f1 邕xa6 7.邕xd2 堂f7=

#### 

#### Ex. 5-9

# M.Euwe – A.Speijer

Amsterdam 1924

#### 1.¤cc7!

(2 points) 1.豐xf3?! would be worse: 1...豐xa3 2.邕cc7 consolution point for the better 2.鼍cc7)

(1 consolation point for the better  $2.\Xi ec7\pm$ ) 2... $\Im xe7=$  Also inferior is 1.\Bara7\?! (1 consolation point), because of 1...\Bara3 2.\Bara3 & xd1 3.\Bara4 xd1 g6\Bara.

1.罝d7† (1 point) also wins, but in a much more complicated way: 1...鬯xa3 2.罝xd8† ��e7 3.鬯c2! 罝xd8 4.鬯c7† 罝d7 5.鬯e5† ��d8 6.鬯b8† ��e7 7.罝e1†+- (1 bonus point for this variation).

Doubling the rooks on the 7th rank is the key to success.

# 1...₩xa3

1...এxd1 loses on the spot to 2.罩xf7† 空g8 3.罩xg7#.

1.... 空g8 is simply met by 2. \L xf7+-.

#### 2.鼍xf7† 垫e8

If 2...堂g8, then 3.罩xg7† 查f8 4.罩cf7† 查e8 5.罾e1† 包e4 6.包xe4 罩d1 7.包d6† 查d8 8.罩d7#.

#### 3.凹e1†

(1 bonus point for this variation)

#### Ex. 5-10

#### L.Szabo – A.Dückstein

Wageningen 1957

1.筥h7†!

(1 point)

(1 point)

(1 point)

1.... 查g8 2. 邕cg7† 查f8 3. 邕xa7

(another 1 point)

# 3...-岱g8 4.邕hg7† 岱h8

#### Ex. 5-11

#### P.Morphy – C.Maurian

New Orleans 1866

#### 1.②f8!

Threatening 🖄 g6#.

1...**¤xf8** 

리고 해도 가지도 한 옷을

Or 1...¤e1† 2.±f2 ¤e2† 3.±f3+-. 2.¤h7† ±g8 3.¤cg7#

## Ex. 5-12

# W.Hartston – A.Whiteley

England 1974

1.營g8†!

(1 point)

1.Exe7† does not win, on account of 1... Wxe7.

1....筥f8 2.鬯g6†!

(another 1 point)

The key move! 2....<sup>™</sup>xg6 3.¤exe7† Mate follows.



Maximum number of points is 22				
• 19 points and above-	>Excellent			
15 points and above	→ Good			
11 points	>Pass mark			
And the second s	i mining i ny ana			

If you scored less than **11** points, we recommend that you read the chapter again and repeat the exercises which you got wrong.

# Contents

CHAPTER

Two knightsOther fortresses



# Fortresses

In *Build Up Your Chess 1*, Chapter 22 ('The wrong bishop') we learned about two important elementary fortresses. In this chapter we shall extend our knowledge and consider other situations in which the weaker side can put up a successful defence by constructing an impregnable fortress.

#### Two knights

**Two knights cannot win against a lone king.** The defence is very simple. The only time danger threatens is in a corner, but even if the opponent forces you into one, he will always be short of one tempo.

# Diagram 6-1 Fortress I

1.2c3† \$a1 2.2b4 stalemate

If the defender still has a pawn, there is the danger that the idea of a stalemate will no longer work.

# Diagram 6-2 1.②hf4 h3 2.②e2 h2 3.②c3† \$\Delta a1 4.②b4 h1=\U007 5.②c2#

For that reason, in the ending of two knights against king and pawn you have to try to get rid of the pawn. The stronger side, on the other hand, should be aiming to blockade the said pawn as soon as possible.

#### Fortresses

#### Other basic fortresses

You have to commit these basic fortresses to memory.

# Diagram 6-3

Fortress II

The pawn is too far advanced. But if the white king defends it, Black will be stalemated. 1. **空b6** stalemate



Diagram 6-5

**Fortress IV** 

The black king simply has to remain in the corner.

2.包c7† 查b8 3.查d6 查c8 4.包b5 查b8=

1.堂c6 堂a8



Endgame 1



2 1

a b c d e f g h

Fortress VII =

# Diagram 6-6

#### Fortress V

# Diagram 6-7

Fortress VI

Even with an additional pair of pawns on a5/a6 the position is still drawn!

1.✿d7

1.垫c5 垫c8 2.氯xb7† 垫xb7=

Or 2.皇c6 空b8!=.

# Diagram 6-8 Fortress VII

The rook goes back and forward between e6 and h6; the king is best placed on g7 and it does not move to h7 until the white queen gives check on the long diagonal. To hold the draw, all you have to do is prevent the move h5-h6.

1.營f4 邕h6 2.營d4† 查h7 3.營d7 查g7 4.營e7 邕e6=

# Diagram 6-9

Fortress VIII

The white king has to block in the opposing king. It must go to a square of the same colour as the black knight.

# 1.叠f2!

1.호f1?? <sup>2</sup> 월b5 2.호f2 <sup>4</sup> 입c3 3.호f1 <sup>4</sup> 원e4-+ and White is in zugzwang.

# 1...ව්c6 2. ඒf1 ව්e5 3. ඒf2 ව්g4† 4. ඒf1 ව්e3† 5. ඒf2=

Here it is Black who is in zugzwang.

These elementary fortresses must be learned by heart and thoroughly understood! If you do that, you can save some games or avoid losing points unnecessarily in the endgame.

In the exercises which follow, please try to reach one of the fortresses which have been presented, or else try to disrupt the opponent's attempts to construct a fortress!











# Solutions

Ex. 6-1

The end of a study by

# A.Guljajev

1952

# 1.**倉h2!!**

(1 point) 1.堂e2? ②xg1† 2.堂f2 would be wrong, because of 2...②e2-+.

# 

Of course not 2.堂e1? 如g4 3.堂f1 堂e6 4.堂g1 堂f5 5.堂f1 堂f4 6.堂g1 堂g3! 7.堂h1 创f2† 8.堂g1 h2† 9.堂f1 h1=營†-+.

## 2....🖄 g4

Fortress II.

(another 1 point for this variation)

#### Ex. 6-2

The end of a study by

S.Shaigarovsky 1993

# 1.c7!!

# (1 point)

The black king is decoyed to the c7-square in order to obstruct his knight.

The immediate 1.b3? loses after 1...a3 2.b4 ②c7! 3. 查b3 ②b5.

1....\$xc7

1...②xc7 2.营b4=

2.b3! a3 3.b4 a2

Or 3...心xb4 4.营b3 a2 5.营b2=.

4.�ab2=

Fortress II.

(another 1 point for this variation)

# Ex. 6-3

# 1....②c7†

1...ඕxg5?? loses after 2.b6. 2.ඕc6 ඕxb5 3.ඕxb5 ඕg8= Fortress III. Ex. 6-4

#### E.Lobron – P.Blatny

Yerevan Olympiad 1996

## 1...\$xb6!=

(2 points)

The simplest solution. White sets up Fort-ress IV.

1... 2c6 (1 point) would not be so precise, although Black can still draw after 2.b7 2g3.

On the other hand, 1...axb6?? loses to 2.25b5! (but not  $2.a7??b5^{+}=$ ).

# Ex. 6-5

#### **O.Kaila** 1978

# 1.✿xc1!

(1 point)

1.垫xd1? would be wrong: 1...皇f4 2.堂e2 皇xh2 3.堂f3 堂f5-+

1....De3

1...친f2 is followed by 2.호d2 호f5 3.호e2 친e4 4.호f1 호f4 5.호g1= Fortress IV.

(1 point for this variation)

2.营d2 幻f1† 3.营e1 幻xh2 4.营f2 幻g4†

Or 4...包f3 5.堂xf3= (but of course not 5.堂g3? 包g5-+).

# 5.핲g3 h2 6.핲g2=

Fortress II.

(another 1 point for this variation)

# Ex. 6-6

The end of a study by

L.Kubbel 1934

# 1.邕b4!

(1 point) But not 1.查g2? 骂f4 2.查h3 心c2 3.骂h5 必e3 4.骂xh4 because of 4...骂f3#.

(1 point)

(1 bonus point for this variation)

## 2...h3

Fortress IV.

(another 1 point)

## Ex. 6-7

# L.Polugaevsky – A.Zakharov

USSR Ch., Leningrad 1963

#### 1....ĝxb2?

The correct move would have been 1...  $\mathbb{E}a7!$ -+.

(1 point)

Black absolutely must hang on to the rook. Now White can reach Fortress V.

#### 2.萤xc7 站f7 3.萤d6 站f6 4.萤d5 萤g5 5.萤c4 ½-½

White continues with 2d3-e2-f1. (another 1 point for this variation)

# Ex. 6-8

The end of a study by

L.Falk

1990

# 1.화<sub>3!</sub>

(1 point)

But not 1.堂f1? 包xg1 2.堂f2 垫h2-+.

#### 1.... 2xg1†

1....<sup>‡</sup>xg1 2.<sup>‡</sup>g4=

2.\$2g4 h3

2.... 创f3 3. 堂xf3 垫h2 4. 垫f2=

3.��g3 h2 4.��f2 幻f3 5.��f1=

Fortress VIII.

(another 1 point)







Three knights normally win against one. For that reason, White must try to exchange a pair

of knights and head towards Fortress I. 1.②f6!

# 1....包eg7

Or 1... 쇤e(h)xf6 stalemate. 2. 친xh5 친xh5=

# Ex. 6-10

Y.Averbakh – I.Bondarevsky

USSR Ch., Moscow 1948

# 1.¤h3!=

(1 point)

(2 points)

Fortress VII.

1...豐e4† 2.堂h2 堂f6 3.罩e3 閏d5 4.罩g3 h5 5.罩e3 堂g5 6.罩g3† 堂f4 7.罩e3 h4 8.罩h3 鬯b7 9.罩e3 堂g4 10.罩h3 鬯b1 11.堂g2! 鬯h7 12.堂h2! 鬯c7† 13.堂g2 鬯c2 14.罩e3 ½-½

#### Ex. 6-11

.Timman – J.Nunn

Wijk aan Zee 1982

#### 1...a3!

(2 points)

The white king is wrongly placed on  $a^2 - it$  should be on b2! For that reason, the fortress does not work here.

White resigned, on account of the following variations:

#### Ex. 6-12

Variation from a study by

#### **O.Kaila** 1978

Black can win here too. 1...✿c4!

(1 point)

But not 1...호d4? 2.호d2 and Black is in zugzwang.

# **Solutions**

# 2. 杏d2 杏d4 3. 杏e1 杏e3 4. 杏f1 乞e2!

CHARTER ()

Otherwise the white king gets into the corner and White constructs Fortress IV. 5. 查自 ②g3!-+

(another 1 point for this variation)



If you scored less than **12** points, we recommend that you read the chapter again and repeat the exercises which you got wrong.

# CHAPTER

# Contents

- ✓ Pawn on the 6th rank
- ✓ Pawn wedge on f6
- ✓ Pawn wedge on g6
- ✓ Pawn wedge on h6



# The pawn wedge

A pawn wedge is the name we give to a pawn which has advanced as far as the 6th rank.

We are particularly interested in achieving a pawn wedge in the neighbourhood of the opposing king, generally on f6, g6 or h6 (or, as Black, on f3, g3 or h3). Such a pawn restricts the mobility of the king, disrupts the defence and 'constitutes a favourable motif for mating attacks' (Kotov). It is often said that, when you are attacking, a pawn wedge is as strong as a minor piece, sometimes even stronger. We have already looked at some set-ups with a pawn wedge. We know important examples such as Damiano's and Lolli's mates from *Build Up Your Chess 1*, Chapter 2. In this lesson we shall revise the basic ideas and become familiar with new motifs.

#### Pawn wedge on f6

White is attacking the g7-square. The g- and h-files are especially valuable, as is the back rank.

# Diagram 7-1

A.Yusupov – E.Sveshnikov

USSR Ch. 1st League, Ashkhabad 1978

White sacrifices the e-pawn, because in return he will obtain a pawn wedge.

# 1. \$ g5 \$ xe4 2. \$ xe4 \$ xe4 3.f6 \$ d8 4. \$ d3!

White wants to swap off the light-squared bishops, which would make it easier for him to bring his rook into the attack.

#### 4....**皇c6 5.**鬯h4

Black has avoided the exchange, but his problems have not become any less.

5....增d7 6.吕ae1!

#### Diagram 7-2

The threat is \[263-h3.]

Intending <sup>₩</sup>h6 followed by <sup>Ξ</sup>f3.

#### 7...h5?

Black wanted to prepare ... **<sup>10</sup>**g4, but this just further weakens the castled position. The only chance would

have been the queen sacrifice after 7...d5 8.營h6 (If 8.違f5?!, then 8...gxf5 9.鼍f3 f4! 10.鼍h3 凿f5!∓) 8...鼍g8 9.鼍f3 dxe4 10.鼍h3 螢xh3! 11.螢xh3±. 8.違f5!+- 營d8 9.違d2 With the threat of 螢g5. 9...鼍g8 is met by 10.違g4!+-. 10.螢g5 垡g8 11.違xg6! 1-0

Diagram 7-3

# K.Havasi – A.Sacconi

Folkestone Olympiad 1933

#### 1.**£f6**!

A typical sacrifice which decides the game.

#### 1...gxf6

1... 莒g8 would be no better, on account of 2. 鬯xg7†! Ξxg7 3. Ξd8† Ξxd8 4. Ξxd8#.

#### 2.exf6 \Bg8 3.\Bd8!

The decisive deflection.

3...邕cxd8 4.邕xd8 邕xd8 5.營g7#

# Diagram 7-4

#### A.Martin Gonzalez – J.Garcia Padron Montilla 1977

We have already seen the idea of the sacrifice on h5 in the notes to the first example.

# 1. 皇xh5! gxh5 2. 凹f3!

In order to put the queen in front of the rook.

On the other hand, 2.罩xh5 would not be so good, due to 2...\_\_\_xxe4† 3.垫g1 彙g7! 4.fxg7 垫xg7=.

2...增d7

After 2...違g7 there follows 3.鬯xh5 盒xf6 4.gxf6 鬯xf6 5.骂g1† 查f8 6.盒h6† 查e7 7.盒g5+–.

# 

1–0

# Pawn wedge on g6

White is attacking the squares f7 and h7. The h-file and the back rank are important.



#### Tactics 4





#### Diagram 7-5

## <u> A.Alekhine – Hulscher</u>

Amsterdam simultaneous 1933

White makes use of the open h-file. The g-pawn plays an important part in this.

#### 1.@e5!!

If 1.g6? is played immediately, then 1...豐xg6 2.豐c4† d5 is good for Black, as 3.罝h8†?! 查f7 4.包e5† is met by 4...查f6 5.包xg6 罝xh8! 6.豐d4† 查xg6-+.

# 1...dxe5

1...<sup> $\square$ </sup>xe5 2.<sup> $\square$ </sup>xe5 dxe5 3.g6+- is a thematic variation, which illustrates the strength of the pawn wedge on g6.

#### 2.g6!

Threatening mate.

#### 2....鬯xg6 3.鬯c4† 邕f7 4.邕h8#

#### Diagram 7-6

A CONTRACT OF A	and the second se	the state of the s	
J.Blac	kburne –	- S.Lips	schuetz

New York 1889

This is a good demonstration of how to create a pawn wedge.

#### 1.g6! h6

1...hxg6 fails to 2.\mathbb{Z}xg7\end{tabulkreit}+-. White now finds an elegant finish.

3... 查g8 4. 幽c7+- changes nothing.

4.凹c7† 查f6

#### 5.₩d6†

Black resigned, in view of 5... 空g7 (5... 空f5 6. 幽e5#) 6. 幽e7† 空g8 7. 幽h7#.

#### Diagram 7-7

R.Klovsky – V.Muratov

USSR Team Ch., Moscow 1967

#### 1. 2g6†! hxg6?

Black absolutely had to decline the sacrifice with 1...  $\mathfrak{B}g8$ , although White then obtains an excellent position after 2.  $\mathfrak{D}f4$ . (On the other hand, 2.  $\mathfrak{D}h6\dagger$ ? gxh6 3.  $\mathfrak{L}xh6$  hxg6 4.  $\mathfrak{B}xg6\dagger$   $\mathfrak{B}h8$  5.  $\mathfrak{E}e3$  would not be good, due to 5...  $\mathfrak{B}h7-+$ .)

# 

Black hoped to be able to defend this position, but White's attack is too strong.

# 3...'ëe6 4.ëh7†

White could also play 4. Dxf6†! \$\$xf6 5.\$\$g5!+- and his threats will soon prove decisive.

# 4....함f8 5. h6!

Threatening 鬯h8†. Also very strong is 5.皇g5! with the intention of sacrificing on f6: 5...鬯xg4 6.鬯h8† 查e7 7.鬯xg7† 查e6 8.鬯f7† 查e5 9.皇xf6† 皇xf6 10.鬯xf6#

# 5...**≗**c7

Preparing an escape route for the king via d8. Of course, 5...gxh6? allows 6. \$\\$xh6#.

# 6.<u>\$</u>g5!

6.罩xf6†! 營xf6 7.兑f5! (threatening 鬯h8#) would also be good: 7...鬯xf5 8.鬯h8† 空e7 9.exf5†+-

# 6...d5

Or 6.... e7 7. \argstyle xf6!+-.

# 7.羹xf6 gxf6 8.g7† 嶅e7 9.g8=鬯† 嶅d6

9... 查d8 10. 创行† 查c8 11. exd5 營xe1 12. Ixe1 is also hopeless.

# 10.₩g3†

And mate in two moves. **1–0** 

# Pawn wedge on h6

White is attacking the g7-square. Of course, it is particularly useful to have open g- and f-files, and the a1-h8 diagonal is also important.

# Diagram 7-8 M.Damjanovic – A.Lutikov

Sarajevo 1969

In the game, White did not find the typical way to win. By playing 1.營e6?! here, he threw overboard the major part of his advantage and the game eventually ended in a draw.

The correct move is:

# 

And mate follows.



#### Tactics 4





Diagram 7-9

#### I.Nunn – N.Murshed

London 1985

# 1.<u>\$</u>e5‼

An elegant combination.

#### 1...Äxf2

If 1... \$\\$xe5, then 2.\Box\$287! \$\\$xg8 3.\$\$\$xe5\$+-.

1....鬯xe5 allows 2.邕g8#.

#### 2.¤e4

Preparing a pretty finish. 2.皇xf6† would also be good: 2...邕xf6 3.邕e4! (or 3.鬯c3+-) 3...鬯f8 4.邕e8!+-

2.... এxe5 3. 鬯g7†!!

1–0

#### Diagram 7-10

#### V.Zilberstein – O.Dementiev

Grozny 1968

#### 1.營f6!

White does not stop to recapture the bishop on g2, but goes straight for the kill. However, he must resist being tempted by 1.266  $\pm h8 2.20$ d7?, which enables Black to defend after 2...f6!.

#### 1.... 包e8 2. 凹e7!

The threat is now 2f6<sup>†</sup>.

2....වc7

Or 2...f5 3. 4 f6† \ Ixf6 4.exf6+-.

#### 3.②f6† 魯h8 4.②e8!

1–0

Aesthetically exceptionally pleasing.

Once again, the tempting 4.2 d7? would fail to finish Black off, this time because of 4...2 d5!.

The pawn wedge is a powerful weapon. In your own games, try to strengthen an attack with the h- or fpawn. In some circumstances you can also advance the g-pawn. But this operation is more dangerous if you have castled short, because it weakens your own king position.

In the exercises, please look for active moves (for your opponent too!) and for forcing lines. Exploit the strength of the pawn wedge!









 $\mathbb{E}_{n,n}: \underline{k} \in \mathbb{R}_{n} \subset \mathbb{R}_{n}, \underline{k} \in \mathbb{R}^{n \times n} = \mathbb{R} \cap \mathbb{R} \times \mathbb{R} \times \mathbb{R}$


化二苯 医小麦子 医子宫炎



72

### Ex. 7-1

### <u>L.Schmid – E.Bhend</u>

Venice 1953

### 1....\$xg3!

(1 point) Nothing is achieved by 1... 營h3? due to

### 2.≝f1+--.

**2.hxg3** 2.fxg3 f2<sup>†</sup>-+

### 2...ĝh3!

Intending 違g2 and 鬯h1#. Again 2...鬯h3? would be met by 3.鬯f1+–.

### 3.ዿੈg5 ዿੈg2! 4.ዿੈh4 ₩g4

Threatening ₩h3.

(another 1 point for this variation)

5.包e5 凹h3

0–1

### Ex. 7-2

Z.Sturua – V.Kozlov Cheliabinsk 1975

### 1.邕g8†!

(1 point) Black resigned, in view of 1... 空xg8 (1... 三xg8 2. 豐xc1+-) 2. 豐g3† 空f8 3. 豐g7† 空e8 4. 豐g8#.

### Ex. 7-3

### E.Vladimirov – A.Kharitonov Alma-Ata 1977

### 1.營f6†!

(1 point)

1.逸c5†! (also 1 point) wins too after 1... 空d8 2.營xf7+-, but the move in the game is slightly more accurate.

### 1.... xf6 2. 2c5 †!

(another 1 point)

Black resigned, on account of 2.... 象c5 3.gxf6† (or 3.exf6†) 3... 登f8 4. 当h8#. Ex. 7-4

### A.Shvedchikov – Y.Estrin

USSR 1977

In the game White created a pawn wedge and appeared to be on the road to victory. But appearances were deceptive!

### 1. 2f6†? exf6 2.gxf6

There now came the unexpected:

### 2....鬯xf2†!

White resigned, because of 3. \$\Delta xf2 \$\Delta g4\$\Delta.

(2 points for spotting this trap!) Another 1 point is awarded for the modest move 1.公c7. After 1...曾e2 2.公xe8 Exe8 the position remains balanced.

### Ex. 7-5

### A.Rotstein – B.Katalymov

USSR 1952

### 1.¤xh6†!

(1 point)

(another 1 point)

Ex. 7-6

### Bankov – Lumsjagi 1975

1....¤f2!–+

(1 point)

### 2.≌h1

If 2.營xg3, then 2... Ξxf1† 3. 空h2 Ξh1† 4. 空g2 Ξg1†-+.

2.豐xf2 gxf2† 3.堂xf2 鬯f5† 4.堂g1 鬯a5 is also hopeless for White.

### 2....邕xf1†!

(another 1 point)

Black gives his opponent no time for a counterattack. On the other hand, 2...g2?? would even lose to 3.\Bot\_7\tau.

### 3.空xf1 鬯d1†

White resigned, in view of 4.查g2 增f3† 5.查h3 (or 5.查g1 曾f2#) 5...g2† 6.查h2 gxh1=豐#.

### Ex. 7-7

M.Botvinnik - P.Keres

USSR Team Ch., Moscow 1966

### 1.邕b8!

정말에도 그는 것 한 것 같은 것 것

(1 point)

Black resigned, as 1... 🖄 xb8 is met by 2. 🖄 xh4 with a rapid mate.

### Ex. 7-8

Based on the game

### Niedermann – Zucs

1895

### 1.奠c8!!

(1 point)

### 1....**¤xc8**

5.營e8† is not so good: 5...岂b8 6.營a4† 峦b7 7.營a7† 峦c6 8.營c7† 峦b5 9.營xe5†±

### 5.... 空b8 6. 鬯e8 ++-

(another 1 point for this variation)

### Ex. 7-9

H.Heemsoth – Heisenbutter West Germany 1958

### 1.¤c5!

(1 point) Black resigned, faced with the prospect of 1...鬯xc5 2.岂xh7†! ②xh7 3.鬯g7#.

### Ex. 7-10

K.Opocensky – A.Alekhine

Paris 1925

### 1....¤e8!

(1 point) White resigned, in view of 2.營d1 營xf3† 3.營xf3 罩xe1# or 2.營xe8 營xf3† 3.堂g1 營g2#.

#### Ex. 7-11

M.Basman – A.Balshan

Ramat Hasharon 1980

### 1.¤g6†‼

(1 point)

### 1.dxe4? g4†=

### 1...fxg6 2.營h8†!

2.鼍xf8†? would be bad: 2... 亞xf8 3.鬯h8† 查f7 4.鬯xh7† 空e6 5.鬯xg6† 查d5-+

2.... 空xh8 3. 邕xf8#

(another 1 point)

### Ex. 7-12

Zhuravlev – Kapanidze 1977

### 1...\$65!

(1 point) The threat is now ...鬯f3†. White resigned, as 2.邕f1 is followed by 2...鬯e2 with a quick mate.

(another 1 point)



ていてき へきゃつ 記され

If you scored less than **11** points, we recommend that you read the chapter again and repeat the exercises which you got wrong.

### CHAPTER

### Contents

- ✓ What is a trap?
- ✓ Opening traps
- ✓ Benign traps
- ✓ Bad traps
- ✓ How do you spot a trap?

### Diagram 8-1 8 7 6 5 4 3 N A 2 1 f b С d e g

## **Opening traps**

'A trap is the provocation of a mistake. A trap always involves a tempting or obvious reply by the opponent. He is more or less invited to make an apparently good move, but one which is rapidly and surprisingly refuted.' – Neistadt

There are players who try to tempt their opponents into a trap right in the opening, hoping to win the game without any real effort. They simply learn specific variations and do not bother with the main systems.

### Benign traps

If a trap is simply a by-product of natural development and in no way hinders future logical development, then we can call it a *benign trap*. Here are two examples of benign traps.

### Opening trap 1

### 1.e4 e5 2.ව්f3 ව්c6 3.ද්ද4 ව්f6 4.ව්g5 d5 5.exd5 Diagram 8-1

### 5....②xd5?

This natural move is a well-known mistake. Despite that, many players do not know their theory well enough to avoid it!

5...🖸 d4 would be better, as would 5....🖾 a5.

### 6.d4!

Another dangerous move is 6.②xf7!? 查xf7 7.豐f3† 堂e6 8.②c3, but Black can still defend with 8...②cb4! 9.豐e4 c6 10.a3 ②a6.

### 6...exd4

The alternatives are:

a) 6....<sup>2</sup>xd4 7.c3!

7.0-0

White obtains a strong attack.

### 7...ĝe6

7...違e7 is answered by 8.包xf7! 空xf7 9.鬯h5†±. 8.**邕e1 鬯d7** 

Diagram 8-2

9.包xf7! 魯xf7

9....鬯xf7 10.臭xd5+-

### 10.營f3† 空g8 11.骂xe6! 骂d8 12.皇g5

There is also the simpler, but equally strong 12. $\Xi$ e4 h6 (12...0a5 13. $\Xi$ e8!+-) 13.0d2±.

12... <sup>w</sup>xe6 13. 2xd8 <sup>w</sup>e1<sup>†</sup> 14. 2f1 <sup>w</sup>e6 15. 2h4<sup>±</sup> (Euwe)

### **Opening trap 2**

B08

### 1.e4 d6 2.d4 회f6 3.회c3 g6 4.회f3 皇g7 5.h3

White wants to prevent the move ...\$g4, but he loses time. The immediate 5.\$e2 is a more popular choice.

5...0-0 6. ge2?!

6...c5!

### Diagram 8-3

### 7.d5?!

This logical move is refuted in a thematic way. 7...b5!

Threatening ... b4.

### 8.臭xb5

8.ᡚxb5 ᡚxe4∓

8...①xe4! 9.①xe4 鬯a5† 10.公c3 臭xc3† 11.bxc3 鬯xb5

Black is better.

There is nothing wrong with opening traps. They too extend our knowledge of theory and form part of the whole concept of development.

### Bad traps

But sometimes players try to set opening traps which are dependent on one single reply by their opponent. If the opponent spots the trap and plays something different, then the consequences are disadvantageous for the 'poacher'. We shall call opening traps like that *bad traps*.





### Opening 1

#### **Opening trap 3**

C65

### 1.e4 e5 2.ඞ්f3 ඬc6 3.ඞ්b5 ඬf6 4.d3 ඬe7?! Diagram 8-4

Why can't the pawn on e5 be taken? Can you see the trap?

### 5.②xe5?

5.42c3 or 5.0-0 or 5.d4 are good replies. Black has lost time by moving for a second time a piece that was already developed.

### 5...c6!

A retreat by the bishop will be followed by the fork 6...<sup> $\square$ </sup> a5<sup>†</sup>.

### 6.包c4 d6!

But not 6...cxb5?? 7.42d6#.

### 7.**≜**a4 b5∓

And Black wins a piece.

### Opening trap 4

C50

### 1.e4 e5 2.2f3 2c6 3.\$c4 2d4?!

A typical trap. Black surrenders the pawn. Why?

### Diagram 8-5

### 4.@xe5?!

 $4.2 \times d4 = 0$  leads to a better position for White.

### 4....<sup>™</sup>g5 5.<sup>©</sup>xf7?

White is too greedy.  $5.2 \times 17^{\dagger} \pm 0.0 = 0 \pm 0.0$ 7. $2 \times 18^{\circ} \times 10^{\circ} \times 10^{\circ}$  (followed by d4) is a better continuation.

### 5....營xg2 6.邕f1

After 6.包xh8 幽xh1† 7.盒f1 幽xe4† Black is also winning, since the knight on h8 is lost.

### 6...增xe4† 7.皇e2?

7. We2 cannot save the game either.

### 7**...**ᡚf3#

### Opening trap 5 B17

### 1.e4 c6 2.d4 d5 3.包c3 dxe4 4.包xe4 包d7

Black wants to play 5... 친gf6 and recapture with the knight after 6. 친xf6.





### Opening traps

### 5.₩e2

This move only hinders his own development and shuts in the bishop on f1. Do you know this trap?

Diagram 8-6

5.... 2gf6??

Better is 5...e6 or 5...Ødf6. 6.Ød6#

It is not worth playing for such traps, since there is a great danger that your opponent will either spot them or know them. In any case, an opening repertoire for the long term should be constructed on solid foundations and not on a reliance on bad traps.

### How do you spot a trap?

In general, you have to react very cautiously whenever your opponent suddenly offers material in the opening. Calmly check through all your opponent's active moves. By doing so you will probably soon discover the trap - if there actually is one.

You should be on your guard particularly when playing gambits, since they contain a lot of traps and ways to go wrong.

### **R.Biever – R.Cassidy**

Münchenstein/ Basle 1959

### 1.d4 d5 2.c4 e5 3.dxe5 d4 4.e3? Diagram 8-7

4. <sup>(2)</sup>f3 is the correct move.

### 4...\$b4† 5.\$d2 dxe3!

White should have seen this on move 4.

### 6.\$xb4?

6.fxe3 is perhaps not very attractive positionally (White has doubled and weak e-pawns), but it would still be the better solution.

6.營a4† is met by 6...包c6 7.亀xb4 exf2† 8.垫xf2 營h4† 9.营e2 營xc4†∓.

### 

The only way to victory for Black is this underpromotion.

### 8.\$e1

8.邕xg1 違g4†-+

8...習h4† 9.空d2 乞c6 10.皇c3 皇g4

0 - 1







二回 日之礼 またま 主主 急の











### Ex. 8-1

### R.Reti – A.Dunkelblum

Vienna 1914

1.e4 e5 2.句f3 忆c6 3.신c3 오c5?! 4.신xe5! 신xe5 5.d4 오xd4 6.쌜xd4 땔f6?

Diagram Ex. 8-1

By threatening  $... \oslash f3$ † Black sets a primitive trap. But here the hunter becomes the hunted!

### 7.**②b5!**

(2 points)

7. 逸e3 (only 1 point) is not so aggressive. Of course 7. 创d5?? would lose to 7... 创f3†.

### 7.... **垫d8**?

7....c6 would be an improvement:

a) If 8.包c7†?! 营d8 9.包xa8?? (better is 9.鼻g5 鬯xg5 10.包xa8+-), then 9...包f3†-+.

b) 8.幻d6†! 魯e7 9.幻f5†+-.

### 8.營c5!

White threatens both  $extsf{W}f8\#$  and  $extsf{W}xc7$ <sup>†</sup>. **1–0** 

### Ex. 8-2

### A.Alekhine – A.Kaufman

Odessa simultaneous 1918

1.d4 d5 2.句f3 c5 3.象f4 cxd4 4.象xb8 罩xb8 (better is 4...鬯a5†) 5.鬯xd4 b6? (Black should prefer 5...e6 6.鬯xa7 象d7豪) 6.e4! dxe4

### Diagram Ex. 8-2 7.營xd8†! 堂xd8 8.包e5

(1 point)

The threats are 2xf7 and 2c6, and 3...2e8 is met by 9.2b5 +-.

### 1–0

### Ex. 8-3

### P.Keres – J.Petrovs

Estonian Ch., Tallinn 1933

1.e4 e5 2.f4 d5 3.exd5 e4 4.d3 ≝xd5 5.�d2 exd3 6.\$xd3

Diagram Ex. 8-3

6....鬯xg2??

### 7.\$e4! Wg4 8.Wxg4 \$xg4 9.\$xb7

(1 point for finding this refutation)

Ex. 8-4

**Opening trap** D35

1.d4 d5 2.c4 e6 3.බ්c3 බ්f6 4. ඉදු5 විbd7 5.cxd5 exd5

#### Diagram Ex. 8-4

The d5-pawn cannot be taken.

#### 6. 🖄 xd 5??

Better is either 6. 4 f3 or 6.e3.

6... 包xd5! 7. 皇xd8 皇b4† 8. 凹d2 空xd8-+

(1 point for this variation)

#### Ex. 8-5

#### A.Alekhine – J.De Cossio

San Sebastian simultaneous 1944

1.e4 e5 2.包c3 盒c5 3.盒c4 包e7 (better is 3...d6) 4.d3 包bc6 5.營h5 0-0 6.盒g5 營e8 7.包f3 包g6?? (7...d6) 8.包d5 盒b6

Diagram Ex. 8-5 9.②f6†! gxf6 10.흹xf6

(1 point)

White plays ≝h6 or <sup>(2</sup>)g5 next. 1–0

### Ex. 8-6

#### A.Tolush – L.Aronson

USSR Ch., Moscow 1957

1.d4 d5 2.c4 包c6 3.cxd5 鬯xd5 4.包f3 皇g4? (better is 4...e5!) 5.包c3 鬯a5 6.d5 0-0-0 7.臬d2! 奧xf3 8.exf3 包b4?

#### Diagram Ex. 8-6

### 9.a3!

(1 point)

9. $2c4 \cong c5$  would not be so clear; nor would 9.B3 = 6 - 1 consolation point for either of these suggestions. 9.... 2xd5 10. 2a4! 1 - 0

(another 1 point)

### Ex. 8-7

### T.Petrosian – H.Ree

Wijk aan Zee 1971

1.c4 e5 2.2c3 2f6 3.2f3 2c6 4.g3 2b4 5. 2d5 2xd5 6.cxd5 e4??

Diagram Ex. 8-7

7.dxc6

7...exf3 8.\"b3!

(1 point)

(2 points) But not 8.cxd7<sup>†</sup>? 盒xd7 9.exf3 (or 9.營b3 \$c6! 10.營xb4 fxe2-+) 9...0-0 10.\$e2 \$h3! with an attack for Black.

Black now resigned. Because of the possibility of cxb7, Black cannot save his bishop on b4:

a) 8...fxe2 9.\u00e9xe2 (or 9.\u00e92g2+-) 9...a5 10.a3+-

b) 8...凹e7 9.a3 fxe2 10.奠xe2+-

### Ex. 8-8

### I.Martin Ojeda – P.Chervis

Chartres 1990

1.e4 e5 2.2f3 2c6 3.2c4 2d4?! 4.2xd4 exd4 5.0-0 拿c5??

### Diagram Ex. 8-8

### 6. \$\$xf7†!

Another good option is 6.營h5 營e7 

(1 point)

### Ex. 8-9

### Ye Rongguang – L.Van Wely

Antwerp 1997

1.d4 包f6 2.包f3 g6 3.違g5 違g7 4.包bd2 0-0 5.e3 d6 6.gc4 c5 7.c3 b6??

### Diagram Ex. 8-9

8.\$xf6! \$xf6 9.\$d5+-

(1 point)

9... \$a6 10. \$xa8 d5 11.c4 dxc4 12.0-0 cxd4 13.exd4 \$\$xd4 14.\$\$xc4 1 - 0

### Ex. 8-10

### U.Andersson – D.Velimirovic Bar 1997

1.e4 e6 2.d4 d5 3.2c3 \$b4 4.2ge2 dxe4 5.a3 يe7 6. 2 xe4 2 c6 7.g3 2 f6 8. 2 g2 e5 9. 2 xf6 † \$xf6 10.d5 ②e7 11.②c3 \$f5??

### Diagram Ex. 8-10

Nothing is achieved by12.d6?! in view of 12... Wxd6. A positional move such as 12. De4 (1 consolation point) only gives White a slight advantage. The move in the game wins one of the two bishops.

### 12.g4!

Black

(2 points) after resigned immediately, as 12... \$26 White wins the bishop on f6 with

# 13.g5.

### Ex. 8-11

### M.Al Modiahki – H.Tin

Yangon 1999

1.e4 g6 2.d4 \$\mathbf{g}7 3.\$\varDel{c}3 d6 4.\$\varDel{f}3 \$\varDel{d}d7 5.\$\mathbf{g}c4\$ c5??

### Diagram Ex. 8-11

This was very careless play and now Black is presented with the bill. In the opening you should never let your attention stray from the f7-square.

### 6.包g5!

(1 point)

This is even stronger than 6. \$xf7\$ (1 consolation point) 6... 垫xf7 7. 包g5† 查e8 8. 包e6 (8.營f3? 包df6!) 8....鬯a5 9.包xg7† 查f7∞.

### 6....Øh6

After 6...e6 comes 7.\$xe6! fxe6 8.\$xe6 (another 1 point for this variation) 8..., 響e7 9. ②d5! 響xe6 10. ②c7† 查f7 11. ③xe6

堂xe6 12.dxc5 dxc5 13.凹d5†+-. 7.皇xf7†!

(another 1 point) 7...②xf7 8.②e6+- 營b6 9.②xg7† 查f8 10.②e6† 1-0

### Ex. 8-12

### I.Glek – S.Arkhipov

Russian Team Ch., Tomsk 2001

1.e4 c5 2.包括 包c6 3.遑b5 e6 4.0-0 包ge7 5.罩e1 a6 6.遑xc6 包xc6 7.d4 cxd4 8.包xd4 曾c7 9.包xc6 bxc6 10.e5 遑b7 11.包d2 c5?! 12.②c4 拿d5?

### Diagram Ex. 8-12

### 13.②d6†!

(1 point)

The move order cannot be reversed: if 13.營xd5? exd5 14.②d6†, then 14...岱e7 15.逸g5† 空e6 16.f4 逸xd6-+.

### 13...<u>\$</u>xd6

Or 13... 空e7 14. 凹h5+-.

### 14.凹xd5!!

(another 1 point)

14.exd6 would not be so strong, due to 14...\"b7.

Now 14...exd5 is followed by 15.exd6<sup>†</sup>.

1–0



If you scored less than **10** points, we recommend that you read the chapter again and repeat the exercises which you got wrong.

### Contents

 Traps in the middlegame or endgame

CHAPTER

- ✓ Traps in defence
- Traps in better and level positions
- ✓ Find the trap!



### The use of traps

In Chapter 8 we looked into various opening traps, but it is not only in the opening that traps are dangerous. You can also tempt your opponent into a trap in the middlegame or endgame.

The trap is also an important weapon in defence. Many players often make mistakes just before the end of the game, because their concentration flags and they do not take into account possible moves for their opponent. It is often worth fighting on in an apparently hopeless position. In any case, you should at that point try to set a trap for your opponent. (You can also find some examples of this in *Build Up Your Chess 1*, Chapter 17 – 'Stalemate motifs'.)

### Diagram 9-1

Em.Lasker – D.Janowski World Ch(7), Paris 1909

Black resigned here. Although the position is of course objectively lost, his decision can still be criticized. After all, Black could still set a hidden trap for his opponent. He should have tried:

### 1...c5!

Hoping that his opponent would not spot the cunning trap in time. 2.心d5? is met by a drawing combination: 2...罝xf3†!! 3.堂xf3 盒xe4† 4.堂xe4 and stalemate!

On the other hand, there is the very strong counter:

2.邕b7!+-

### Diagram 9-2

A.Yusupov – G.Kasparov

Linares 1990

White's position looks hopeless. He is even going to lose the e4-pawn. Despite that, White fights on and sets two traps for his mighty opponent. Unfortunately such a strategy has hardly any real chance of succeeding against World Champion Kasparov.

### 1.f5!? gxf5!

But not 1...Ξxe4? because of 2.f6† \$\Delta h6 3.Ξxe4 \$\\$xe4 4.e6 \$\\$d5 5.e7 \$\\$c6 6.h4 g5 7.h5=.

2.exf5 邕xe5-+ 3.邕d2 鼻a4 4.堂g3 邕e3† 5.堂h4 皇b5

### Diagram 9-3

### 6.¤d5!?

The second trap. What has White prepared against 6...\$f1?

### 6...**&d**3!

If 6...&f1?, then  $7.f6\dagger \&f8$   $(7...\&g6 8.\Xig5\dagger=)$ 8. $\Xid8\dagger \Xie8 9.\Xid1\mp$  with some practical chances for White, since the black king is not too well placed on the 8th rank.

### 7.邕c5 h6 8.邕c3 邕f3 9.邕b3 鼻e2 10.邕b2

### 10.... 創作 11. 邕h2

From here on there is no more doubt that Black will win the game.

11... 화f6 12. 뽑h1 화e5 13. 뽑h2 f6 14. 뽑h1 화e4 15. 뽑h2 화f4

White is in zugzwang. 16.프h1 \$\\$g2 17.프h2 프g3 0-1

Diagram 9-4

### Poliak – Kogan

Rostov-on-Don 1937

Here too, it looks as though White has no chance. But he still comes up with an idea.

### 1.凹a8!? 莒xg3?

Black does not spot the trap.

### 2.邕xg3 鬯xg3?

2... Ixf1† 3. 中h2 If2† would have been enough for a win.

### 3.₩a1†‼

White saves the game, because after  $3...\Xi xa1$  there is  $4.h6^{\dagger}!$  with an unavoidable stalemate.  $\frac{1}{2}-\frac{1}{2}$ 

Of course you can also set traps in better or level positions. But the best option is to employ 'benign' traps, so as not to weaken your own position. In that





C. S. H. L. F. C.

**Diagram 9-5** 

b c

**Diagram 9-6** 

а

i 🖄

d

1 () <u>1</u>

d

с

Å Å

f

Ï

f

g h

e

g

h

e

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

8

7

6

5

3

1

4

2 | 糸

a b

way you do not take any unnecessary risks if your opponent discovers the trap in time and chooses a different route. Moreover such benign traps are harder to spot than a 'bad' trap, which often involves an unnatural-looking move, which therefore stands out. An experienced opponent will then quickly become suspicious!



Black can achieve no more by normal means, since the white rook is very active. So he sets a trap.

### 1...f4†!? 2.魯e4?

2. de2= was required.

2....筥d6! 3.邕xa7†

Or 3.鼍xd6 营xd6 4.a6 营e6 5.营d3 营d5 6.营e2 (6.营c3 e4-+) 6...营c4-+.

### 3...&e6

And White cannot ward off the threat of ...,\\\Zd4#. 0-1

### Diagram 9-6

### M.Chigorin – G.Marco

Vienna 1898

White sets a subtle trap.

### 1.✿h2!

This move is also objectively very strong. The threat is now  $\Xi x f 4$ .

The immediate 1. $\mathbb{E}x$ f4? would be bad, due to 1... $\mathbb{E}x$ c1 $\ddagger$  2. $\mathbb{E}h$ 2  $\mathbb{E}d$ 1-+.

### 1....**¤xc**1

The alternatives 1...鬯d4 2.彙e3+- and 1...创e2 2.罩f8† 垫h7 3.鬯d3†+- are no good.

### 2.宫xc1 包e2

Better is 2...≝d4 3.2e8± (but not 3.\arXc6?! 2e2 4.\arWe1 \arWe5 + 5.g3 \arWh5\article).

### 3.凹e5 包xc1

### 4.De8!

Black had not reckoned on this move. He has no sensible defence against  $extsf{W}xg7#$ .

1-0

# CONTRACTOR -







### Diagram 9-7

### <u>A.Nimzowitsch – A.Alekhine</u>

Russian Ch., Vilnius 1912

### 1.0-0-0!

This natural move is linked to a trap. In the game Black saw the trap and played:

### 1...**ģd**6≛

White wins very prettily after 1...cxd4? 2.exd4 ②xd4? with 3.骂xd4! 鬯xd4 4.鬯xe6† ②d7 5.鬯c6†!! bxc6 6.逸a6#.

### Find the trap!

In the examples which follow, the first thing you should do is to try to discover the trap for yourself.

### Diagram 9-8

### G.Borisenko – V.Simagin

USSR Ch., Moscow 1955

White wants to play for a win and falls right into the trap!

### 1. \$\dot{g}4??

If 1.堂h4, then 1...鬯e2. The only way for White to play on is with 1.堂h2 鬯e2† 2.堂g1圭.

### 1...f5†!–+

After this move, White is mated: 2.gxf6 (or 2.空h4 營h1#) 2...鬯f5† 3.空h4 鬯h5#

White had only considered 1...  $extsf{b}f$ ? 2.  $extsf{b}h4$   $extsf{b}f$ ?, which is followed by 3.  $extsf{b}d8$  $\dagger$   $extsf{b}g7$  4.  $extsf{b}f6$  $\dagger$   $extsf{b}xf6$  5. gxf6 $\dagger$   $extsf{b}xf6$  6. c6  $extsf{b}e6$  7.  $extsf{b}g5$  and White wins.

### Diagram 9-9 Y.Simbolon – N.Mitkov

Dresden Olympiad 2008

Can Black exploit the pin on the e3-pawn?

The correct answer is no, and he even has to play very carefully. After, for example, 1... Be6 2. Eee1 the position would have remained level. But in the game what happened was the over-optimistic:

1...f4?? 2.\extstyle{ftyle{constraints}} 1...f4?? 2.\extstyle{ftyle{constraints}} for the second sec

Threatening 🖞g7#.

### 3...fxg3† 4.营f1 邕e6 5.鬯g7†

Black is now facing mate in two moves. 1–0

In the exercises which follow, you should be trying either to set a trap, or to spot one and draw its teeth!







 $\triangle$ **≻**Ex. 9-10**∢** \*\* Ż 8 7 Ï 6 5 E 4 Ï 3 Ï ථ ථ ජ 2 [\$¥] 1 d f b с e g h а **▶**Ex. 9-11 **<**  $\star\star\star$ Ŵ ġ 8 7 6 ٩ 5 9 ථ 4 E 3 Ð Ê X X Å 1X Ŵ 2 ¢ 1 Д d f g b с e h а **>** Ex. 9-12 **◄** \*\* Ħ 8 7 Æ 6 5 ₫ 4 3 2 1 d f b с e g а h

### Ex. 9-1

### A.Yusupov – N.de Firmian

Thessaloniki Olympiad 1984

### 1...&c6

(1 point)

1...堂c5 is just as good. But not 1...g3?? 2.鼍xg3 鼍xg3 stalemate. 0-1

U-1

### Ex. 9-2

M.Turner – K.Sasikiran

British Ch., Torquay 2002

The correct move is 1...c5!∓.

(1 point)

However, the f2-pawn is poisoned:

1...莒xf2?? 2.營xd5 exd5 3.②e4!! 骂xc2 4.②xf6†! gxf6 5.骂xc2+-

White has obtained a material advantage. (another 1 point for this variation)

### Ex. 9-3

Tomovic – Sokolov

Belgrade 1961

### 1.¤e5†??

A check is not always a good thing! The correct move was 1. Za4!.

(1 point)

White can then meet 1... 空f2 with 2. 置f4†+-. (Similarly 1. 置a6, 1. 置a7 and 1. 置a8 also win.) 1... 查f2

White cannot now ward off the threat of 2... 邑h1† 3. 魚xh1 釣f1#.

0–1

(1 bonus point for this variation)

### Ex. 9-4

J.Donner – E.Spanjaard Holland 1961

### 1.**¤h**a7??

Black does not see his opponent's idea. It is astonishingly easy to lose a won game if you

don't pay attention to what your opponent is doing!

The correct continuation would be, for example,  $1.\Xi f7$ †  $2\cdot 6+-$ .

(1 point)

But you also get 1 point if you saw the following variation and dealt with the threat in a different way.

1....罩h1†!! 2. 垫xh1 空g3

Black threatens \[2]e1#.

0–1

### Ex. 9-5

A.Ivanov – S.Dolmatov

Novosibirsk 1976

### 1...e3!

(1 point)

A final trap.

2.骂xb4?

The last move before the time control! The simple 2.fxe3+- would have been correct.

2...e2

And Black constructs a fortress: 3.¤e4 &xf5 4.gxf5 h4!=

1/2-1/2

(another 1 point for this variation)

### Ex. 9-6

S.Veselovsky – L.Psakhis

Krasnojarsk 1980

There is a simple win by 1...  $2c_{3-+}$ .

(1 point)

But what happened in the game was: 1... \$e3??

Whereupon White actually resigned, instead of forcing the draw with  $2.\hat{\underline{a}}h7\dagger!\hat{\underline{b}}c3$ (2... $\hat{\underline{a}}xf4$   $3.\hat{\underline{a}}g8\dagger=$ )  $3.\Xic4\dagger!=$ .

(1 bonus point for this variation)

### Ex. 9-7

V.Jansa – S.Rublevsky Ostrava 1992

### 1.¤e2!

(1 point)

1.a6  $$^{\pm}xf3 -+ would be hopeless.$ 

### 1....**¤xa**5?

Black could still win the game with 1... \atesta a4!? 2. \atesta g2 (or 2. \atesta f2 啓g3-+) 2... \atesta and White is in zugzwang.

,

(1 bonus point)

### 2.筥a2!

(another 1 point)

2....Bxa2 stalemate

### Ex. 9-8

### A.Vyzmanavin – K.Lerner

USSR Ch., Lvov 1984

### 1....**¤a**3!?

(1 point)

A final trap, which surprisingly led to success. If 1...  $\frac{1}{2}$  d5, then  $2.\frac{1}{2}$  d2=.

### 2.핲d2??

 $2.\Phi b2!=$  would be the correct move.

### 2...h2! 3.垫e2

3.\array\_kn2 loses to 3...\array\_a2\fract.

3....¤a1!

0–1

### Ex. 9-9

### M.Ruderfer – M.Dvoretsky

Odessa 1972

1.e7 違d7 2.罩d8+- would be correct.

(1 point)

White did not spot the trap and played:

### 1.¤xc8??

There followed:

### 1....邕g2†!= 2.垫d1

The bishop cannot be taken until the white king goes to the e-file: 2.堂e3 罩xg6= and 3.e7 is met by 3...罝e6†.

(1 point if you saw the trap!)

2... 置g1† 3. 查c2 置g2† 4. 查c3 置g3† 5. 查b2 置g2† 6. 查a3 置g3† 7. 查a2 置g2† 8. 查a1 置g1† 9. 查b2 置g2† 10. 查b1 置g1† 11. 查c2 置g2† 12. 查c1 置g1† 13. 查d2

### Ex. 9-10

### V.Simagin – R.Kholmov

Uzhgorod 1966

### 1.@xc7??

1. &e3 @e4 2.g4= would be better.

You also get 1 point if you saw the following trap and suggested a move other than 1.\$xc7??.

### 1.... 2g4†!

White resigned, faced with 2.hxg4 宫h6† 3.营g1 舀d1#.

(another 1 point)

### Ex. 9-11

### V.Savon – Bylino

Kiev 1979

The following variations show that it is not easy to defend the black position:

a) 1...皇xb5 2.包xb5 鬯a5 3.包ec3!? 包xa2 4.包xd6±

b) 1...a6 2.奠xd7 鬯xd7 3.a3±

c) 1...≌c8 2.&xd7 ₩xd7 3.&xa7± (3.a3?! ②a6 4.&xa7 b5≠)

d) 1....②f6 2.a3 ∅a6±

(2 points for any of these moves) In any case, your move is better than the combination played in the game!

### 1.... 2xa2?

(1 consolation point)

2.堂xa2 凹a5† 3.堂b3! 盒xb5 4.骂a1 1-0

(1 point if you found this idea!)

### Ex. 9-12

### List – Heiman

England 1951

### 1...e2?

1... 違b4! 2. 筥e8= was necessary.

(1 point)

### 2.¤b3!

Now Black is mated after 2...e1=鬯 3.邕a3† 兔xa3 4.b3#.

(another 1 point for this variation)

1–0



If you scored less than 12 points, we recommend that you read the chapter again and repeat the exercises which you got wrong.

# CHAPTER 10

### Contents

- ✓ Stalemate in the endgame
- ✓ Decoying
- ✓ The 'desperado' rook
- ✓ Various stalemate
  - constructions





### Stalemate combinations

We have already seen a lot of stalemate combinations in *Build Up Your Chess 1*, Chapter 17 and in Chapter 9 above. But in praxis these stalemate ideas are frequently overlooked. Sometimes a stalemate combination can help you save a position which is almost lost.

### Diagram 10-1

P.Keres – R.Kholmov

USSR Ch., Moscow 1948

### 1.曾e7† 杏h6! 2.響xf6 鬯h3†

White did not spot the danger of stalemate and played:

### 3.垫g1?

3.堂e2 would have been correct. There now came the surprising:

### 3...≝g4†‼=

White must either take on g4 and stalemate his opponent, or give up the a4-pawn. There is no way to avoid the draw.

If there are only a few pieces left on the board and if the king and pawns are unable to move, then you must pay particular attention to stalemate combinations.

### Diagram 10-2

Sadarov – Kudriashov Alma-Ata 1958

White was not paying sufficient attention here and carelessly deprived the black king of all its available squares.

### 1.@e4?

 $1.2d3^{+}$ +- would have been the correct move.

### 1...¤xc4‼

This leads immediately to a draw, because the white bishop has no good retreat square. And if it takes the black rook, then Black is stalemated.

1/2-1/2

96

Λ

It is often necessary to decoy the opposing pieces onto specific squares, in order to engineer a stalemate.

### Diagram 10-3

A.Troitzky – Vogt St. Petersburg 1896

White's last move was  $\mathbb{Z}d1$  and Black did not see the trap and played ... $\mathbb{Z}d7$ -h3. On the kingside, only the bishop on e1 can move. This 'problem' is soon disposed of.

### 1.邕xd8† 魯xd8 2.營d1†‼

The black queen is lured to d1, from where it pins the bishop on e1, resulting in a spectacular stalemate. 2... $\forall xd1$  stalemate  $\frac{1}{2}-\frac{1}{2}$ 

One special case of stalemate combination is the socalled 'desperado' rook.



1.舀d4!+- would be correct here, intending 骂h4. But White played:

### 1.\arapheddigenergy 1.\argenergy 1.\argenerg

Black now demonstrated a typical defence, based on stalemate.

### 1...骂b8! 2.杏xc2 h2! 3.骂h3 h1=凿 4.骂xh1 骂b2†!=

This activates the desperado rook. White cannot take the rook on account of the stalemate and so it follows the king all over the board, endlessly offering itself up as a sacrifice.

Some stalemating constructions are set up in a very clever way. In the following position from a blitz game, even World Champion Michael Tal overlooked the stalemate defence.

### Diagram 10-5

Diagram 10-3





Tactics 5







### <u> M.Tal – M.Aaron</u>

Leipzig (blitz) 1960

### 1...<u>\$</u>xe4!

White now took the bishop.

### 2.<u>\$</u>xe4??

The simplest way to win was 2.띨a7! 鼻xd5 3.邕xh7† 垫g8 4.띨ag7† 垫f8 5.띨h8†.

But next came the unexpected:

### 2...增xb2†!! 3. 空xb2 a3†

And then stalemate.

1/2-1/2

Stalemate defences are frequently found in queen endings.

### Diagram 10-6

### I.Hausner – D.Doncevic

Prague 1985

A typical stalemate set-up. 1...鬯c2†! 2.鬯xc2 ½-½

Here are some other examples to illustrate the various stalemate motifs.

### Diagram 10-7

### E.Post – A.Nimzowitsch

Barmen 1905

1....Ib8! 2.Ixb8 1/2-1/2

Diagram 10-8

Λ

### Goldstein – L.Shamkovich

Moscow 1946

Black is able to survive against the far-advanced connected passed pawns.

### 1...骂d7! 2.皇d5

2.cxd7 is immediately stalemate.

### 2...骂b7!

1/2-1/2

Once again capturing the rook delivers stalemate, and otherwise Black will play 3...\Bxb6 with a simple draw.

### Diagram 10-9 F.Marshall – McClure

New York 1923

### Marshall finds a fantastic combination. 1.**呂h6!! 呂xh6 2.h8=營†! 呂xh8 3.b5!!=**

Although it is Black's move, he cannot prevent the stalemate. 3... $\mathbb{Z}$ d7 4.cxd7 does not change the situation, as the threat is then d8= $\frac{1}{2}$  followed by stalemate. Black cannot continue 4...c5?? because of 5.bxc6, when White would win.  $\frac{1}{2}-\frac{1}{2}$ 



### 1....鬯b7†!

But not 1...,營h1†? 2.含f4 營h2† (here 2...,邕f5† is met by 3.堂xf5! and White wins) 3.營g3+-.

### 2.✿f4

Or 2. 堂g3 罩g5† 3. 堂h4 (however, certainly not 3. 堂h2?? 營g2#) 3... 罩h5† 4. 堂g3 罩g5† 5. 堂f4 罩f5† transposing to the game continuation.

### 2....莒f5†!! 3.鬯xf5

3.堂xf5? is bad, in view of 3...鬯h7† 4.堂e6 鬯xd3. 3...鬯f3† 4.堂e5 鬯d5† ½–½

### Diagram 10-8









### Diagram 10-11

Tactics 5



### <u>Lukanin – Schmuljan</u>

Taganrog 1938

### 1....c4!! 2.dxc4 c5!

A rare idea in a practical game. Black wants to wall in his own king!

### 3.堂g4 堂c7!

And then stalemate.

1/2-1/2





101



아파, 하네 가지 좋게 못 못 있었다.



### Ex. 10-1

### <u> J.Fichtl – F.Blatny</u>

Bratislava 1956

1....ĝc6†!

Decoying.

2. 增xc6 骂g1 †! 3. 垫xg1 stalemate

(1 point)

### Ex. 10-2

### A.Selesniev

1922

### 1.邕e8†! 皇xe8 2.包e7† 查f8

Or 2... 垫h8 3. ②g6†!=.

3.2g6†!

(1 point)

If Black takes the knight, White is stalemated. If not, White keeps on giving check.

3...hxg6 stalemate

### Ex. 10-3

L.Evans – S.Reshevsky

New York 1963

### 1.營g8†!

(1 point)

1.營h8†!= is equally good. However, 1.罩xg7†? would be bad, due to 1...營xg7 2.營g8† 查h6 and Black is winning, e.g. 3.營e6† ②xe6 4.f4 營g2#.

### 1....\$xg8

But not 1...空h6?? 2.鬯h8† 空g6 3.鬯xg7#. 2.鼍xg7†!=

(1 point)

### 2....**垫f**8

2...營xg7 is stalemate; 2...哈h8 is followed by 3.舀h7†=.

### 3.筥f7†

The desperado rook will continue pursue the black king.  $\frac{1}{2}-\frac{1}{2}$ 

### Ex. 10-4

### O.Bernstein – V.Smyslov

Groningen 1946

2.**空f3 邕xb2** stalemate

(1 point)

We saw the same idea in Ex. 9-1.

### Ex. 10-5

### D.Ponziani

1769

### 1.**&e**3!

(1 point) But not 1.axb5? axb5 2.皇e3 鬯xe3 3.曾f2, on account of 3...鬯c5!-+.

### 

Now 2.... 營c5?? would lose to 3.a5 \*!.

### 3.a5†!

And then stalemate.

(another 1 point)

### Ex. 10-6

Ormos – Batoczky

Budapest 1951

1...,莒b1† 2.堂h2 莒h1†!! 3.堂xh1 包g3†! (1 point)

### 4.fxg3

(another 1 point)

4...鬯c1†?? loses to 5.兔d1! since the black g-pawn can now move, meaning there will no longer be a stalemate.

### 5.垫xg2 stalemate

Ex. 10-7

The end of a study by

### F.Lazard

1916

### 1.c3!!

1... 堂d8 2.c4 堂e8 3.c5 堂d8 4.f6! gxf6 stalemate

(another 1 point)

(1 point)

### Ex. 10-8

### G.Kluger – B.Sandor

Hungarian Ch., Budapest 1954

### 1...Φg3!

Threatening \al#.

### 2.鼍g8† 垫h3 3.垫g1

3.a8=徵 is followed by 3...罝a1† 4.鬯xa1 stalemate.

(another 1 point for this variation) 3....\[3]g2<sup>†</sup>!

An elegant finish, but the prosaic 3...¤xa7 would also be enough for a draw. 1⁄2–1⁄2

### Ex. 10-9

### Goldin – Rjabow

Novosibirsk 1972

### 1.⁄Dd6†‼

(1 point)

But not 1.包c5†? because of 1.... 查b8! 2.營xf4† 查a8 3.營xh2 bxc5-+.

### 1....**₩xd6**

1... 查a7?? even loses after 2. 營f7†.

### 2.筥e7†!

(another 1 point)

### 2....鬯xe7

### 3.鬯c7†!

Activating the desperado queen. The alternatives 3.<sup> $\square$ </sup>C6<sup>†</sup>!, 3.<sup> $\square$ </sup>C8<sup>†</sup>! or 3.<sup> $\square$ </sup>a6<sup>†</sup>! would be just as good.  $\frac{1}{2}$ - $\frac{1}{2}$ 

### Ex. 10-10

### B.Sliwa – Z.Doda

Poland 1967

1. ge4†! Wxe4 2. Wg7†!

(1 point)

Or, for example, 2.\"h7†!=. 1/2-1/2

### Ex. 10-11

A.Salvio

1604

### 

(1 point)

2....¤xe7 stalemate

Or 2....\atensional 3.\atensional a desperado rook.

### Ex. 10-12

The end of a study by

V.Smyslov 2000

### 1.g3!

(1 point)

Otherwise the rook ending would be lost: 1.堂e2? 查xb6 2.堂d3 查c5 3.堂c3 堂d5 4.堂b2 垫e4 5.罩e1† 查f4—+

### 

(1 point)

### 3.... 空b4 4. 邕xa2!

(another 1 point)

### 4....Bxa2 stalemate

104



If you scored less than **11** points, we recommend that you read the chapter again and repeat the exercises which you got wrong.

# CHAPTER ]]

### Contents

✓ Attacking a backward pawn✓ Opening the semi-open file



### The semi-open file

In this chapter we shall discuss a strategic theme that is logically linked to the theme of the 'open file'. We already know what an important role an open file can play in a game.

Often, occupying a semi-open file promises even more advantages than was the case with an open file. Unlike in the case of an open file, an opposing pawn is present on a semi-open file. This pawn is then frequently reduced to being an object of attack for our major pieces. The pressure exerted against a backward pawn can either lead to the win of the pawn or it can force your opponent into passive defence. Then you can look for other objects to attack in order to overload your opponent's defensive resources.

#### A.Yusupov – A.Miles

Horgen 1994

### 1.d4 d5 2.c4 dxc4 3.e3 c5 4.兔xc4 cxd4 5.exd4 鬯c7 6.兔b3

6. 2e2 is much more passive.

### 6...<u>\$g</u>4

This tactical trick forces White to weaken his kingside. But in return he obtains a slight lead in development

#### 7.f3 皇d7 8.包e2 纪f6

8...e6, intending \$\u00e9d6, would be safer.

#### 9.20bc3 g6

Here too, 9...e6 10.\$f4 \$d6 would be better. But Miles preferred to fianchetto his bishop.

10.皇g5 皇g7 11.邕c1 營d8 12.0-0 0-0

Better is 12.... 2c6!?.

### Diagram 11-1

### 13.d5!?

This move fixes the pawn on e7. White gets a good object of attack on the semi-open e-file.

13.... 2a6 14. 2h1 2c7!?

Or 14...�c5 15.彙c2±.

### 15.邕e1 创b5?

It would be better for Black to bring this knight to d6: 15... 句ce8 16. 句g3 句d6 17. 臣c2!? 臣c8 18. 臣ce2 The semi-open file

≅e8 and White has only a minimal advantage. He is exerting pressure on the e7-pawn, but Black has no other weaknesses.

### 

### 18.營d2±

The black bishop is not well placed on a6. It may control the e2-square, but that is not enough to prevent the doubling of the rooks.

### 18...增d7 19. 2e4! 包xe4 20. Exe4 目fe8 21. Ece1

After the exchange of knights the black position looks even more endangered: the pawn on e7 is under massive attack.

### 21....創8

21.... 違f6 does not solve the problems. White plays 22. 逸xf6 exf6 23.d6 \u00exxe4 24. \u00exxe4 \u00exd8 d8 25.h3!+- with the threat of \u00exe7.

Diagram 11-3

### 22.\$h6!

This is even better than 22.≝e3 \arrow ac8. After the exchange of the dark-squared bishops, the black castled position will also be weakened.

### 22...₩d6

Black gives up the e7-pawn.

22... 違d3 23. 響xd3 違xh6 would lose to 24. 違a4. While after 22... 違xh6 23. 豐xh6 營f5 there follows 24. 邑h4 g5 25. 邑g4+-.

### 23.\$xf8 \arrow xf8

### 24.骂xe7 骂ac8 25.營d4+-

The pawn on a7 is also under attack. White is winning.

### 25...増d8

25...增xe7?? 26.骂xe7 骂c1† 27.奠d1+-

### 26.h3

In an open position, an escape square for the king can be very important.

### 26...骂c1 27.骂xc1 營xe7 28.營xa7 營e5

Or 28...增g5 29.豆e1 營d2 30.營e3 營xb2 31.營e7 舀f8 32.d6+-.

### 29.營b6 営d6 30.營f2

With two extra pawns, the game is an easy win.

### 30....象b5 31.筥e1 凹f6 32.凹g3

Intending ₩e5.

32...,罩d8 33.營c7 皇d7 34.d6 營h4


Strategy 2



机口油出入制剂用"能力服化

#### 

Å

h

# Diagram 11-6

5



34... 逸xh3 is followed by 35. 逸xf7† 查h8 (35... 查f8 36. 鬯e7†; 35... 查g7 36. 逸e6†) 36. 鬯xd8†+-.

# 35.≝e4 ₩g5 36.≜xf7†!

In time trouble White avoids the complicated variation after 36. Ee7 Ec8.

# 

37.\$e6

#### یر 1–0

# Diagram 11-4

# V.Smyslov – R.Balinas

Tel Aviv Olympiad 1964

White controls the centre. He now offers an exchange of bishops in order to weaken Black's king position.

# 1.冀d4 d6 2.②d5

A good place for the knight. If Black later plays e6, he will weaken the d6-pawn.

# 2...營d8 3.皇xg7 空xg7 4.f4

White prepares an attack on the kingside.

4....ge6 5.f5 gxd5

# Diagram 11-5

How should White capture on d5?

# 6.exd5!

White obtains a semi-open e-file and can attack the e7-pawn. Since Black must look out for his king, he, for his part, has very little time to aim for genuine counterplay down the semi-open c-file.

6.cxd5?! 瞥b6† 7.邕f2 邕ac8 would have allowed Black counterplay on the c-file.

# 6....曾b6† 7.邕f2 f6 8.邕c3!?

White brings the rook into the attack via the third rank. The simple move 8. Ze1 also looks very good.

# 8....莒ac8 9.營e4 莒c7 10.營g4 營c5 11.b3 Diagram 11-6

White wants to play  $\Xi$ g3 in order to provoke the move ...g5.

# 11...g5?!

11...b5! was necessary. After 12.罩g3 (12.fxg6! hxg6 13.罩g3 g5 14.營f5 with the threat of 罩xg5† is better) 12...bxc4 13.fxg6 Black can reply 13...h6!.

12.h4

The threat is hxg5 followed by 🖉g6†.

14... 置g8 15. 置g6† 查f8 16. 置xh6† 查f7 17. 置g3 g4 18. 置h5† 查f8 19. 置xg4+- 罩xg4 20. 置xg4 b5 21. h5 置e3 22. 置f4

Two pawns up, White has nothing against an ending.

```
22..., 營d3 23. 宮f3 營d1 † 24. 空h2 bxc4 25.h6
```

```
This pawn decides the game at once.
```

- 25...罩c8 26.h7 空f7 27.凹h6 罩h8
- 1–0

The second advantage of the semi-open file is that your opponent cannot organize his rooks in order to initiate an exchange of rooks. We do not open this file **until the moment comes when it is to our advantage**; for example, when we have already doubled our major pieces on the semi-open file. One of the typical plans is to advance our pawns in order to force the exchange of the pawn which is under attack, thereby opening the file.

#### Diagram 11-7



At first glance White cannot exploit the semi-open c-file. But Keres finds an inventive plan to support the c1-rook.

# 1.**②h**4!

White opens the long diagonal for his bishop. It will be a powerful aid to the rook.

# 1...**&d**7

1.... 追b7 is met by 2.b4! (or first 2.句f5).

# 2.e3!

White prepares a breakthrough in the centre. There is also the threat of  $\underline{W}h5^{\dagger}$ .

If 2.b4?!, instead, then Black gets sufficient compensation for the exchange after 2...∕∂xb4 3.âxa8 ∰xa8.

# 2....0-0 3.d4± exd4 4.exd4 邕c8



Strategy 2



#### Diagram 11-8

#### 5.dxc5!

White opens the game even more.

After 5.d5 Keres saw that Black could play 5...②d4 6.彙xd4 cxd4 7.豐xd4 ②b5 followed by ...③d6 with some defensive chances. (Even better is to first play 7...彙a3 and only after 8.邕cd1 to then play 8...④b5.)

#### 5...b5 6. 2 c3 f5

6....違xc5 is bad, due to 7. 2xb5.

7.邕c2!

This is even stronger than  $7.2673 \pm 16$ .

#### 

8.... b8 runs into 9.c6+-.

And if 8.... 4 e5, then 9.gxh4+-.

9.gxh4!

The simplest solution. The threat is now \$\overline{xc6}\$.

9.\$xc6 \$xc6 10.\mathbf{z}xd8 \vert \mathbf{Z}xd8 would still leave Black with some practical chances.

# 9...②e6 10.②xb5 ②xc5 11.③d6+- 莒e7 12.③xc8 營xc8 13.盧a3 ②e4 14.盧xe4 fxe4 15.盧xe7 ④xe7 16.莒xd7

1–0

In the exercises you should try to exploit a semiopen file. If you are not sure that you have found a real solution to the problem, then just indicate what you believe to be the best move. Making a decision is important! Then you can compare your variations with the solution in the book. Practice makes perfect!

# Exercises













24125.1.43 V.3

# Exercises



응 고 등 "중, 가장, 옷 가 옷, 옷가 듣고"



# Solutions

# V.Smyslov – L.Shamkovich

USSR Ch., Baku 1961

#### 1.e5!

(1 point)

You also get 1 point for 1.f5!? intending to meet 1...@e5?! with 2.@f4 gxf5 3. $\Xi$ d5 @b2 4. $\Xi$ f2 @a1 5.@e6+-.

Neither  $1.\mathbb{Z}d2$   $\mathbb{Q}d4\pm$  nor 1.a3 ( $\Delta b4$ )  $1...\mathbb{Q}d4\pm$  would be so strong.

#### 1....✿h8

1...fxe5 is followed by 2.句c7 鬯c8 3.皇d5† 堂h8 4.句e6±.

(another 1 point for this variation) If 1...dxe5, then 2.鬯xc5±.

#### 2.②c7 凹d7 3.exd6 exd6 4.②b5±

White increases the pressure on the backward d6-pawn.

#### 4...邕fe8 5.鬯f2 匂d4?!

5... $\Xi$ e6 is answered by 6.f5 gxf5 7. $\underline{\mathbb{W}}$ xf5± and Black would then have another weakness on f6.

6.<sup>2</sup>/<sub>1</sub>xd4+- <sup>2</sup>/<sub>2</sub>xg2 7.<sup>2</sup>/<sub>2</sub>xg2 cxd4 8.<sup>2</sup>/<sub>2</sub>xd4 <sup>2</sup>/<sub>2</sub>e3 9.<sup>2</sup>/<sub>1</sub>fd1 <sup>2</sup>/<sub>2</sub>e6 10.<sup>2</sup>/<sub>1</sub>1d2 h5 11.c5 d5 12.b4 a6 13.a4 <sup>4</sup>/<sub>2</sub>g7 14.<sup>2</sup>/<sub>2</sub>4d3 h4 15.gxh4 <sup>2</sup>/<sub>2</sub>h8 16.<sup>2</sup>/<sub>2</sub>xe3 <sup>2</sup>/<sub>2</sub>xe3 17.<sup>2</sup>/<sub>2</sub>f2 <sup>2</sup>/<sub>2</sub>b3 18.c6 <sup>2</sup>/<sub>2</sub>c8 19.<sup>2</sup>/<sub>2</sub>c5 <sup>2</sup>/<sub>2</sub>xa4 20.<sup>2</sup>/<sub>2</sub>e7<sup>†</sup> <sup>4</sup>/<sub>2</sub>h6 21.<sup>2</sup>/<sub>2</sub>g2 1-0

#### Ex. 11-2



Skopje Olympiad 1972

#### 1.exd5

(1 point)

This move is stronger than 1.cxd5 a5±. White now obtains an object of attack on the semi-open e-file – the e7-pawn.

1...a5 2.包c2! 邕c7 3.包a3 鬯c8?! 4.包b5 邕b7 5.包xd6! exd6 6.鬯xf6+- 鬯d8 7.鬯xd8 邕xd8 8.皇f1 邕e7 9.邕e1 邕de8 10.邕xe7 邕xe7 11.f3 堂g7 12.堂f2 堂f6 13.邕b1 邕a7 14.空e3 g5 15.堂d4 h5 16.邕e1 邕e7 17.邕xe7 堂xe7 18.h4 gxh4 19.gxh4 包d7 20.f4 f5

#### 21.奠e2 约f6 22.奠d3 1-0

#### Ex. 11-3

A.Yusupov – I.Stohl

Bundesliga 1995

## 1.筥fe1!

(1 point)

White takes control of the e5-square. 1.罩fd1 is answered by 1...遵e5=.

But 1.\mathbb{Z}ce1!? (also 1 point) e6 2.\mathbb{Z}e4 \mathbb{B}b6 3.\mathbb{Z}g4 would also be good for White.

#### 1...₩d6?!

1...e6!? would be better, although White has compensation after 2.骂cd1 鬯b6 3.鬯g4 空h8.

#### 

Black has weaknesses on e7 and c4.

#### 3....**垫h**8?

3...e6 would be correct: 4.创f6† 查h8 5.罩xc4 罩ad8 and if 6.罩g4, then 6...營d3 and Black can hold the position.

#### 4. ②xe7 ②xe7 5. 흹xe7 莒fc8 6. 莒e4

Better is 6.豐xb7 罩ab8 7.豐d5 罩xb2 8.罩xc4±.

#### 6...b5

6...\$xb2 can be met by either 7.\ar{\mathbf{Z}}cxc4\pm or the more ambitious 7.\ar{\mathbf{Z}}ce1!?.

Black ought to seek counterplay with 6...f5, e.g. 7.罝exc4 (7.罝e2± is safer) 7...罝xc4 8.罝xc4 鬯e6 9.罝c7 鬯e1† 10.沓h2 逸e5† 11.g3 逸xc7 12.逸f6†∞.

#### 7.\argue{2}ce1 \argue{2}e8

7....違xb2? 8.骂g4+-

#### 8.筥1e2!?±

White plans 9.罩g4 營h5 10.彙f6. But the immediate 8.罩g4 would be even stronger: 8...營h5 9.罩e3 f5 10.營d5!+-



A.Yusupov – G.Estevez

Cienfuegos 1979

1.e5!

(2 points)

# Solutions

A THE TOP AND A TOP

1.營xd6?! ②c5 2.e5 營xd6 3.exd6 would not be so good, in view of 3...罩fd8 (intending ...a5 followed by ...罩c6=) 4.違g2 違xg2 5.堂xg2 a5! 6.②c2 罩c6=.

If  $1.\Xi e3$  (1 consolation point) 1...  $\Box c5$ 2.&g2, then 2...  $\boxtimes c7\pm$  and here 3.  $\boxtimes xd6$ ?? would lose to 3...  $\Xi fd8$ .

#### 1...a5!

1...心c5 2.exd6 營d7 is followed by 3.心d5!? (or 3.心d3!? 鬯c6 4.堂h2±) 3...違xd5 4.cxd5 e5! 5.違xd7 exd4 6.違xc8 dxc3 7.d7 莒d8 8.岂c1±.

# 2. විc2 d5

2...②c5!? is met by 3.exd6 營d7 4.ⓐa3± (Δⓓb5).

# 3.cxd5

3. 14 e3! is more precise: 3... 별c7 4. 포c2! 별c5 5. 별xc5 포xc5 6. 포cd2+-.

# 3....邕xc3?!

3....拿xd5! would be more stubborn: 4.包e3 拿f3! 5.罩xc8 鬯xc8 6.鬯xd7 拿xd1 7.鬯xd1 罩d8 8.鬯e1±

4.豐xc3 象xd5 5.乞e3 象f3 6.罝d6 象b7 7.營d3!+- 象c8 8.象xe6! fxe6 9.豐xg6† 空h8 10.營xh5† 空g8

11.營g6† 空h8 12.營h6† 空g8 13.営xe6 1-0

# Ex. 11-5

# G.Lisitsin – M.Botvinnik

Leningrad 1932

# 1...exd4!

(1 point)

As in Ex. 11-2! Black wants to attack the e2-pawn.

2.營d2 皇f8 3.罝e1 罝e8∓ 4.h4 皇h3 5.皇f3 罝e7 6.包h2 罝ce8 7.空h1 皇e6 8.b3 包b4 9.皇g2 皇d5 10.包f3 罝f7 11.空h2 皇d6 12.皇h3 營d8 13.罝ab1 罝fe7 14.包g1 皇c7 15.包a3 皇b7 16.皇g2 皇xg2 17.空xg2 包d5 18.包c2 營d6 19.包a3-+

See Ex. 11-6.

# Ex. 11-6

## G.Lisitsin – M.Botvinnik

Leningrad 1932

Everything is in place for an attack on the white king.

#### 1....De3†!

(2 points)

# 2.✿h1

The knight is taboo: 2.fxe3 鬯xg3† 3.堂f1 dxe3—+

# 2....乞g4

2...增d5† is also good: 3.幻f3 增f5! 4.fxe3 曾h3† 5.空g1 鬯xg3† 6.空h1 罩e4! 7.dxe4 罩xe4 8.罩g1 罩xh4† 9.心xh4 鬯h2#

## 3.營f4

If 3.查g2, then 3... 包xf2 4.查xf2 豐xg3† 5.查f1 鼍e5 6. 包c4 鼍f5† 7. 包f3 豐h3† 8.查g1 魚h2† 9. 包xh2 豐g3† 10. 查h1 鼍f2-+.

3....鬯xf4 4.gxf4 ②xf2† 5.堂g2 ②xd3 0–1

# Ex. 11-7

# G.Goldberg – M.Botvinnik

USSR Ch., Moscow 1945

# 1...e4!

(2 points)

The simplest and at the same time the most thematic solution. Only 1 consolation point for more abstract moves such as 1...a5 or 1... f4 (why should Black weaken the e4-square?). **2.e3** 

2.dxe4? loses the queen after 2...Øf3<sup>†</sup>.

2...①f3† 3.皇xf3 exf3 4.豐e1 罩c8!? 5.d4 cxd4 6.exd4 皇g5-+ 7.d5 皇f7 8.a3 罩fe8 9.豐f1 皇xc1 10.罩xc1 ②xd5 11.②d3 ②xc3 12.皇xc3 皇xb3 13.②f4 皇c4 0-1

#### <u> P.Keres – V.Korchnoi</u>

USSR Ch., Moscow 1952

#### 1.c5!

(1 point)

A typical attack down a semi-open file.

## 1...皇d7 2.幽a3! 包e8?!

2...dxc5 is followed by 3.包e5! 包c6 4.幽b3† 垫h8 5.包xd7 包xd7 6.鬯xb7+-.

There would be more chances for a defence after 2...鬯c7 3.cxd6 exd6 4.鬯xd6 鬯xd6 5.岂xd6 皇c6±.

3.\$g5!?± \$e6?!

Better is 3... \$c6±.

4.cxd6 <sup>公</sup>xd6 5.罩xd6! <sup>幽</sup>xd6 6.<sup>幽</sup>xa5+b6 7.<sup>幽</sup>a4 <sup>象</sup>d7 8.<sup>幽</sup>h4 <sup>象</sup>xc3 9.<sup>®</sup>xe7 <sup>幽</sup>e6 10.bxc3 <sup>四</sup>fe8 11.<sup>公</sup>d4 1-0

#### Ex. 11-9

**R.Vaganian – A.Yusupov** German Cup 1992

#### 1...b3!

(2 points)

In this way Black gets a strong initiative on the queenside.

Perhaps it would be slightly more accurate to first play 1...&xg5! (1 point) 2.hxg5 and only now 2...b3! (another 1 point) 3.axb3 (3.cxb3 axb3 4. $@xd4 @xg5\mp$ ) 3...axb3 4.cxb3  $\&c5\mp$ . Black was afraid of a sacrifice on f6, but it does not work: 5. $@f6\dagger$ ? gxf6 6.gxf6 @h87.@xd4 @xb3 8.@a4 &xd3 9.@xc6 &xe2-+

#### 2.cxb3

If 2.豐xd4, then 2...bxc2 3.罩c1 (3.豐xa4 象xd3 4.象xe7 豐xe7 5.豐xc6 象xe2-+) 3...象xg5 4.hxg5 豐xg5 5.罩cxc2 象xd3! 6.豐xd3 罩xc2 7.罩xc2 豐xg4 8.f4 g5干.

However, better is 2.ģxe7 xe7 3.cxb3 ģxd3 (3...axb3 4.≝xd4) 4.\Zd2∓.

#### 2...axb3 3.axb3 h5?!

Stronger is 3... xg5!? 4.hxg5  $2c5\mp$ , transposing to the line given in the first note.

## 4.**②h**2

4.ģxe7!? ∰xe7 5.ᡚh2 ᡚc5 6.∰xd4 ᡚxb3 7.∰a4 ĝxd3 8.∰xc6 ĝxe2∓

#### 4....\$xg5 5.hxg5 包c5

## 6.≝xd4?!

No better is 6. <sup>™</sup>h4 <sup>≜</sup>xd3 7.<sup>□</sup>ee1 <sup>⊕</sup>xb3∓.

But White can limit Black's advantage with 6.⊙f3 ⊙xb3 7.⊑d1 ₩b6∓.

#### 6... 2xb3 7. 2a4 盒xd3 8. 2xc6

8.Ξee1? 凹b6 (8...公xa1 9.凹xc6 公c2 10.Ξd1∓) 9.Ξa3 Ξc2 10.Ξe3 (10.Ξxb3?? 凹xf2† 11.空h1 凹xg2#) 10...Ξc1† 11.它f1 \$\overline{2}\$xf1 12.\$\overline{2}\$xf1 公d2-+

## Ex. 11-10

# A.Yusupov – T.Petrosian

Vrbas 1980

#### 1.e5!

(2 points)

The time has come to open the semi-open f-file and to bring the doubled white rooks into the game with great effect.

Other moves are less dangerous for Black:

a) 1.\$e6!? (1 point) 1...c6±

b) 1.ģf5 (1 consolation point) 1...ģxf5 2.xf5 c6±

# 1...dxe5?

1...fxe5? is also bad: 2.\Ef7 g6 3.\Exe7 gxh5 4.dxe5! \Exf1 5.exd6\+-

1...f5 would an improvement: 2.e6± (2.&xf5 Ξxf5! 3.Ξxf5 g6 4.₩xh6 gxf5 5.Ξxf5 ₩g7=)

#### 2.dxe5 fxe5 3.邕f7?

White does not exploit his opportunity and spoils his chance of taking down such an illustrious opponent. 3. 亞xf8†! was correct: 3...亞xf8 4. 豐xe5 魚c5 5. 豐xe7 魚xe7 6. 亞xf8† 魚xf8 7. 魚xa5+- (Petrosian)

# 3...邕xf7 4.邕xf7 營c5±

And Black obtains counterplay. The game later ended in a draw.

# Solutions

## Ex. 11-11

#### G.Lorscheid – A.Yusupov

German Cup 1993

#### 1.... 2xg3!

(1 point)

#### 2.fxg3 Ixe3 3.包e6 留f6

3...營b8 would also be good, as would 3...營e7.

#### 4.<sup>11</sup>/<sup>11</sup>/<sup>11</sup>/<sup>11</sup>/<sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub> 7.<sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>/<sub>1</sub><sup>11</sup>

And White resigned, in view of 8.堂f1 包e3† 9.堂e1 罩xg2†-+.

#### Ex. 11-12

#### M.Botvinnik – H.Golombek

Moscow Olympiad 1956

#### 1.cxd5!

(2 points)

In chess there are no absolute rules. You must always think along concrete lines. In this case it is clearly better to capture with the c-pawn, since the black knight has strayed into trouble.

1.exd5  $2f5\pm$  only gets you 1 consolation point.

#### 1...Øb5

1...e5 2.dxe6 ∅xe6 3.ዿxg7 ∅xg7 4.∰xd6+is also hopeless.

#### 2.皇xg7 垫xg7 3.邕c1

Black resigned, since after 3...鬯d7 4.a4 心c7 5.鬯c3† he loses the knight.

(another 1 point for this variation)



If you scored less than **10** points, we recommend that you read the chapter again and repeat the exercises which you got wrong.

# CHAPTER 12

# Contents

- ✓ The 50-move rule
- Coordination of the pieces
- ✓ The correct corner and the wrong corner
- ✓ The five phases of this endgame

# Mate with bishop and knight

Delivering mate with bishop and knight is the hardest task when playing against a lone king. Even some grandmasters have failed, when short of time, to deliver mate within 50 moves. In a practical game 35-40 should suffice, but that leaves only a small cushion for possible errors.

There is a second reason why you should study this ending in depth. By doing so, you learn to coordinate the efforts of different pieces. This coordination of pieces is also very important in other phases of the game.

#### The correct corner and the wrong corner

Normally we can only deliver mate with bishop and knight when the opposing king is in the correct corner. If we have a light-squared bishop, then the corner squares a8 and h1 are the correct ones. We call the other corners, a1 and h8, the *wrong corners*. The strategic goal is to drive the opposing king into the correct corner.

# The five phases of this endgame

1) The coordination and centralization of your pieces.

2) Forcing the king into the corner or to the edge of the board.

3) The 'W-manoeuvre' by the knight - driving the king out of the wrong corner.

4) Constructing a prison for the king and making it smaller and smaller. (The king is confined in the correct corner.)

5) Delivering mate.

The following example shows us the various phases of this endgame.

#### Diagram 12-1

Based on

G.Levenfish

*Phase 1 – The coordination and centralization of your pieces.* 

We must first coordinate our pieces and, if necessary, also centralize them.

## 1.**\$f**7

# 1.... 魯c6 2. ②b3 魯d6 3. 皇c4

The knight and bishop are now well coordinated. The knight is taking the dark squares away from the opposing king, and the bishop, of course, the light ones. To fulfil this task, the knight has to be on a light square.

## 3.... 堂 c6 4. 堂 b4 堂 d6 5. 包 c5 堂 e5

Or 5...堂c6 6.②e4 and the black king now has to head towards the wrong corner: 6...堂d7 7.堂c5 堂e7 8.堂d5 and White has finished the first phase.

## 6. ආ c3 ආf4 7. ආd4 ආf5 8. එදෙ

The first goal has been achieved. Our pieces are in the centre and well coordinated. 8...**\$g6** 

## Diagram 12-2

Phase 2 - Forcing the king into the corner or to the edge of the board.

We shall now drive the opposing king into the corner. It is best to get it directly into the correct corner, but often we cannot stop the king going into the wrong corner.

By 8...  $\stackrel{1}{2}$  g6 the black king heads into the wrong corner and we can't prevent it.

8...\$\$f4?! would make our task easier, because we could drive the king directly into the correct corner. We would then be able to skip part of *Phase 3 – driving the king out of the wrong corner*: 9.\$\$e6 \$\$f3 10.\$\$f5 \$\$f4 11.\$\$g6 \$\$f3 12.\$\$c5.

Phase 4 – Constructing a prison for the king and making it smaller and smaller.

White sets up a barrier against the black king, so that it cannot head into the wrong corner: 12...堂g4





rightarrow g2 Phase 4 – Prison for the king and the prison walls move in closer 19. 包e5 查g3 20. 包g6 查g2 21. 皇g4

White has constructed a prison for the black king. In the main variation we shall look in more 22.鼻f3 杏e1 23.切f4 杏f1 24.鼻e2† 杏g1 25.杏f3 29.\$f3#.

b) 15... h5 16. ge6 ch4 17. h5 dg3 18. gd5 堂h4 19.堂f4 堂h5 20.遑f7† and the bishop takes the light squares away from Black! We then continue as in the main line.

#### 12. ②g5† 亞h8 13. 黛d3 亞g8 Diagram 12-5

Phase 3 – The 'W-manoeuvre' of the knight – driving the king out of the wrong corner.

The first task is to chase the king out of the wrong corner. The knight will deprive it of dark squares, the bishop of light squares. Typically the moves of the knight form the letter 'W'.

14.幻f7 南f8 15.皇h7 南e8 16.幻e5

120

13. 2e6 查h4 (13... 查f3 14. 皇h5† leads immediately to a reduction in the size of the prison) 14. 空e4 空g4 15.空e3 空g3 16.皇h5

White will make the prison even smaller, as in the main variation, and then deliver mate.

# 9.\$e5 \$e7 10.\$f5

The white king is cooperating very actively and takes squares away from the opponent.

#### 

#### Diagram 12-3

# 

If the black king tries to remain on the squares h5 and h6, the white plan does not change. The goal remains the same - drive the opposing king into the correct corner: 11...查h5 12.鼻e6 查h4 13.鼻f5 查h5 14.包f2 查h4 15.包g4

# Diagram 12-4

The knight takes the dark squares away from the king! There are now two lines:

a) 15... \$\product g3 16. \$\product g5 \$\product g2 17. \$\product f4 \$\product f1 18. \$\product e3\$



с

a

e

g h



Diagram 12-3

8

7

#### Diagram 12-6

From this position, passive defence poses no problem for White. After 16... 查f8 17. 包d7† 查e8 18. 堂e6 堂d8 19. 堂d6 堂e8 20. 奠g6† 堂d8 21. ②c5 the 'W-manoeuvre' is over.

#### Diagram 12-7

Phase 4 – Set up a prison for the king and then make it smaller.

White now constructs a prison for the black king: a8, b8, c8 and d8. 23... 空c8 24. 遑d7† (A neat trick, but a waiting move is also possible – 24.\$\mathbf{2}a4 \briangled d8 25.约b7† 查c8 26.查c6 查b8 27.查b6 查c8 28.遑b5 堂b8 29. 24. . 空b8 (24... 空d8 25. 2b7#) 25. \$c6 Making the prison smaller; the black king 

#### Diagram 12-8

Phase 5 – Delivering mate.

Now the black king is confined to only two squares. Notice the ideal position of the white king! 27. 查b6 (or 27. 奠c8 查a7 28. 包d7 查a8 29. 包e5 查a7 30. ②c6† 查a8 31. 違b7#) 27... 查b8 28. ③a6† 查a8 29.\$c6#

Let's return to diagram 12-6 and examine the other king move.

#### 16.... **\$d8**

Active defence. The king tries to run away and head for the wrong corner - a1.

#### 17. \$e6 \$c7 18. \$d7

White continues with the 'W-manoeuvre'. The knight takes away more dark squares. White is creating a prison for the king.

Also possible is 18.奠c2 垫b6 19.约d3 垫b5 20. 20+ and the black king cannot get through this barrier.

# 18... 空c6 19. 皇d3!

Diagram 12-6



Endgame 2





## Diagram 12-9

*Phase 4 – Set up a prison for the king and then make it smaller.* 

The king cannot get out. The prison is now made smaller until the king is locked up in the corner.

#### 19.... 杏c7 20. 奠b5 杏d8 21. 乞f6

Or 21. 包e5 會c7 22. 包c4.

# 21.... 杏c7 22. 包d5† 杏d8 23. 杏f7 杏c8 24. 杏e7

#### Diagram 12-10

The prison has shrunk; there are only three squares available.

# 26...堂a7 27.皇c8 堂b8 28.乞e7 堂a7 29.堂c7 Diagram 12-11

Phase 5 – Deliver mate.

The king occupies the key square and Black is quickly mated.

#### 29.... 查a8 30. 皇b7† 查a7 31. 纪c6#

In the exercises we shall repeat some of the elements of this ending. In some positions you will have to mate in 5 moves (#5).

In order to properly master this subject, I really recommend that you play some training games with this distribution of material.

# Exercises

**▶**Ex. 12-4 **◄** 

#5

\*\*

Λ

**▶**Ex. 12-1 **《** #5 Δ \*\* Ċ 8 È 7 ¢ 6 5 4 3 2 1 f b d а с e g h Δ **>**Ex. 12-2 **≪**  $\star\star$ 8 7 6 5 Ej 4 3 Ŕ de 2 1 b d f с e g h a **▶**Ex. 12-3 **《** \*\* Δ 8 Ż 7 E. <u>è</u> 🗳

d

f

e

h

g

6

5

4

3

2

1

а b с



# Exercises



次生に主、利益者でいてますこの



124

# Solutions

Ex. 12-1 Mate in 5 moves. 1.\$e6! \$a7 Or 1... \$\$\$ 2. \$\$\$ \$\$ \$\$ 3. \$\$ a6\$ \$\$ a8\$ 4.\$d5#. (1 point)

2.堂c7! 查a8 3.堂b6! 查b8 4.包a6† 查a8 5.\$d5#

(another 1 point)

## Ex. 12-2

Constructing a prison. 1. 2d2!

(1 point) Also good is 1.皇c7 垫b3 2.纪d6 垫b4 3. 皇b6+- (2 points for this variation). 1.... 空c3 2. 鼻d6

(another 1 point) 2.... 堂c2 3. 皇b4 堂d1 4. 包f3 堂c2 5. 包d4+ Prison.

Ex. 12-3 The knight's 'W-manoeuvre'.

1. Dg6

(1 point)

(1 point)

1.... 空h6 2. 皇g8 空h5 3. 包e5

(another 1 point)

4... \$2g3 reaches the position of Ex. 12-2, rotated through 90°.

5. 2g4 查h4 6. 查f4 查h5 7. 皇f7† 查h4 8. 2e3

# Ex. 12-4

Mate in 5. 1.\$c1! \$b1

1... 查a1 2. 查c2 查a2 3. 纪e2 查a1 4. 皇b2† 查a2 5.纪c3#

2.@e2! \$a2

2.... 查a1 3. 查c2 查a2 4. ②c3† 查a1 5. 象b2# 3.堂c2 堂a1 4.遑b2† 堂a2 5.包c3# (another 1 point)

#### Ex. 12-5

Constructing a prison. 1.\$c4

(1 point) 1..... \$215 Or 1... \$\$\phia3 2.\$\Dd3 \$\$\phia4 3.\$\$\$c7 \$\$\phia3 4.\$\$\$a5 ∲a4 5.≜d2. 2.皇c7† 魯a4 3.包d3 (another 1 point)

3... \$a3 4. \$a5 \$a4 5. \$d2 \$a3 See Ex. 12-6.

# Ex. 12-6

Making the prison smaller. 1.皇b4†!

(1 point) Or 1. 皇e1 营a4 2. ④b2† 营a3 3. 营c3 营a2 4. 2c4 空b1 5. 皇d2+- (also 2 points). 1. \$22 1.... 南a4 2. ②c5# 2.虛c3 虛b1 3.虛b3

(another 1 point) 3... 查a1 4. 查c2 查a2 5. 包c1† 查a1 6. 皇c3#

# Ex. 12-7

Constructing a prison. 1.\$d6

#### (1 point) 1.... 堂 c3 2. 奠 e7 堂 c2 3. 奠 b4 堂 d1 4. 幻 f3 堂 c2 5. 2 d4†

(another 1 point)

(1 point)

5...��d1 6.��f3 ��c1 See position Ex. 12-8.

# Ex. 12-8

Making the prison smaller. 1.\$e2

1... 空b1 2. 奠a3 空a2 3. 奠c1 空b1 4. 空d2 空a1 5. 南c2 南a2 6. ④e2 南a1 7. 鼻b2† 南a2 8. ④c3# 2. \$d2 \$b1 3.\$a3 \$a2 4.\$c1 (another 1 point) 4... 2b1 5. 2e2 2a1 6. 2c2 2a2 7. 2c3 † 空a1 8.皇b2#

# Ex. 12-9

# Solutions

Mate in 5. 1.**화f2!** 

e-3

(1 point)

(1 point)

White brings his king up into the key position. 1. 空g3! is equally good. 1... 查h2 2. 皇e6! 查h1 3. ②g3†

Or 3. 2d2.

3...空h2 4.包f1† 空h1 5.皇d5#

(another 1 point)

Ex. 12-10

Mate in 5. 1.**화b3!** 

Or 1.\$c2!.

1.... 空b1 2. 皇e3!

But not 2.②d3?? stalemate! 2...岱a1 3.②c4! 岱b1 4.②a3†! 岱a1 5.皇d4# (another 1 point)

# Ex. 12-11

Firstly, the king must be driven out of the wrong corner. For that the 'W-manoeuvre' is used.

1.冀d4 空b8 2.纪c7

(1 point)

2.... 垫c8 3. 皇a7 垫d8 4. 包d5

(another 1 point)

# 4....\$e8

Or 4...堂c8 5.包e7† 堂d8 6.堂d6 堂e8 7.堂e6 堂d8 8.皇b6† 堂e8 9.包f5+--. 5.堂d6 堂f7 6.包e7 堂f6 7.皇e3

# Ex. 12-12

The end of a study by

# A.Troitzky

1896

Coordination of the pieces. **1.c8=**쇤!!

(1 point)

The threat is ✿c7=. This double attack saves White.

Of course not 2. \$c6? 2a5†-+.

## 2...∕Ūd6

 $3. \Phi c7 =$ 

2.... 创d8 3. 垫c7=; 2.... 垫f6 3. 垫c7=

(another 1 point)

# Scoring



If you scored less than 12 points, we recommend that you read the chapter again and repeat the exercises which you got wrong.

# CHAPTER

# Contents

- ✓ Opening files
- ✓ Supporting the attack
- ✓ The g-file
- ✓ The h-file
- ✓ The f-file
- Combinations involving two files



# Combinations involving files

In this chapter we shall investigate various combinations which exploit either an open or a semiopen file. Of course the major pieces will have an important role to play.

The rooks are especially interested in the opening of files, since it is only then that they can develop their full power.

The strategic goal of line opening consists of the penetration into the opposing camp via the 7th or 8th rank. It is from there that our major pieces can cause the most damage.

An open or a semi-open file leading towards a castled position can become a decisive factor which powerfully supports and speeds up our attack. In many combinations other pieces and pawns also play an important part. Only an assault harmoniously supported by as great a number of attacking units as possible can break though a well organized defence. It is often necessary to act very energetically and actively in order to exploit a favourable moment.

Let's now take a look at some combinations which make use of various open or semi-open files.

#### The g-file

#### Diagram 13-1

A.Beliavsky – E.Bareev

USSR Ch., Minsk 1987

White uses a lovely tactical trick to bring into the attack not only his bishop, but also his queen.

1. 皇h5! 營f8□ 2. 邕xg8† ②xg8 3. 營g3

The threat is the discovered attack  $2g6^{\dagger}$ .

3...<u>\$</u>b5

3...ዿੈe8 4.ዿੈxe8 ≌xe8 would be bad, due to 5.∅g6†+–.

Also 3...创f6 is met by 4.创g6† hxg6 5.鬯xc7 创xh5 6.鬯xc6+-.

## 4.赠h4!

Black cannot stand up to the coordinated attack by his opponent. White prepares the deadly check on g6.

# 4...②f6

Nor are other moves any better:

b) 4... ĝe8 5. ĝxe8 🖞 xe8 6. ĝg6† ĝg7 7. ĝe7 †+-

c) 4...凹h6 5.包f7† 罩xf7 6.皇xf7 凹xh4 7.罩xg8#

#### 5.皇f7!

Black resigned. 5... $\mathbb{E}xf7$  is answered by  $6.42g6^{\dagger}$  with a decisive gain in material.

#### Diagram 13-2

#### A.Yusupov – J.Rubinetti

Toluca Interzonal 1982

Here too, White can use the open g-file for a rapid attack.

#### 1. ��h5! 宮d8 2. ��h6!

2. \$\$g6? hxg6 3.fxg6 f5! is not clear.

2.豐g4 單d7 3.豐h4 (intending 違g6) would also be good: 3...包d3 4.違g6 hxg6 5.fxg6 單ff7 6.豐h7† 查f8 7.豐h8† 查e7 8.gxf7 查xf7 and now White uses the g-file to land a tactical blow with 9.罝xg7†! <sup>(1)</sup>2xg7 10.罩g1+- (P. Wolff).

# 2....莒d7 3.皇xe8 邕xe8 4.鬯h5+- 鬯b8

Or 4...., 臣f8 5. 愈xg7! 鼍xg7 6. 鼍xg7† 峦xg7 7. 鼍g1† 空h8 8. 營g4 and Black cannot defend both g7 and g8 at the same time.

#### 5.\$xg7!

Black resigned. 5...罩xg7 is followed by 6.罩xg7† 垫xg7 7.罩g1† 垫h8 (7...垫f8 8.豐xh7+-) 8.豐f7+- (or 8.豐h6+-).

#### The h-file

The h-file is often opened if the opponent tries to fianchetto his bishop. Situations where the players have castled on different sides are particularly dangerous, because in most cases the rook is still on h1 and can take advantage of the line opening (as in the game Alekhine – Hulscher in Chapter 7, 'The pawn wedge'). Here we shall take a look at another two such situations.



# Tactics 6



#### Diagram 13-3

#### A.Karpov – M.Taimanov

Leningrad 1977

Taimanov prepares a surprise attack.

#### 1....營d4! 2.b6?

Better is 2.\Bb1.

#### 2....Bal 3.Bbl

3.營e2 營xd5 4.閏b5 is followed by 4...④d4! 5.罩xd5 ②xe2 6.g3 罩xf1† 7.空g2 罩b1-+.

## 3.... 2g3†!!

White resigned. After 4.hxg3 there comes 4...\approx a8! and the threat of ...\approx h8# cannot be parried.

# Diagram 13-4

	And the second s		
<b>17 D</b>	- 77 N.T		
V Korisen	$\mathbf{z}_0 = \mathbf{z}_1$ Na	17 http://www.	79179
			Sheet y cu

USSR 1969

White finds an interesting way to open the h-file. 1.營xh7†!! 查xh7 2.g6† 查h8 3.罩g5!!

The threat is  $\Xi$ h5#. But as soon as Black takes the rook, she is mated by hxg5.

1-0

#### The f-file

The f-file is more frequently opened in symmetrical positions and also offers many different tactical possibilities.

#### Diagram 13-5

A.Karpov – V.Salov

Linares 1993

#### 1.g6!

White wants to open files and even sacrifices a pawn to do so.

#### 1...fxg6

1...hxg6 would be bad, on account of 2.營h4† 空g8 3.②g5+-.

# 2.f5 gxf5 3. 2xf5 2d7 4. 2df1 2e5 5. 25f4

Nothing is achieved by 5. ②g5 鬯g4 6. 邕xe5?! due to 6... 鬯xg3 7. 邕xe8 鬯xg2†! 8. 查xg2 邕xe8.

# 5...₩b6

If 5... ②g6, then 6. 罩g4 墓c8 7. 罩xg6 hxg6 8. 鬯xg6 followed by ②g5+-.

# 6. ඔ<u>g</u>5 ඔg6

6... &e7 is met by 7.  $\Im$  f7†  $\bigstar$ xf7 8.  $\Xi$ xf7 and the white rook has a very strong post on the 7th rank: 8... &f8 9. &e4 &e3 10. &xh7† &xh7 11.  $\Xi$ g1+--. 7.  $\Im$  f7† &e3

Diagram 13-6

# 8.₩xg6!

A pretty blow, which decides the game on the spot. 8...hxg6 is followed by 9.\Bh4 and then mate on h8.

1–0

# Diagram 13-7 S.Malyshev – G.Kaidanov

Bled 1997

# 1...¤xf2‼

A typical combination, which demonstrates how to crack open a castled position.

# 2.查xf2 凹h2† 3.查f1 邕e7 4.鬯f5

Other moves lose even more quickly:

a) 4.邕e2 凹h1† 5.囟f2 邕f7† 6.凹f5 邕xf5#

b) 4. Eec1 邕f7 † 5. 杏e1 邕f2 6. 營f1 邕xb2-+

# 4...骂f7-+ 5.鬯f4 h5!

White resigned. The threat is simply ...h5-h4. For example, 6.骂ac1 h4 7.鬯xf7† 堂xf7 8.gxh4 g3-+.

# Combinations involving two files



A typical situation, in which White's own pawn on h7 is protecting the opposing king on h8. But White prepares some file opening.

# 1.∰g3

The threat is ₩g8†.

# 

Black resigned, because after 2...增f5 there follows 3.罩g8† 罩xg8 4.hxg8=暫† 查xg8 5.暨h8#.





#### Tactics 6



#### 

#### Diagram 13-11



#### Diagram 13-9

#### G.Kasparov – E.Pigusov

Riga 1977

Here is an example from an early game by the future World Champion.

#### 1.邕f6! 包g5

1....<sup>2</sup>f8 is met by 2.<sup>™</sup>xh6†!+−.

#### 2. 🛛 xg5! hxg5

2...gxf6 is bad, in view of 3. 2 h5 增f8 4. 2 xh6† 空g8 5. 2 h7 and then 營g3†.

#### 3.₩xg5

#### Diagram 13-10

In return for the exchange White obtains a strong attack. The black rooks are very passively posted and cannot yet take part in the action.

#### 3...∲g8

3...gxf6 loses to 4.營h6† 查g8 5.營h7† 查f8 6.營h8#.

a) 5...g6 6. 營h6 and the threat of exf7† is winning.

b) 5...gxf6 6.e7! f5 7.違xf5 空g7 8.豐g5† 空h8 9.營h6† 空g8 10.營h7#

#### 4.**Wh4 Wa**3

Or 4...響e8 5.e6! gxf6 6.e7! f5 7.違xf5 查g7 8.響g5† 查h8 9.響h6† 查g8 10.營h7#.

5.¤f3!

#### Diagram 13-11

There is no good defence against the two threats of  $2h7^{\dagger}$  (winning the queen) and  $2h7^{\dagger}$  followed by  $2h8^{\dagger}$  (winning a rook).

5...g6 6.皇xg6! 鬯xf3 7.鬯h7† 查f8 8.gxf3 1-0

Diagram 13-12

\_V.Hort – G.Sosonko

#### Combinations involving files

Tilburg 1979

# 1.<u>\$</u>e8!

A double attack: the rook on a4 is attacked and there is also the threat of 2.豐xh7† 查f8 3.豐h8#. 1...②xe8

Now Black loses the queen.

# 2.邕g2 幻f6 3.邕hg1!

3.e5! \Zxe5 4.f4+- would also be good.

Black resigned, on account of 3...鬯xg2 4.鬯xg2† 空f7 5.鬯g7† 空e8 6.鬯h8† 空d7 7.邕g7. The invasion of the seventh rank decides the game quikcly. Black cannot protect e7.

# Diagram 13-13

# A.Planinc – S.Marangunic

Novi Travnik 1969

White utilizes the strength of the two rooks.

# 1.營xg6!! hxg6 2.骂xg6 创h6

2...查h7 would be bad, on account of 3.exf5 约h6 4.鼍xh5 鼍xf5 5.鼍hxh6#.

2...公g5 is followed by 3.豆xg5 茑f7 4.豆gxh5† and now:

a) 4.... \$\$ g7 5. \$\$ g1 \$\$ \$\$ d6 (5... \$\$ f8 6. \$\$ h8#) 6. \$\$ xf5#

b) 4...  $\stackrel{\circ}{2}$ g8 5. $\stackrel{\circ}{2}$ h8 $\dagger$   $\stackrel{\circ}{2}$ g7 6. $\stackrel{\circ}{2}$ 1h7 $\dagger$  transposes into the game continuation.

# 

# 5......ģg8

# 6.**邑h8† 空g7 7.邑5h7† 空g6 8.exf5† 邕xf5 9.邕xd8** 邕xd8 10.逸d3

With a winning ending.

Diagram 13-15

Hartlaub – Testa







## Tactics 6



#### Bremen 1913

# 

If 2... 堂f6, then 3. 營h4† 堂f5 4. 營g5† (or 4. 罩g5† 堂f6 5. 鼍xe5† 堂g6 6. 鼍g5#) 4... 堂e4 5. 鼍e1† 堂f3 6. 營g3#.

2... 垫h6 allows instant mate by 3. 幽h4#.

3.營xe5†! dxe5 4. 愈xe5† f6 5. 愈xf6†! 莒xf6 6. 莒g8#

# Exercises









# Exercises





#### Ex. 13-1

#### \_G.Kallai <u>– A.Yusupov</u>

Swiss Team Ch. 1999

#### 1....≝e4†!

(1 point)

White resigned, on account of 2. 堂xh3 (2. 堂f1 營f3-+) 2...營f3† 3. 堂h2 (3. 營g3 罩h6#) 3... 罩h6† 4. 堂g1 營h1#.

#### Ex. 13-2

S.Palatnik – E.Geller

USSR Cup 1980

White uses the open g-file for a typical combination.

#### 1.\arg\_7†!

1–0

1...堂xg7 is followed by 2.鬯g4† 堂h8 3.鬯f5 and then mate on h7.

(1 point)

#### Ex. 13-3

#### J.Cordovil – S.Garcia Martinez

Siegen Olympiad 1970

#### 1.幻f6†! 峦h8

After 1...gxf6 comes 2.鬯xg4† 垫h8 3.鬯h5† 堂g8 4.邕g1#.

(1 point)

## 2.營xg4 g6 3.h5 空g7 4.hxg6 1–0

4... Ξh8 is met by 5. Ξh7† Ξxh7 6.gxh7† 垫h8 7. 塑g8#.

#### Ex. 13-4

#### L.Goltsov – V.Moiseev

Kaluga 1971

#### 1.@g5†!

(1 point)

#### 1...hxg5

Nothing is achieved by 3.<sup>(m)</sup>xf? (threatening  $\Xih3#$ ), as Black can defend against the mate by  $3...\Xic3$ , leaving White with no more than a perpertual.

2....查g6 3.邕h6†‼

(another 1 point)

#### 3...**&xh**6

Or 3...gxh6 4.\g8#. 4.\h8† \$g6 5.\h7#

#### Ex. 13-5

#### J.Capablanca – R.Raubitschek

New York 1908

#### 1.邕xa7†!!

- (1 point)
- 1.覃xb8†? Ξxb8 2.單f8? would lose to 2...塑d6†.

1.... Wxa7 2. Za5!+- Wxa6

Or 2...邕b7 3.營xb7#.

# (another 1 point)

#### Ex. 13-6

Based on a study by

#### E.del Rio

## 1.**₩a6**!

3.\arraxa6#

(1 point)

1.營c6?? would be very bad, because of 1...띨b8-+.

If 1. 臭c6? then 1... 当b8 2. 營e4 營c8±.

#### **Ex. 13-7**

C.Alexander – F.Marshall

Cambridge 1928

#### 1.¤f4!

(2 points) Nothing is achieved by 1.2g6 \(\mathcal{E}\)e8 (1...\(\mathcal{B}\)xb2\(\alphi\) is also good) 2.2\(\alpha\)xe5 \(\mathcal{E}\)xe5 (or 2...fxe5 3.f6 \(\mathcal{L}\)f8-+) 3.\(\mathcal{E}\)f4 \(\mathcal{L}\)xf5!-+.

# Solutions

1. $extsf{W}$ xf6 (1 consolation point) is only good enough for a draw: 1... $extsf{W}$ xb2! (1... $extsf{E}$ a7? 2. $extsf{Q}$ g6+-) 2. $extsf{W}$ g5†  $extsf{E}$ h8 3. $extsf{W}$ f6†=

#### 1...exf4

After 1...心e6 there comes 2.罩g4† 约g5 3.罩xg5† fxg5 4.f6+-.

(1 bonus point for this variation)

# 2.gxf4

1–0

2... 包e6 loses to 3. 罩g1†, while 2... 空h8 runs into 3. 螢xf6† 堂g8 4. 罩g1#.

# Ex. 13-8

# **P.Johner – L.Steiner** Berlin 1928

# 1.Dh6†!

1-0

(1 point)

1...gxh6 is followed by 2.奠xh6! 營xh6 (2...鬯e7 3.鬯g3†+--; 2...鬯d6 3.鬯xf7†+--) 3.營xf7†+--.

(1 bonus point for this variation) If 1...查h8, then 2.②xf7† 查g8 3.鬯g3 鬯e7 4.②h6† 查h8 5.骂f7+-.

# Ex. 13-9

A.Sandrin -- N.Dragun Noordwijkerhout 1980

# 1.₩xg6†‼

(1 point)

1.\Exf7! also wins, but the move in the game is even more forcing.

Black resigned, as 1...fxg6 is followed by 2.置f8† 垫h7 3.置1f7† 垫h6 4.置h8† 垫g5 5.h4#.

(another 1 point for this variation)

Ex. 13-10

N.Rossolimo – N.N.

Paris 1944

# 1.≝xh6†‼

# 1....**\$**xh6

1...gxh6 2.②f6† 垫h8 3.罩g8#

2.宫h1† ��g6 3.��f4!

(another 1 point)

(1 point)

White threatens \$h5†.

3...₩e6

If 3...②xe5, then 4.\$h5† \$h6 5.\$xf7#.

## 4.**¤h**8!

(another 1 point)

But not 5.禽h5† in view of 5...空h7 6.龛xf7† 鬯h6†=.

Black cannot parry the threat of mate by \$h5# and so he resigned.

# Ex. 13-11

Variation from the game

# P.Blatny – A.Yusupov

Bundesliga 1994

# 1....鬯xg2†!!

(1 point)

# 

(1 point)

Of course not 2... 查f5†?? 3. 查h1 罩g1† 4. 罩xg1+-.

3.鼍xh1 蛰f5† 4.蛰f1

4.營g4† 邕xg4† 5.堂f1 邕xh1†-+

# 4....\xh1#

(another 1 point)

Ex. 13-12

J.Berger – R.Koss

Graz 1882

1.營a8† 查h7 2.營h8†!! ②xh8 3.骂g7#

(1 point)

# Scoring

	197		* * * *
		Maximum number of points	s is 23
-	20	points and above	Excellent
	16	points and above	≻Good
	12	points>	Pass mark
		alan ana ana ana ana ana ana ana ana ana	nignianienia

If you scored less than **12** points, we recommend that you read the chapter again and repeat the exercises which you got wrong.

# CHAPTER 14

# Contents

- ✓ The c6/c3 square
- ✓ The d6/d3 square
- ✓ The e6/e3 square
- ✓ The exchange sacrifice
- ✓ Regrouping



# Outposts

This lesson continues the themes dealt with in 'Weak points' (*Build Up Your Chess 1*, Chapter 20) and 'Exploiting weaknesses' (Chapter 4 in this book).

We already know that **a weak square in our opponent's position offers an ideal place to put our pieces**. If we have secure control of such a square (preferably by means of a pawn), we can post a piece on it. Minor pieces (especially knights) are best suited to that task. From this *outpost* we can attack other points in our opponent's set-up.

The most valuable squares for outposts lie deep in the opposing half of the board. In this lesson we shall consider the exploitation of outposts on the 6th (or 3rd) rank.

#### The c6/c3 square

Diagram 14-1

M.Adams – Z.Almasi Dortmund 1998

#### 1.d4!

This strong move leads to a position in which White obtains an outpost on c6.

#### 1...exd4 2. 2xd4 2xd5

If 2... 公xd4 3. 營xd4 公d7, then White can exploit the weakness of the c7-pawn with 4. 遑a5!+-.

3. ②xc6 ②xc3 4.bxc3 幽g5

Or 4...≝d7 5.≝d5±.

# Diagram 14-2

#### 5.營d5± 營xd5 6.exd5

White is clearly better. His knight has found a wonderful position. It controls b8 - a square which is important in the battle for the open b-file – and it is ready, after the exchange of rooks, to attack the a-pawn.

140

## Diagram 14-3

6...g6 7.¤ab1 \$g7 8.c4 \$c3 9.¤ec1 \$f6 10.\$f1! ¤e4 11.g3

11.\Bb7 \Bae8 12.\Bxc7 \Be2±

#### 11.... 違g5 12. 邕c2

Since Black has no counterplay, White quietly prepares to penetrate down the b-file .

# 12....莒ae8 13. 2b8!?

This is probably even better than \Bb7.

# 13...a5 14.包c6 垫g7

After 14.... I a8 White can choose between 15. I b5+- and 15. I b7+-.

# 15. 公xa5 莒a8 16. 莒b5 皇f6 17. 莒a2

The a-pawn decides the game.

# 17....皇c3 18.纪c6 莒xc4 19.a5 莒a6 20.邕c2 邕cxc6

Black gives up the exchange to remove the knight from c6. A minor piece protected by a pawn is often even stronger than a rook.

After 20....\$f6 there follows 21.\Bb3 \Bcxc6 22.dxc6 \$\\$xa5 23.\Ba3+-.

# 21.dxc6 🖾xa5 22.舀b7 🖾a1† 23.空g2 皇a5 24.舀a7

The threat is  $\exists c2-b2-b5$ . After the exchange of rooks the c7-pawn will fall and the win is not far off. So Black resigned.

# The d6/d3 square

We have already seen a classical example, the game Botvinnik – Flohr, (*Build Up Your Chess 1*, Chapter 20). Here is another game in which a bishop is able to occupy this central square.

# I.Bilek – V.Smyslov

Polianica Zdroj 1968

# 1.g3 e5 2.c4 d6 3.\$g2 විc6 4.විc3 g6 5.e3 \$g7 6.වge2 විge7 7.d3

A popular variation of the English Opening. If 7.0–0 0–0 8.d4, then 8...exd4 9.exd4 \$\overline{2}g4 10.h3 \$\overline{2}xe2 11.\$\overline{2}xe2 \$\overline{2}f5 12.d5 \$\overline{2}cd4=.\$

# 7...0-0 8.包d5?!

# 8....<sup>2</sup>xd5 9.cxd5 <sup>2</sup>e7 10.0–0 c6 11.dxc6 bxc6 12.d4?



# Positional play 2





White underestimates his opponent's strong reply. Instead 12. 22? followed by 22 would have been level.

# 12.... 2a6! 13.骂e1 鬯b6 14.dxe5 dxe5! Diagram 14-4

Why does Black worsen his own pawn structure (he now has 3 pawn islands)?

He sees that White has a weak point on d3 and wants to install his bishop there. On the other hand, White cannot attack the weakness on c6 effectively. The black pieces are simply too active.

#### 15.營c2 筥fd8 16.皇d2 皇d3!∓

## Diagram 14-5

The bishop is very well placed here. It is controlling some squares on the 1st rank and thus limiting the possibilities for the white rooks.

## 17.凹c1 创d5 18.包c3 包b4

Threatening ... Dc2.

#### 19. 2a4 凹b5 20. 皇xb4 凹xb4 21. 2c3

21.&xc6?  $\Xi ac8-+$  would be bad.

If 21.勾c5, then 22...e4 22.a3 凿xb2 23.凿xb2 \$\$xb2 24.¤a2 (24.¤ad1 \$\$c3−+) 24...¤ab8∓.

21...e4!

# Diagram 14-6

It is very useful to be able to support the strong bishop with a pawn. White can in practice no longer exchange the bishop, since his opponent would then obtain a dangerous passed pawn.

# 22.骂d1 骂ab8 23.骂d2 c5 24.營e1

White has almost no moves left. 24.a3 is met by 24...\bar{b}3 25.\bar{2}xe4 \bar{2}xc3!-+.

# 24...≜xc3 25.bxc3 ≌a5

After this move, the bishop's position can be made even more secure.  $26.c4 \ \Xi b4 \ 27.\&f1 \mp$  would have been slightly better.

26...c4!-+

#### Outposts

# Diagram 14-7

#### 27.凹d1 営d5

Black prepares to double rooks and penetrate down the b-file.

#### 28.營g4 営db5 29.營f4

29. \$xe4 is bad, because of 29...f5!-+.

29....增a3! 30.罩dd1 罩e8 31.盒h3 罩b2 32.盒d7 罩e7 33.盒g4 凹c5!?

Smyslov does not want to allow his opponent even a sniff of any counterplay.

# 34.凹f6 凹e5 35.凹a6 空g7 36.a4?!

#### Diagram 14-8

Smyslov finds a way to trap his opponent's only active piece.

#### 36...¤c7!

Threatening \B6.

#### 37.a5 邕b5 38.邕a1 邕bc5

The e6/e3 square

Diagram 14-9 A.Yusupov – S.Taulbut

#### Amsterdam 1978

#### 1.e5

White sets his centre in motion.

#### 1....<sup>©</sup>e8 2.<sup>™</sup>c2 f6

A difficult decision. Black was afraid of White's attack on the kingside. But now White has the use of the e6-square.

3.exd6 exd6 4.皇e6† 营h8 5.g4 包g7 6.閏1e2 罩de8 7.罩h3! (△營xg6) 7...f5 8.g5 包xe6

Now White gets a strong passed pawn. But even passive tactics would be no better: 8...毘e7 9.鬯b2 罩ee8 10.罝h6 罩e7 11.h4+- and then h5.

10.dxe6 d5 11.cxd5 營xf4 12.營c3† 空g8 13.營e3


The two connected passed pawns will decide the game.

13...增xe3† 14.置hxe3 f4 15.置e5 f3 16.置d2 置f4 17.d6 1-0

The exchange sacrifice

Something must be done immediately against minor pieces on the 6th/3rd rank, or else they will be supported by other pieces. It is only in rare cases that such pieces can be left alone and that we can work around them. A standard solution is the sacrifice of the exchange for a pawn.

In the next game my opponent should have prepared his occupation of an outpost more carefully.

#### Diagram 14-10

#### V.Milov – A.Yusupov

Bastia (rapid) 2002

White immediately brings his knight to e6, but underestimates the counterplay.

#### 1.②xd4?

1.  $\pm b1 d3 2.$   $4 \pm b1 d3 2.$ 

#### 1...cxd3 2.De6?

Better is 2.<sup>₩</sup>xd3<sup>±</sup>∞.

#### 2....莒c8† 3.空b1 邕xe6!

A typical solution – sacrificing the exchange for the super-strong knight – brings Black a fortunate win here.

#### 4.dxe6 邕c2

The black rook gets an outpost on the 2nd rank only for a moment, but it leads to a surprising counterattack.

#### 5.썝xc2

5.營b4 loses to 5...公c4. 5...dxc2† 6.空xc2 公c4 7.宫c3 營d4 8.宫d1 皇a4† 0-1

#### Regrouping

Although a minor piece is well placed on an outpost, it sometimes blocks an open file and thus gets in the way of the major pieces. So you should not be afraid to move it away and then back or simply to move it off that square.





#### 1.②c4!

This strong move clears the d-file and prevents ...  $\square$  c7. Black cannot hold the position for long.

1....邕f7 2.營d1! 營g5 3.邕d8† 邕f8 4.邕xb8 邕xb8 5.邕d7 h5 6.纪d6+-

And the knight even returns.

#### 6.... 查g8 7. 包xb7 罩f8

7....鬯xe5 8.邕d8†+-

#### 

8.... 2c7 9. 2xc6+-

#### 9. 2xc6 Wxe4 10. Wd2

Black resigned. 10... Wxc6 11. Wg5† leads to mate.





' citati Citati Quanad



146





#### Ex. 14-1

#### L.Gutman – A.Yusupov

German Ch., Altenkirchen 2001

#### 1....Ôd5!

(1 point)

Black redeploys his knight to the even better position c3. After that Black will be able to attack the pawn on e2. Also the knight closes the open c-file, meaning that his opponent doesn't get any counterplay.

#### 2.幻d2

2.₩c4 ₩xe2-+

2... 包c3† 3. 查a1 鬯e3-+ 4. 鬯c4† 查f6 5. 鬯c6† 鬯e6 6. 鬯g2 邕e8 (×e2) 7. 邕e1 鬯e3 8. 鬯g5† 查g7 9. 包f3 鬯f2 10. 鬯g3 邕xe2 11. 鬯xf2

White now resigned. After 11... \alpha xf2 the threat is simply ... \alpha xa2#.

#### Ex. 14-2

A.Yusupov – S.Kindermann Baden-Baden 1992

#### 1.₩e8!

(1 point)

The strongest continuation. The queen enters the attack and supports the strong bishop on e6. The threat is 鼍xg6†. After 1...g5 there follows 2.鼍xg5†! 盦xg5 3.蠻g8† 杳f6 4.蠻xg5#. **1–0** 

#### Ex. 14-3 A.Yusupov – J.Yrjola Chicago 1983

#### 1.②xe4!

(1 point)

The mighty outpost on d3 is destroyed by means of a tactical operation. It is not so strong to first play  $1.\&f7\dagger @g7$  and only then 2.&xe4 (1 consolation point) 2...fxe4  $3.@xe4 \Xi a3$ . See the variation  $3.\&f7\dagger$  in the next note.

#### 1...fxe4 2.營xe4 筥a3 3.ዴe2

 4...豐xf4 5.豐xf4 包xf4 6.鼍xd7± and White still has some technical difficulties.

However 3.違g6! is stronger: 3...鬯c5† 4.查h1 句f2† 5.骂xf2 鬯xf2 6.鬯e7+-

(1 bonus point)

3...鬯c5† 4.空h1 包f2† 5.鼍xf2 鬯xf2 6.鬯d5† 查h8?

6...曾f7! would have been more stubborn: 7.鬯xf7† ��xf7 8.骂xd7†±.

#### 8.罾xd7 罾xe2 9.罾c8† 杏h7

9... 堂g7 is followed by 10. 單d7† 堂f6 11. 凹h8† 堂g5 12. 鬯g8† 堂f4 13. 鬯f7† 堂e3 14. 鬯e7† 堂f2 15. 鬯h4† 堂f1 16. 邕f7†+--.

#### 10.營仔5†!

Black resigned, in view of 10...亞h8 11.罩d8† 亞g7 12.罩d7† 亞g8 13.營f7† 亞h8 14.鬯h7#.

#### Ex. 14-4

Ki.Georgiev – A.Yusupov

Bundesliga 1998

#### 1.De4!

(2 points)

This is how the knight gets to d6. 1.心xd5?? would be bad, due to 1...黛xd5-+.

1....≌e7

If 1...dxe4, then 2.\arXxc4+-.

2. ②d6± 氢xa4 3. 墨xb6 氢b3 4. 墨b7 墨6a7 5. 墨xa7 墨xa7 6. ③c8+- 幽a3 7. ④xa7 幽xa7 8. 墨a1 幽c5 9. 墨b1 ④e6 10. 幽c3 d4 11. exd4 <sup>⑤</sup>xd4 12. e6! 查f8

12...fxe6 is answered by 13.\arXb3+-.

#### 

Black resigned. After 14.... 27 White wins with 15.e7<sup>†</sup>! 2xe7 16. 2h8#.

#### Ex. 14-5

#### K.Langeweg – V.Korchnoi Amsterdam 1972

1...Øc7!

(2 points)

Black brings his knight via d5 to the outpost on c3. 1 consolation point for the solid move 1...  $\pounds$  d5.

#### 2.∰a1 ②d5∓ 3.③xd4? ③xb4 4.âxb4 âxd4 5.âc3

If 5.鬯b1 a5! 6.翕d2 鬯d6 7.翕c1, then 7...鬯b4!-+.

5.營d1?! loses after 5... 違xf2†!.

#### 5...<u>\$</u>xc3

5...ዿc5 would also be good: 6.ዿg7 \arrow fd8 7.ዿxh6 f6 8.\arrow a2 \ge xa2 9.\arrow xa2†∓ (Korchnoi).

6.鼍xc3 鼍xc3 7.鬯xc3 鬯xa4 8.鼍a1 鬯d7 9.鼍a6 鼍c8 10.鬯a3?

Better is 10.₩a1∓.

#### 10...邕c2!

Threatening 罩a2. White resigned, on account of the variation 11.罩xa7 鬯xa7 12.鬯xa7 罩c1† 13.皇f1 皇h3-+.

#### Ex. 14-6

#### A.Yusupov – J.Van der Wiel Graz 1978

#### 1.筥fe1!

(2 points)

This prepares the subsequent forcing play, which will secure the outpost on e6 for his bishop.

1.e6?! is not so good. Black replies 1...查f8, intending 垫e7 and 최d6, and the white passed pawns will be safely blockaded and defused.

1.ዿxg4?! hxg4 2.∆xg4 ②c7 3.d6 ②e6∓ would also be too optimistic.

1....皇xe5 2.皇xg4 皇xb2 3.皇e6† 空h8 4.罝e4 包c7 5.罝b1 皇g7 6.罝xb7 包xd5 7.包f3 包c3 8.罝c4 包e2† 9.空h2 包d4 10.包g5 罝e8

Or 10... \areadb8 11.\areaxb8 \areaxb8 12.\areaxc5 \pm .

11. 皇d5 邕ec8 12. 邕c3! f3 13. 邕e3! 邕ab8 14. 邕xa7 邕e8 15. gxf3 必f5? 16. 必f7† 查h7 17. 邕xe8 邕xe8 18. 皇e4 1-0

#### Ex. 14-7

E.Lobron – A.Yusupov



1.@b5!

(1 point)

White brings his knight to a strong position. But 1.20e4?? would be wrong, because of 1...c4-+.

#### 1...cxd4 2.@exd4!

2. 2d6? allows 2... 2d5!∓ followed by ... 2e3.

2...≌h4

2....罩ed8 3.创d6±

Ex. 14-8

#### L.Plaskota – A.Yusupov

Warsaw (rapid) 2008

#### 1...e4!

(1 point)

Black prepares an outpost on d3. 2.2d4 De5

(another 1 point)

#### 3.b4 包cd3 4.bxa5 c5?!

4... $\Xi$ a6, aiming for a kingside attack with  $\Xi$ h6 and Bh4, would have been even more energetic.

5.包b5 皇f5 6.皇xe5 包xe5 7.莒fd1 莒a6 8.包c3 莒h6 9.皇f1?

Better is 9.g3, although Black keeps attacking chances with 9... @e6.

9...心f3†! 10.gxf3 營g5† 11.會h1 營h4 0–1

#### Ex. 14-9

S.Lputian – A.Yusupov

USSR Ch., Minsk 1987

#### 1....Øf4!

(2 points) The simplest solution. Although the knight was well placed on d3, its regrouping activates the other pieces!

1...e5? would be bad, due to  $2.\textcircled{0}f5\pm$ . And only 1 consolation point for the prosaic solution  $1...\textcircled{2}xa2 2.\textcircled{0}e2 \Xi4d6-+.$ 

After 1...②f4 White resigned the game! On 2.營f3 there is simply 2...鬯xf3 3.gxf3 罩a4-+. And 2.f3 is hopeless too: 2...②xg2! (also good

is 2... $extbf{W}xa2-+$ ) 3. $extbf{W}xg2$   $extbf{W}c5-+$  attacks the rook on a7 and at the same time threatens the discovered attack ... $extbf{E}d2$ <sup>†</sup>.

#### Ex. 14-10

#### G.Timoschenko – A.Yusupov

USSR Ch., Frunze 1981

#### 1.f3!=

T MALANTI,

(2 points)

The knight is very well placed on d3. White has to do something or else Black will support the strong knight and start an attack on the kingside.

An equally good alternative to the game move would be 1.②ce2! 公d7 2.公c1! 公3e5 3.③ce2=.

#### 1....鬯c7

1.... 置cf8 would be simpler: 2.fxe4 鼍xf1† 3. 鼍xf1 鼍xf1† 4. 垫xf1 dxe4 5. 堂e2= and White will play either ②xe4 or ②c2-e1.

#### 2.幻de2

Black had only reckoned with  $2.fxe4 \exists xf1^{\dagger}$ 3. $\pounds xf1 \exists f8^{\dagger} 4.\pounds g1 \triangle f2 5. \exists f1? \triangle xh3^{\dagger}!$ 6.gxh3  $\blacksquare g3^{\dagger}-+$ ; however, instead of 5. $\exists f1?$ White can win with 5. $\triangle e6! \triangle xh3^{\dagger}$  6.gxh3  $\blacksquare g3^{\dagger} 7. \blacksquare g2 \boxplus xe3^{\dagger} 8. \pounds h1 \boxplus xc3 9. \triangle xf8+-.$ 

For that reason Black should meet 2.fxe4 with 2..., 避xc3 3. 鼍xf6 gxf6 4. 豐xd3 豐xd3 5. 鼍xd3 dxe4 6. 邕d2=.

#### 2...exf3?!

Better is 2.... 響e5 3.fxe4 罩xf1† 4. 峦xf1 dxe4 5. ①xe4 ②b2 6. 罩c1 ②2c4 7. 營d4 營xe4 8.bxc4 營xd4 9. ①xd4 ②xc4 10. 空e2=.

#### 3.₩xd3!?

3.\Exf3 \Exf3 4.gxf3 \@e5= 3...fxe2 4.\@xe2±

#### Ex. 14-11

#### A.Yusupov – R.Dautov

Nussloch 1996

#### 1....c4! 2.骂dd1

2.≌d2?! �c5∓

2...ᡚc5

(2 points)

(1 point)

Threatening ... 2a4 or ... 2d3.

3.₩c2□

3.鬯e5? is followed by 3...鬯f8! 4.②e1 幻fd7-+.

3...∕ᡚd3∓

#### Ex. 14-12

## A.Yusupov – G.Kuzmin

USSR 1981

#### 1.De5

The knight is aiming for c6.

#### 2...₩d7?



If you scored less than **10** points, we recommend that you read the chapter again and repeat the exercises which you got wrong.

# CHAPTER

# 15

.

#### Contents

- ✓ The long diagonal
- Opening a blocked diagonal
- ✓ Combinations on other
  - diagonals

# Combinations involving diagonals

In this chapter we shall examine combinations which exploit an open diagonal. At the same time we shall learn how we can open a blocked diagonal by tactical means. Of course the main pieces to profit from an open diagonal are the queen and the bishops. The bishops in particular are dependent on open diagonals to develop their full potential. But the other pieces must also support the attacking efforts by the bishop.

In some combinations based on diagonals we shall see tactical motifs we already know: the discovered attack (a subject which was treated in *Build Up Your Chess 1*, Chapter 7), deflection, etc.

#### The long diagonal

Diagram 15-1

#### V.Vukovic – N.N.

Simultaneous game

An open long diagonal and the weakness of the black squares inspire White to a mating attack.

#### 1.Øf5‼

Threatening Dh6# or Dxe7#.

#### 1...₩xh4

1...gxf5 loses on the spot to 2.骂g4† fxg4 3.鬯xg4†.

If 1..., 幽g5, then 2. 幽c1! 單d1 (2..., 幽xc1 3. ④e7#; 2..., 幽xf5 3. 幽h6!+-) 3. 幽xd1 幽xf5 4. 幽d4 f6 5. 鼻c4<sup>+</sup>+-.

#### 2.營h5!!

The threat is once more 3h6#.

If 2..., 對 xh5, then 3. ②e7#; while 2...gxf5 is followed by 3. 對 xh4 f6 4. 愈c4 †+-.

#### 1–0

152



#### Diagram 15-2

#### O.Panno – B.Malich

Munich Olympiad 1958

#### 1. **奠xe5!** 邕xc2?

This intermediate move is refuted in an instructive way. 1...&xe5 is met by 2.2c6 and White wins at least the exchange, since 2...2b7? loses to 3.2e7<sup>†</sup>.

#### 2. \$xg7! \aracteria xc1 3. \$f6

Threatening ≌h6.

#### 

White has two pieces for the rook and a strong attack on the king.

#### 

Black is losing the d6-pawn as well, so he decided to put an end to his torture.

#### 1–0

#### Diagram 15-3

#### L.Schmid - N.Rossolimo

Heidelberg 1949

#### 1....\arrayseq xg2†!

Black opens the long diagonal with a combination. 2.空xg2 罩xf2†!

White resigned, in view of 2.彙xf2 e3† 3.單d5 響xf2† 4.查h1 響xe1† 5.查h2 響f2† 6.查h1 e2-+.

#### Diagram 15-4

A.Denker – Gonzales 1945

White is well placed here and finds an elegant way to finish the game.

#### 1.②xf7†!

1.營h4! h5 2.g4+- or 1.②xh7! 查xh7 2.營h4† 查g8 3.營h6+- would also be good.

#### 1....乞xf7

1.... 臣太行 is followed by 2.皇太行 公太行 3.營h6!! 營g8 (3... 公太h6 4.f7†+-) 4.臣e1!+- and then 臣e8!.

#### 2.쌭h6!

Black resigned, on account of 2... 三g8 (2... 公xh6 3.f7† 鬯f6 4. 皇xf6#) 3. 皇xf7 鬯f8 4. 皇d5+- 鬯xh6 5.f7† 逗g7 6.f8=鬯#.









#### Opening a blocked diagonal

As we have already seen, sometimes a blocked diagonal can be opened. This very often happens after a pawn sacrifice, but more costly sacrifices are also possible in order, e.g. to activate a queen + bishop battery.

#### Diagram 15-5

#### F.Englund – A.Perfiliev

Stockholm 1926

#### 1.d5!

White breaks open Black's defences.

#### 1...cxd5 2.\arrowxf5! exf5

Black voluntarily allows the opening of the long diagonal. 2...\$g6 3.\Box xg5± would have been better. 3.e6! \Box xd6 4.\$b2+- \Box dd7 5.exd7 \Box xf6 6.dxe8=\Box f

1–0

#### Diagram 15-6

H.Mecking – J.Souza Mendes

Rio Hondo 1966

White prepares for the opening of the long diagonal. **1.h6 g6** 

1...gxh6 is also answered by 2.ge6!+-.

#### 2.ge6 gc8 3.d5!?

3. \$a2, intending c4 and d5, is also good.

#### 

#### 4....≌f7?!

4... 空g8 would be a bit more stubborn: 5. 鬯d4 鬯e7 6.c4 杏f7 7.dxe6† 鬯xe6 8. 鬯g7† 杏e8 9. 鬯xh7 罩c8 10. 罩b1!+-.

#### 5.鬯d4†

5.dxe6 is also good.

#### 5....堂g8 6.c4+-

The queen and bishop battery gives White a powerful attack.

#### 6...杏f8 7.dxe6 筥fa7 8.營h8† 杏e7 9.營g7†?!

There is a simpler win by 9. Wxh7† (Kotov).

#### 9....\$xe6?

9... 堂e8 is a better defensive try, although White retains a strong attack with 10. 營e5.

#### 10.營f6† 查d7 11.骂d1† 杏c7

#### Combinations on other diagonals

And here are two more beautiful and instructive examples of combinations involving a diagonal.





#### 1.**&d6**!

After this quiet move, Black is in zugzwang. He must pin the g2-pawn and control both the e1h4 diagonal and the d8-h4 diagonal. Even a piece as strong as the queen is overloaded with these numerous tasks.

#### 1....營f4†

1...g4 2.違e7†+-; 1...鬯e2 2.違g3#; 1...鬯e1 2.g3†. 2.g3†!

A draw would be the outcome after 2.&xf4 gxf4 3.g3† fxg3† 4.&g2 &g5 5.&xg3=.

#### 2...<sup>w</sup>xg3† 3.<sup>‡</sup>xg3#

#### Diagram 15-8

The end of a study by

#### L.Kubbel

1922

How can White stop the a-pawn? 1.d3!!

He prepares a beautiful mating attack! 1...a2 2.c4†! \$\, c5

2...dxc3 clearly loses to 3.\$xc3.

3.空b7!! a1=鬯

King moves are simply met by 4.\$xd4. 4.\$e7#

In the test which follows, please try to exploit the power of the pieces which move diagonally, the queen and the bishop.













#### Ex. 15-1

#### A.Shashin – N.Dashkevich

Moscow 1954

#### 1.鬯xh7†! 幻xh7 2.臭xh7† 查f8

Or 2.... 2h8 3. 2g6#.

3.@g6#

(1 point)

#### Ex. 15-2

I.Mosionzhik – Y.Gorniak 1969

#### 1. □xf7! 凹xf7 2. 凹xh7 !!

The point of the combination. 2...增xh7 3.f7#

(1 point)

#### Ex. 15-3

#### W.John – F.Saemisch

Berlin 1932

#### 1...②f2†!

With this move Black wins a tempo for the redeployment of the queen.

#### 2.臭xf2 凹f1 † 3.臭g1 凹f3#

(1 point)

#### Ex. 15-4

#### Wachtel – Musiol

Poland 1953

#### 1.¤e5!

(2 points)

A surprising finish. White is threatening 2.骂xc5† bxc5 3.奠c7#. The only way for Black to stop a quick mate is with silly moves like So he resigned.

If 1...,\argin{a}xe5, then 2.\overline{x}xe5 b5 3.\overline{x}c7# or 2...\$e2 3.\$c3#.

#### Ex. 15-5

#### I.Mosionzhik – S.Yerofeev

Serpukhov 2002

#### 1.... 2xd4! 2. Wxd4

2. 2a4 2xf3<sup>+</sup>-+ would have been more stubborn.

2....gxe3†

0-1

(1 point)

#### Ex. 15-6

#### Mann – Papp

Budapest 1956

#### 1....<sup>\\$</sup>xd6!

違f1<sup>†</sup>, on account of 3.罩g2±.

2.罩xd6 罩f3†! 3.gxf3 鼻f1#

(1 point)

Ex. 15-7

#### Kellerman – Freidl

Nuremberg 1955

#### 1....拿e3† 2.空f1

After 2. 空g3 the reply 2... 邕g8† wins. Now comes an elegant finish.

#### 2.... 遵xf3 †! 3.gxf3 皇h3#

(1 point)

#### Ex. 15-8

#### M.Vanka – Skala

Prague 1960

#### 1.b4!

This prepares \$\milesb2.

#### 1....<sup>₩</sup>d8

Or 1.... Wb6 2. Wxf6++-.

#### 

2...含g8 3.遑b2 幻xd5 4.幽g7# 3.奠b2#

(2 points)

Ex. 15-9

#### <u>E.Guttmann</u>

1935

White can force mate. 1.2d6!

(1 point) 1.彙b4? loses to 1...邕c7!, while 1.彙c5? loses to 1...邕d7!. 1...邕f5 2.彙b4!

(another 1 point)

But not 2.違a3? 邕b5-+. 2...邕f3 3.皇c5! 邕f4 4.皇a3!

(another 1 point) 4....**Ξb4 5.\$xb4 \$f3 6.\$c3**#

#### Ex. 15-10

Müller – Volc

1940

White carries out a typical mating combination.

(1 point)

#### Ex. 15-11

S.Malesic – L.Masic Yugoslavia 1965

White exploits the activity of his pieces. **1.2xg6!!** 

(1 point)

(1 point)

 1...fxg6 Or 1...hxg6 2.營h8#.
 2.營e6#

#### Ex. 15-12

P.Gaudenti – Keller

Mending 1987

#### 1.@xe5!

The threat is <sup>(2)</sup>f7#.

#### 1....\array\_xf2†

#### 2.햪h1 h5

If 2... 三h2† 3. 堂xh2 鬯e2†, then 4. 堂h1 (also good is 4. 三g2) 4... 鬯xe4† 5. ②f3† ②d4 6. 奧xd4†+-.

#### 3.包f7† 魯h7 4.邕g7#

(1 bonus point for this variation)

# Scoring Maximum number of points is 17 15 points and above > Excellent 12 points and above > Good 9 points > Pass mark

If you scored less than 9 points, we recommend that you read the chapter again and repeat the exercises which you got wrong.

# CHAPTER 16

#### Contents

- Coordination of the pieces
- 🗸 Queen vs. bishop
- 🗸 Queen vs. knight
- 🗸 Queen vs. two knights
- ✓ Queen vs. two bishops
- Queen vs. bishop and knight



# **Elementary endgames**

In this chapter we shall take a look at some elementary endgames with a queen against one or two minor pieces. No specific theoretical knowledge is required to play these endgames well. But **it is very important for you to develop the skill of coordinating your pieces (here queen and king) properly**. At the same time, the stronger side must learn to play against well coordinated pieces in the hands of the opponent, in order to be able to disrupt that coordination.

The first two endings are compulsory. They must be very well understood! The final three are more optional; we study them in order to improve our understanding of the coordination of the pieces.

#### Queen against bishop

This ending is very simple. The stronger side should be able to win quickly and easily.

#### Diagram 16-1

Based on

#### Averbakh

White forces the opposing king to the edge of the board and either delivers mate directly or first wins the bishop.

#### 1.營b5 查d6 2.堂d4 皇c6 3.營b6 查d7 4.空c5 皇f3 5.營d6† 空e8

6.營c7 皇g2 7.營g7 皇f3 8.堂d6

And mate next move.

#### Queen against knight

Here you have to take care not to allow any forks! But the stronger side wins easily if he posts his pieces correctly.

#### Diagram 16-2 Based on

Based on

Averbakh

STREAS STREET

This is the ideal position for the white king – separated from the knight by one square diagonally. This means that the knight cannot give check at once; it needs three moves to do so!

#### 4...包e6 5.凹15† 查d6 6.查e4 包c5† 7.查d4 包e6† 8.查c4

Once again the ideal position has been reached. 8...②c7 9.營g6† ②e6 10.營f6 查d7 11.查d5 ②c7† 12.查e5

The same method as before.

#### 12....@e8

Or 12...堂c8 13.豐e7 查b8 14.堂d6 包b5† 15.堂c5 (but not 15.堂c6 包a7† 16.堂b6?? allowing 16...包c8†) 15...包a7 16.豐d7 (16.堂b6?? 包c8†) 16...包c8 17.堂b5 包a7† 18.堂a6 and mates.

#### 

White mates next move.

#### Queen against two knights

Somewhat surprisingly, the weaker side can hold this ending in most cases, provided he places his knights next to the king. **The knights should protect the king, but not each other!** The defence is very difficult. Fortunately the ending only occurs rarely in praxis.

#### Diagram 16-3

#### 1.₫f3

Here is an example of how this position can be held with good defence.

#### 1....**&d**7

It is also possible to play 1...乞f7 2.堂g4 and now 2...⑤d6=.

On the other hand, 2...②fg5? is a mistake and even loses the game: 3.查f5 查e8 (3...④f7 4.鬯b4† 查d7 5.鬯a4† 查e7 6.鬯a7†+-) 4.鬯d3 查e7 5.鬯d5 查f7 6.鬯d7† 查g8 7.鬯e8† 查g7 8.鬯g6† 查f8 9.查f6+-

2.壺g4 壺e7 3.營d5 萤d7 4.營a5 壺e7 5.營a7† 壺f6 6.營d7 包f7 7.壺h5 包e5 8.營d6 包f7 9.營b6 Diagram 16-4

#### 9...Ðe5



Endgame 3







16.  $\pm 6$  is very dangerous for Black. If White plays correctly he should win this position.

#### 10.曾f2† 空e7!

11.营h6 约f7† 12.营g6

#### Diagram 16-5

#### 12...②f8†!

Black should try not to let the white king approach the knights via f6.

13. හ් g7 වe6† 14. හ් g8 ව d6 15. ම් h4† හ් d7 16. ම් f6 වc7=

#### Queen against two bishops

The stronger side almost always wins, but the method is extremely complicated and requires a large number of moves. You have to break the coordination of the defending side!

For practical play, the important thing to note is that the bishops do best to remain close to the king.

#### Diagram 16-6

1.豐g5† 堂d7 2.堂d3 皇e7 3.豐g7 堂e8 4.堂d4 皇d6 5.豐g5 堂d7 6.豐f6 皇c7 7.堂c5 皇d6† 8.堂b6 皇c7† 9.堂b5 皇d6 10.豐g6 皇e7 11.豐d3† 皇d6 12.豐h7† 皇e7 13.堂b6 皇d5 14.豐g6 皇d6 15.豐f5† 皇e6 16.豐h7† 皇e7 17.豐e4

#### Diagram 16-7

White is trying to disorganize the black defence and force one bishop to distance itself from its king. Then it will easily fall prey to a double attack.

#### 17...**. \$d8**†

18. 查b5 皇f6 19. 豐c6† 萤e7 20. 豐c7† 萤f8 21. 豐h7 皇f7 22. 萤c5 萤e7 23. 萤c6 萤e6 24. 豐h3† 萤e5 25. 萤d7 皇g5 26. 豐g3† 萤f5 27. 豐f3† 皇f4 28. 萤e7 皇c4 29. 豐c6 皇g5† 30. 萤d6 皇f4† 31. 萤d7 皇f7 32. 萤e7 皇h5 33. 豐c5† 萤g6

33... 查g4 34. 查f6 皇h6 35. 鬯f5† 查h4 36. 鬯e5 查g4 37.鬯e4† 杏h3 38.鬯h7+-

34.凹d5 鼻g5† 35.萤e6 鼻g4† 36.萤e5 鼻h6 37.凹d6† 壺g5 38.營f6† 查h5 39.查e4 龛g5 40.營f7† 查h4

40.... \$h6 41. \$\phie5 \$\mathbf{\end{bess}}e3 42. \$\mathbf{\end{bess}}d5 \$\phieb h5 (42...\$\mathbf{\end{bess}}g5 \$ 46. 杏f6+-) 43. 杏f6† 杏h4 44. 鬯e5 龛a7 45. 鬯e1† 杏h3 46.壺g5 鼻f3 47.壺f4+-

#### 41.凹h7† 空g3 42.凹g7 臭h4

Or 42.... 查h4 43. 塑h8† 查g3 44. 塑e5† 查h4 45.營h2† 急h3 46.空f3+-.

#### 43.凹c3† 卤g2 44.卤f4 鼻e2 45.凹e3 鼻a6 46.凹f3† ��h2 47.빨h5 ��h3 48.빨g4†+-

With optimal play, White has succeeded in winning a piece in 49 moves! Of course, such technique is not usually demanded of us. But this example demonstrates to us the depth and the secrets of the game of chess!

It is perhaps more useful to make a note of the only drawing position.

#### Diagram 16-8

#### **G.Lolli** 1763

The white king cannot get close enough to the bishops.

#### 1.營e7† 空c8

#### 2.凹e6†

2. 營d6 查b7 3. 查c4 鼻a7! (3... 鼻c7? 4. 營e7 查b6 5.營b4† 查a7 6.空c5+-) 4.營e7† 空b8=

#### 2....�b7 3.鬯d6 夐a7

3...≜c7 4.₩e7 &b6= is possible here, because White cannot give check on b4.

#### 4.凹e7† �b6!

4... \$\producture{\phi}b8? is bad, on account of 5. \$\producture{\phi}a5+-.

#### 5.凹d8†

5.階f7 \$b8!=

5.杏c4 逸b8 6.鬯b4† 杏c7! 7.鬯a5† 杏b7 8.杏c5 **এ**a7†=

#### 5.... 空b7 6. 空a5 皇c5

The position is a mutual zugzwang; White to play cannot make any progress.







#### Queen against bishop and knight

The stronger side normally wins more easily than against two bishops. There are only a few drawing positions.

#### Diagram 16-9

#### 

It is very difficult to organize the defence, since the knight is often in danger of being pinned.

#### 7....包e8 8.凹e4† 杏d7 9.凹e6†

Of course, the attack is carried out mainly on the light squares.

#### 9.... 空d8 10. 空e4 皇e7 11. 凹h3

11.空d5?? ②c7†=

#### 11... 包c7 12. 空e5 皇c5 13. 留g4 皇e7 14. 留f5

If the black king is on the edge, there are fewer possibilities for a defence.

#### 14...皇c5 15.曾f6 包e8†

15... 逸e7† 16. 杏f7 象d6 17. 鬯h3⊙ 象c5 (17... ②b5 18. 鬯d3+-) 18. 鬯d3† ��c8 19. 鬯f5†+-

#### 16. 空g6 皇e7 17. 凹a5† 空d7

17... 包c7 18. 查f7 象d6 (18... 查d7 19. 鬯a4† 查d8 20. 鬯d4†+--) 19. 鬯f5 象b4 (19... 象h2 20. 鬯d3†+--) 20. 鬯g5†+--

#### 18.營a4† 查d8 19.查f7 包d6† 20.查e6+-

Here is another important fortress, which should be known.

## Diagram 16-10

#### M.Karstedt

The bishop and knight have constructed a barrier which the white king cannot break through.

#### 1.魯e7 鼻h8 2.魯e6

Or 2.營e8† 杏h7 3.杏f8 鼻g7†=.

2...皇g7 3.堂f5 皇h8 4.堂g5 皇g7 5.鬯e8† 堂h7 6.堂h5 皇h8 7.鬯e7† 皇g7=







cauree 16



#### I.Hasek

1930

#### 1.**逸b**3!

(2 points)

(1 point)

(1 point)

Other moves lose:

a) 1.堂b2? 營xd1!-+ (but not 1...鬯xe4? 2.奠c2=)

b) 1.¤e1? ₩c3†-+

c) 1.**\$**a4? \$\$g7!\_+

d) 1.邕h4†? 杳g7 2.邕h1 鬯d4†-+

e) 1.彙c2? is followed by 1...增xc2 2.罩h4† (or 2.罩e7† 查h6 3.罩e6† 查g5 4.罩e5† 查f4-+) 2...查g7! 3.罩g4† 查f6 4.罩f4† 查e5-+.

However, for 1.\$c2? you still get 1 consolation point.

#### 1...**\**wxe4

2....<sup>₩</sup>xc2 stalemate

#### Ex. 16-2

The end of a study by

W.Naef 1950

The same motif as in Ex. 16-1. **1.f7†! 🗳xf**7 1.... 🖄 xf7 2. 🏨 h5†=

2.皇b3! 鬯xb3 stalemate

Ex. 16-3

The end of a study by

#### E.Dobrescu

1967

#### 1.鶬b8!

1.邕b8? loses after 1...谱c6† 2.邕b7 垫a6-+.

Nor is 1.邕b7? any better, on account of 1...鬯c8† 2.逸b8 (2.邕b8 鬯c6†-+) 2...鬯c6 3.堂a7 鬯a6#.

If 1.巴h6? then 1.... 塑d8† 2. 逸b8 (2. 空b7 鬯e7† 3. 空b8 鬯f8†-+) 2... 鬯d5† 3. 空a7 鬯f7† 4. 空a8 鬯f3† 5. 空a7 鬯e3†-+.

1.... Wxb6 2. gc7! Wxc7 stalemate

(1 point)

#### Ex. 16-4

The end of a study by

#### J.Moravec

1925

1.查f3! g1=鬯 2.包g4† 查h1 3.包f2† 查h2 4.包g4† 查h3 5.包f2†

With perpetual check.

(1 point)

Ex. 16-5

The end of a study by

T.Gorgiev 1936

1

(1 point)

#### 1.... \$a8!

1.c7†

2.c8=鬯†!!

(another 1 point) 2.包e7? loses after 2...鬯e3† 3.堂c6 (3.堂a6 鬯a7†-+; 3.堂b5 鬯e5† 4.堂b6 鬯d6† 5.包c6 鬯e6 6.堂b5 鬯c8-+) 3...鬯e6† 4.堂b5 鬯d7† 5.堂b6 鬯d6† 6.包c6 鬯e6 7.堂c5 鬯e3† 8.堂d6 堂b7-+.

2....鬯xc8 3.包c7† 魯b8 4.包a6† 魯a8 5.包c7† With perpetual check.

#### Ex. 16-6

The end of a study by

#### **E.Pogosiants**

1979

#### 1.c7!

But not 1.营a7? because of 1...a1=豐† 2.堂b6 豐g1† 3.堂a6 豐f2 4.堂a5 豐c5 5.c7 堂b7 6.堂a4 堂b6-+.

(1 point)

#### Ex. 16-7

The end of a study by

#### P.Heuacker

1928

Here 1. ②ac6? would be bad: 1... 酇f6† 2. 查e8 營d6 3. 查f7 查b7 4. 查e8 查b6 5. 查f7 查c7 6. 查e8 營e6† 7. 查f8 營f6† 8. 查e8 查d6+-

But a typical idea comes to White's rescue. 1.2bc6!

(1 point)

The black king is now blocked in the corner and can only get out if White is put into zugzwang. But if the white king stays near the knights there is no danger of that.

#### 1....鬯f6†

Or 1....≝e1 2.₫f7!=. 2.✿e8!=

(another 1 point) But not 2.堂g8? in view of 2...豐f2 3.堂g7 豐f5 4.堂h6 豐g4 5.堂h7 豐g5 6.堂h8 豐g6 7.空e7 豐f6†-+.

#### Ex. 16-8

The end of a study by

#### **G.Lolli**

#### 1.₩h8†

(1 point)

1.營a8† would also be good enough: 1...党g7 2.營a7 盒c3 3.營g1† 杏h7 4.營h2† 党g8 5.營b8† 杏h7 6.營c7+-

1...<u>\$g</u>8

If 1... 曾e7, then 2. 曾h4†+-. 2. **堂g6!+**-

Followed by ₩g7†.

(another 1 point)

#### Ex. 16-9

The end of a study by

#### **M.Karstedt**

#### 1.₫d7⊙

(1 point)

Zugzwang is the best weapon against a fortress.

1...**Db**4

Or 1...包c3 2.豐g5†堂h7 (2....堂f8 3.豐c5†+-) 3.豐f6+-.

#### 2.營g5† 杏f8 3.營c5†+-

(another 1 point)

Ex. 16-10

The end of a study by

**F.Amelung** 

#### 1.\$e7†!!

1.... 空e8

(another 1 point)

(1 point)

White has reached the drawing position from Diagram 16-10.

#### Ex. 16-11

#### HRinck 1948

#### 1.鼻h2† 魯a8!

Black can even lose: 1... 堂c8?? 2. 创d6† 堂b8 (2... 堂d8 3. ②b7†+-) 3. ③b7†+-

(1 point for this variation)

2.Qc7† \$a7 3.Qb5† \$a6 4.Qc7† \$a7 5.Qb5†=

(1 point)

#### Ex. 16-12

The end of a study by

#### **B.Horwitz**

1883

#### 1.ĝa7†!

1.奠f4†? (1 consolation point) just leads to a draw after 1...鬯c7=. 1...堂c7 1....堂a8 2.奠f3† 鬯d5 3.奠xd5# 2.奠b6†+-

(2 points)



If you scored less than **10** points, we recommend that you read the chapter again and repeat the exercises which you got wrong.

# CHAPTER 17

#### Contents

The capacities of the knight
 Smothered mate
 Other combinations



# Combinations with knights

The knight is a very valuable attacking piece, which can simultaneously control various squares within a defined radius. **The knight is a close-quarter fighter**. So it has to get close to opposing pieces, because only then can it show what it can achieve. In general the knight needs support from other pieces; it is also very good at cooperating with such forces.

We have already learned about a very important knight combination in *Build Up Your Chess 1*, Chapter 23, 'Smothered mate'. Here are some more examples.



White obstructs the 7th rank in order to seize control of the f7-square.

#### 

A better defence is 1...g6 2. Exc7 gxh5 3. Dxf7±.

#### 2.營xf7† 空h8 3.奠c4!+-

The key move. There is no satisfactory defence against the threat of  $\frac{100}{2}$  g8#.

#### 3...Øg6

3...ዿe6 4.₩xc7+-; 3...ᡚe6 4.ᡚxe6+-

#### 4.營g8†!

Preparing the way for the knight's grand entrance. 4...**Exg8 5.Df**7#

#### Diagram 17-2

L.Evans – B.Larsen

Dallas 1957

#### 1....筥f1†!

This typical combination is not the only way to win the game, but it is certainly the most elegant. 1... 罩d2 2.舀1xd2 (2.舀xd5 罩xd1†-+) 2...營c5† 3.含f1 ②xd2†-+ would also be good. 2.罩xf1

#### 2....鬯c5†

And White resigned, in view of 3.空h1 公f2† 4.空g1 (or 4.罩xf2 鬯c1† 5.罩d1 罩xd1†-+) 4... 公h3† 5.空h1 鬯g1† 6.罩xg1 公f2#.

The next example shows the knight's unique ability to exploit the pin on a pawn for a mating attack.



#### 1.d6!

Black resigned. He cannot avoid major loss of material. After 1...心a6 (or 1...鬯c8 2.dxc7+-, threatening 3.心d6#) 2.dxc7 心xc7 there is the simple 3.心d6#.

As we have seen, the knight is particularly dangerous in the struggle against a king which is hemmed in.



Find the forced mate here! 1.**Zd1!** Black cannot parry the threat of mate.

1....Ic6 2.Ia1 †! 皇xa1 3. 包c1#



Yugoslav Ch., Sombor 1957

How does Black win here?

After the surprising:

There is no defence against ...∅f2#. 0–1



Tactics 8



A somewhat more complicated combination was executed in the next example.

#### Diagram 17-6

#### A.Beliavsky – N.N.

1975

#### 1.\aree6! \aree4

1...dxe6 is followed by 2.兔xe6† 邕f7 3.豐xd4 垫f8 4.句d6! 邕d8 5.兔xf7 豐xd6 (5...邕xd6 6.豐g7† 查e7 7.兔xg6† 查d8 8.豐f8† 查d7 9.豐e8#) 6.豐g7† 查e7 7.兔c4† 查e8 8.豐f7#.

#### 2.罩xg6† 垫h8

2...hxg6 3.營xg6† 垫h8 4.營g7#

2...查f7 3.包d6† 查e7 4.幽g5† 罩f6 5.幽xf6#

#### 3.②d6

White brings his knight closer to the opposing king with gain of tempo.

3...₩d5

#### Diagram 17-7

#### 4.**¤g**8†!

The decisive blow. White blocks in the black king and diverts the defence from the f7-square.

#### 4....\argent

Or 4...,營xg8 5.營xd4†+-. 5.營xd4†!! 營xd4 6.②f7#

The numerous attacking possibilities of the knight are utilized in many studies. Here are just a few spectacular examples.

#### Diagram 17-8

The end of a study by

#### M.Kliatskin 1925

#### 1.\$a5!

Can the king still stop this passed pawn?

1...a3

1....\$xc4 2.\$xa4+-

#### 2.空a4 a2 3.空b3! a1=鬯

The race against the pawn has been lost, but in the end it is the knight which makes the running! 4.②e6#

#### Combinations with knights

#### Diagram 17-9

#### L.Kubbel

1914

#### 1.幻f4

The white knight chases the black rook. But not  $1.\mathring{\mathfrak{D}}g2? \Xi xh5\mp$ .

#### 1...Ēxg3† 2.화f2 풀g5 3.친e6 풀e5

3...鼍xd5 loses to 4.氪c7†, while 3...鼍xh5 or 3...邕f5 loses to 4.氪xg7†.

#### 4.f4 Ze4 5.b3!

And Black is in zugzwang.

#### 5....¤c4

5...查f7 6.包g5†+- or 5...查d7 6.包c5†+-.

#### 6.bxc4 b3 7.包c7† 垫d7 8.包b5

Followed by 9. 2c3+-.

#### Diagram 17-10

P.Keres

1936

Black is a queen down, but there is the threat of ...b3-b2<sup>†</sup>.

#### 1.包c2†!! 魯a2

1...臭xc2 loses after 2.營b8 臭b1 3.營xb3 臭a2 4.營xc3#.

#### 2.②b4† 查a1

2... 查a3 is followed by 3. ④d3! 氯xd3 4. 鬯d6† 查a2 5. 鬯d5!! (Δ鬯a5#) 5.... 氯b5 6. 鬯a8†+-.

#### Diagram 17-11

#### 3.凹a2†!!

A big surprise. The white knight can deliver mate on its own.

#### 3...bxa2 4.ᡚc6!+-

Black has no defence against 2d4 followed by mate on either b3 or c2.





Tactics 8







How can the a-pawn be stopped? 1. 象f6 d4 2. ②e2! a1=營 3. ②c1!!

White does not want to win the queen yet. The threat is now \$g5#.

3.氯xd4† 營xd4 4.②xd4 垫xd4 5.堂f4 垫xd3 6.堂g5 垫e4 7.堂h6 垫f5 8.堂xh7 垫f6 would only lead to a draw.

#### 3...₩a5

3...h6 4.鼻e5+-; 3...空d2 4.包b3†+-

#### 4.**&**xd4†!

Followed by  $2b3^{\dagger}$  with a thematic fork.



1

a b c d e f g h



机合金 化合金合金

jumun N



Anne A. State (1998) (1



#### Ex. 17-1

#### M.Taimanov – B.Spassky

1951

#### 1....De4!

(1 point)

(1 point)

A lovely deflection. 2.酇xe4 嵤xc5† 3.空h2 營xd6干

#### Ex. 17-2

#### M.Chigorin – E.Znosko-Borovsky

Russian Ch., Kiev 1903

#### 1.②e7†!

1....邕8xe7

1...≌2xe7 2.xe7+–

#### 2.営d8†

2.鬯xe7?? 鬯xc2#

2....莒e8 3.鬯f8†!

#### 1–0

(another 1 point for this variation)

#### Ex. 17-3

#### **B.Gelfand** – A.Yusupov

Horgen 1994

#### 1....\arappa xd5!

(1 point)

But not 1... ②xf4? on account of 2. ③xf4 Ξxe5 3. Ξxd8 Ξxh5 4. Ξxf8† 查xf8 5. ④xh5+-. 2. Ξdxd5

Or 2.罩exd5 營b6† 3.营h1 ②xf4+-.

2...曾b6† 3.营h1 包xf4-+

(another 1 point)

#### Ex. 17-4

#### A.Alekhine – S.Lugowski

Belgrade simultaneous 1931

#### 1.De6†!

The best solution, but there is also a win after 1.②xf7! 夐g4† 2.堂c2 ②dxf7 3.鬯e7† 堂g8 4.邈xh6+- (also 1 point). 1...②xe6

#### 2.凹e7† 空g8 3.凹e8† 幻f8 4.幻e7#

(1 point)

#### Ex. 17-5

#### Zotov – Glebov

Moscow 1975

#### 1.₩c7!

(1 point) Threatening 2.營b8† 邕xb8 3.公c7#. 1.公c7†! also leads to a rapid victory after 1...堂b8 2.公b5+- (also 1 point). **1...邕xa6** 

Or 1...\$xa6 2.\#xa7#.

2.₩xb7#

#### Ex. 17-6

#### **N.N. – K.Richter** 1938

#### 1....햡f1!

#### (1 point)

But not 1... 2g4? which allows 2. 2g2=.

#### 2.¤xh3

Or 2. $\Xi$ f8† 2f2† with a winning ending for Black.

#### 2...€)g4

0–1

White cannot prevent 3... 约f2#.

(another 1 point)

#### Ex. 17-7

Aik – Derremo

**1...②e4‼\_+ 2.xe**7 Or 2.dxe4 xb4\_+.

2....⁄幻d2#

(1 point)

#### Ex. 17-8

J.Pokojowczyk – W.Szajna

Polish Ch., Piotrkow Trybunalski 1977

#### 1.包g7‼

CIENNER CERC

(1 point)

Threatening 2.遑d4† 岱f4 3.纪e6#.

1.鼍xd6! (also 1 point) is good too: 1...cxd6 (1...①xf5 2.鼍d5†+-) 2.②xe7+-

#### 1...c5 2. 2d4 †!

Black resigned, in view of 2...cxd4 3.cxd4† \$\Delta f4 4.\$\Delta e6#.

(1 bonus point for this variation)

#### Ex. 17-9

Variation from the game

#### <u>M.Tal – P.Keres</u>

Belgrade Candidates 1959

#### 1.₩d6‼+-

(2 points)

White defends against 營h6# and is ready to meet 1... 鬯xd6 with 2. ②f5†+-.

Stopping the mate by 1.②e6† fxe6 2.鬯b7† would leave White in trouble after 2...②f7 3.鬯b5 鬯g6† 4.堂h4 鬯e4† 5.g4 鬯e1† 6.堂h3 鬯f2-+ as Black plans 堂f6 and ②g5†.



#### 1.②d8!

(1 point) But not 1.包g5? 鬯xd5 2.罩e8† because of 2...包f8!-+.

#### 1....邕xg2†!?

If 1...增xd5, then 2.罩e8† 包括 (2...增g8 3.包f7#) 3.罩xf8† 增g8 4.包f7#.

#### 2.��f1!

#### (another 1 point)

2.空h1! also wins.

But 2.營xg2?! 骂xd8± would not be so good. And certainly not 2.岱xg2? due to 2...營xd5† 3.堂g1 公f8—+.

2....<sup>宮</sup>g1† 3.亞xg1 幽g6† 4.邕g3 1-0

Ex. 17-11
Dartov – Kogan
Riga 1977

#### 1...äxc4!

(1 point)

#### 2.邕xc4 ②b6

2...e5†! 3.dxe5† Dxe5++ is even better, with the threats of Dxc4, Dd3# or Dg6#.

3.\[265 2]d5\]† 4.\[274]xd5 exd5 5.e4 fxe4 6.fxe4 dxe4-+

Black wins, thanks to his outside passed pawn.

#### Ex. 17-12

I.Farago – J.Flesch Sombor 1973

#### 

(1 point)

The threat is now 2g3-h1-f2#. If 1...2g3, then either 2.2h2= or 2.2gxg6 2g1 3.2gxh5!=. **2.2gxf5** 

2.g4 is followed by 2...②g3 3.gxh5 gxh5 4.彙g6 ④h1 5.彙xh5 ⑤f2#.

(another 1 point for this variation)

#### 0–1



CRAPTER 17

If you scored less than **10** points, we recommend that you read the chapter again and repeat the exercises which you got wrong.
# CHAPTER 18

#### Contents

- Developing the pieces
- When to break the rules
- The principles behind mobilization

# The principles behind mobilization

In the lesson 'Basic opening principles' (Build Up Your Chess 1, Chapter 3), we described **rapid development of all the pieces as one of the most important principles of play in the opening.** In this lesson we shall revisit this central principle, in order to treat in greater depth the mobilization of our forces.

The art of the opening consists of rendering effective the pieces which were initially blocked in, of freeing the pieces by a small number of pawn moves and placing them in favourable positions, and doing so as quickly as possible. One must make the most of each and every tempo, advancing move by move. The best way to develop the pieces is according to their value: first the pawns or at least one pawn, then the minor pieces, and finally the major ones – Tarrasch 'The Game of Chess'

The side which brings its pieces into play faster and better usually obtains the initiative as a result, and can attack the opponent first.

Here are some guidelines which a less experienced chess player must follow in order to successfully survive the complicated opening phase of the game. You must of course understand that these rules – as so often is the case in chess – are in no way absolute, and that you can sometimes break them. However, you should only do this if you acquire important advantages, such as, for example, a major gain in material, control of the centre or the disruption of your opponent's development.

#### The principles behind mobilization

1) If possible, in the opening never move the same piece twice!

You should first try to bring other pieces into play!

2) Don't waste time on unnecessary moves with rook pawns!

(In praxis there are frequent exceptions to this rule. Sometimes the moves h2-h3 or h7-h6 are

important to prevent the pinning of the knight on f3 [f6] by a bishop move to g4 [g5]. Nevertheless, you should weigh up such moves very carefully, because they cost time and can weaken your own castled position.)

#### 3) Do not move the queen prematurely!

The queen is the strongest piece and it is very important to have it well posted. If you bring out the queen too early and too far, your opponent can gain time for development by attacking the queen with his pieces.

4) Do not start any premature or unprepared attacks!

# 5) In open positions, do not play to win a pawn if it results in you neglecting your development!

The time wasted doing this can lead to a dangerous lead in development for your opponent, and that can result in your coming under attack. But in closed positions the loss of a tempo plays a less important role.

#### 6) Put your king in a safe position!

A king in the centre can come under attack very quickly. In an open position, castling must be prepared as soon as possible. This also brings the rooks into play.

Please study the following games and take note of how these guidelines work in praxis, or how the neglect of these principles is punished.



1.d4 회f6 2.회f3 e6 3.e3 b6 4.Âd3 Âe7 5.c4 Âb7 6.친c3

#### Diagram 18-1

#### 6...ĝb4?

Black makes an unprovoked second move with a piece which is already developed and loses a tempo. 6...d5 would be the correct move.

#### 7.\$d2 c5 8.0-0 0-0 9.a3 \$xc3 10.\$xc3



#### Opening 2

# 9 maluvic



Diagram 18-3 Λ 8 7 6 5 Å 4 3 2 1 b с d е f h а g



#### Diagram 18-2

#### 10....휜e4?!

Black is now feeling the consequences of the mistake on move 6: his opponent has the bishop pair. But this fresh loss of time does not improve his position. 10...d6 would be preferable.

#### 11. 皇xe4 皇xe4 12.dxc5 bxc5 13. 凹d6!±

The threat is not only 14. Wxc5, but also 14. We5!.

#### 13... \$xf3 14.gxf3

White now wants to attack down the g-file. Black cannot exploit the weakening of the white pawn structure on the kingside, since he must defend his own weaknesses on d7 and c5 as well as his king.

#### 14...增g5† 15.空h1 凹f5 16.凹g3 g6 17.e4

White exploits the exposed position of the opposing queen to make some useful moves. Here he gains space and fixes the black pawn on d7. 17... 凹h5

#### Diagram 18-3

#### 18.**¤ad1**!

White not only brings his reserves into play (even in the middlegame you should not forget about mobilization!), but at the same time he hinders his opponent's normal development.

#### 18...f5

Black looks for counterplay. But his knight and the rook on a8 are not yet developed. For that reason his attack has no real chance against four white pieces.

But unfortunately he cannot bring his knight into play either, since 18... 16 c6? is simply met by 19. 17.

#### 19.¤d3! fxe4 20.fxe4

#### Diagram 18-4

#### 20....鬯e2

Black strayed from the correct path on move 6 and is still not sticking to the rules described above. He may win a pawn, but in doing so he comes under a strong attack by White.

#### 21.邕el 營xf2 22.營e5

The black squares are too weak, the threat is mate. 22.... 曾f7

The only move, but in the centre his king will come under further attack.

#### 23.邕ed1!+-

Threatening \(\mathbf{Z}xd7\)<sup>†</sup>. All the white pieces are now attacking.

#### 

23...堂e7 is followed by 24.罩xd7†! 公xd7 25.凹d6† 堂f7 26.凹xd7† 堂g8 27.凹g7#.

#### Diagram 18-5

#### 24.≝c7!

This once more hinders the development of the knight.

#### 24...**i**營h4

If 24...增f4, then 25.增c8† 查f7 26.罩xd7† 创xd7 27.৺xd7† 查g8 28.營g7#.

#### 25.凹c8†

The simplest solution.

There is no hope for the black position. The game finished:



#### I.Boleslavsky – B.Gurgenidze

USSR Ch. semi-final 1960

#### 1.e4 c5 2.එf3 එc6 3.d4 d5? Diagram 1

Diagram 18-6

A very bad move. Not only does Black bring his queen into play too soon, but he also opens up the position, which is very advantageous for the better developed side. Of course 3...cxd4 should be played.

#### 4.exd5 鬯xd5 5.包c3

Gaining a tempo.

#### 5...₩e6†

5....凹d8 6.d5±

#### 

The third move with the queen already, and yet it still cannot find a safe position. White has obtained a powerful lead in development.

If 7...②xd4 8.營xd4 違d7, then 9.②b5!+–. However, 7...鬯e5± would have been more stubborn. **8.②db5!+**–



#### Opening 2





#### Diagram 18-7

In this case the second move by the knight is justified. White has more developed pieces and now wants to punish his opponent for his poor play. He takes a favourable opportunity to mount an attack.

#### 8...¤b8

#### 9.≝e2!

White prepares the move  $\mathbb{Z}d1$ , which will gain another tempo.

#### 9...f6

Clearing the f7-square for the king. Black is already out of normal moves.

9...e6 is followed by 10.罩d1 鬯e7 11.皇f4+-.

10.罩d1 凹g4 11.f3 凹h5 12.皇xa7! ②xa7 13. 2d6†!

And Black resigned. The black king in the centre is subject to a devastating attack. The conclusion might have been 13... 堂d7 14. ②xc8† 查xc8 15. 營e6† 查c7 16. 邕d7† 查c8 17. 邕xe7† 查d8 18. 營d7#.

In the test which follows you should try to exploit a lead in development.











CIFLULT TO FILL



#### D.Cramling – A.Yusupov

Graz 1981

#### 1....ĝh2†!

(1 point)

#### 2.\$\physh2

Or 2. 垫f1 邕f8-+.

#### 2... 響xf2 3.gxh5 骂f8 4. 包g1 包e5 5. 皇h6 例xd3

White resigned. 6. 黛xf8 allows 6... 營f4† 7.营h1 ④f2#, while 6.邕f1 is simply met by 7...,營xf1 8.\$xf1 \Bxf1-+.

#### Ex. 18-2

#### V.Korchnoi – A.Yusupov

Cologne (rapid) 1990

#### 1.d5!

(1 point)

1.\$xf5!? is equally good: 1...\\$xf5 2.dxe5 盒xe5 3. 凹b1! (also 1 point) 3... 凹xb1 4. 罩axb1 盒xc3 5.舀fc1 盒a5 6.舀xb7±

#### 1...₩c8?

Black had to play 1...cxd5 2. gxf5 (2. gxd5 3.₩xd5+.

#### 2.2xf5 11xf5 3.dxc6+- 2xc6 4.11xd6 e4 5.₩d5!

Black had overlooked this move.

#### 5...增g6 6.创h4

Black resigned, in view of 6... Wh5 7.f3 h6 8.象f6! 營xd5 9.cxd5+-.

Ex.	18-3

#### A.Yusupov - Rott

Eupen (rapid) 1996

#### 1.\$c7!

(2 points)

White also has a great advantage after 1. £xe7 響xe7 2. ②f5! (2. ③xd5 exd5 3. ④f5 響e6±) exf5 3. 公xd5 鬯g5 4.f4 鬯h4 (4... 鬯d8 5. 邕c6) 5.g3 習d8 6.骂c6.

If you found 2.创f5! you also get 2 points.

#### 1....₩e8

1...鬯xc7 loses to 2.勾xd5 鬯d6 (2...鬯d8 3. 2c6+-) 3. 2c7 里ac8 4. 2db5.

#### 2.②db5?

2. 4 xd5! would have been correct: 2...exd5 3.②f5 ④f6 4.皇e5 鬯d7 and now 5.鬯f3 gives White a safe advantage, although even better is 5. 公xg7! 含xg7 6. 置c7 凹e6 7. 置xe7! 凹xe7 8.營g4† 空h8 9.營g5+-.

#### 

After 2... \$b3! Black could put up a defence. 3.皇e5 皇b7 4.包c7 鬯c6 5.包3d5!+- 皇c5 6. 2xf6† 空h8 7. 2g4 罩ad8 8. 2h5 1 - 0

#### Ex. 18-4

### V.Kotkov – G.Akopian

Krasnodar 1966

1.e4 e6 2.d4 d5 3.2d2 dxe4 4.2xe4 2d7 <sup>™</sup>xf6? (∩7...gxf6)

#### Diagram 18-4

#### 8.<u>\$g5</u>!

8....\$xf3 9.凹d2!+-

(1 point)

د. میں

(another 1 point)

An idea of Dr. Tarrasch.

Of course not 9. \$xf6? \$xd1-+. Also, 9. 豐xf3 is not so strong, because of 9... 豐xf3! (but not 9...增xg5? 10.增xb7 增d5 11. 逸e4!+-). 9....營xd4

After 9... \$\$xg2 10. \$\$xf6 \$\$xh1 11.0-0-0 \$\$f3 12. \grace{12. }grace{13. }ff4+- Black is losing a piece, and so does not retain sufficient compensation for the queen.

#### 10.皇b5†

1 - 0



Tikhomirow – Slussarjow

Moscow 1980

1.2g4!

(1 point)

White gains another tempo with this tactical trick.

#### 1....鬯f5

(C)C) variation

40, 4-4 -2, 4,×13, 2+, 2-2,

1....<sup>™</sup>xe4 loses to 2.<sup>©</sup>f6<sup>†</sup>.

1...營g7 is followed by 2.包ef6† 空c8 3.逸h6+-.

#### 2.②gf6†

2.∅g3!+– is also good. 2...✿c8 3.g4 ₩e5 4.f4+ 1–0

#### Ex. 18-6

#### Aissin – Y.Mikhailovich

Moscow 1965

1.e4 e5 2.包括 包c6 3.包c3 f5? 4.d4! fxe4 5.包xe5 包f6 6.皇c4! d5 7.包xd5 包xd5 8.鬯h5† g6 9.包xg6 包f6? (better, but still grim for Black was 9...hxg6 10.營xg6† 堂d7 11.皇xd5)

#### Diagram 18-6

#### 1**0.**覍f7†!

(1 point)

(1 bonus point for these variations)

#### Ex. 18-7

#### Benitez – M.Euwe

Puerto Rico 1948

#### 1.₩a3‼

(2 points) But not 1. 1964?? which allows Black to capture the queen with check!

1...g6

1...增xa3 loses quickly to 2.罩d8† 空e7 3.罩e8#.

If 1...f6, then 2.罩d8† 查f7 3.彙e8† 鬯xe8 4.②d6†+-.

#### 2.邕d8† 岱g7 3.邕xg8†

1–0

#### Ex. 18-8

#### Gajduk – A.Zaitsev

1958

1.d4 创f6 2.c4 e6 3.包c3 d5 4.包f3 c5 5.cxd5 cxd4 6.鬯a4† 创bd7 7.鬯xd4?! (〇7.包xd4) 7...逸c5 8.鬯d1 exd5 9.包xd5?

#### Diagram 18-8

#### 9....句xd5

The immediate 9...<sup>Ba5†</sup> (1 consolation point) would not be so strong, in view of 10.<sup>Casterlageda</sup>

#### 10.鬯xd5 鬯a5†!

(1 point)

#### 11.&d1

If 11. 2d2, then 11... 2xf2†!-+.

The white king in the centre will not be able to survive a direct attack for long.

#### 14.營xg7

Or 14.₩g3 0–0–0† 15.ዿd2 \u00e4xd2† 16.�xd2 \u00e4d8-+.

#### 14...0-0-0† 15.皇d2 皇b4 16.鼍c1† 查b8 17.鼍c2 鼍hg8

#### 1–0

White is simply losing the rook on h1 after 18. % xh7 % xf2<sup>†</sup>.

#### Ex. 18-9

#### Stepite – Zelina

Riga 1984

1.e4 d5 2.exd5 ∰xd5 3.ᡚc3 ∰d8 (∩3...∰a5) 4.d4 g6 5.象c4 ᡚh6 6.ᡚge2 ᡚf5 7.ᡚe4 象g7 8.c3± ᡚd7?? (∩8...0–0)

#### Diagram 18-9

This example shows how important a welltimed castling can be! 9.2xf7†!

(1 point)

9.包g5 would not be so strong: 9...0-0 10.愈xf7† 邕xf7 11.包e6 鬯e8 12.包xc7 鬯d8 13.包xa8 b5∞

#### 9.... 화xf7 10. 신g5† 화f6

188

# **Solutions**

Other king moves also lose: 10.... 空e8 11. ②e6 or 10... 查f8 11. ②e6 †. 11. 徵b3!

(another 1 point) Black resigned, since he cannot simultaneously parry the threats of mate by  $extsf{mathematication}$  for  $extsf{mathemathematication}$ 

#### Ex. 18-10

#### Kofman – Filatov Kiev 1962

1.e4 e6 2.d4 d5 3.心c3 象b4 4.exd5 象xc3??! (△4...exd5) 5.bxc3 exd5 6.心f3 心f6 7.象a3! h6? 8.象b5† c6 9.鬯e2† 象e6 10.象d3 g5?! (10...心bd7?? 11.鬯xe6†! fxe6 12.象g6#) 11.心e5± 心bd7??

#### Diagram 18-10

#### 12.**②xc6**!

(1 point)

12.42g6 would not be so strong, since Black can decline the sacrifice.

12...bxc6 13.\"xe6† fxe6 14.\2g6#

(another 1 point)

#### Ex. 18-11

#### <u> A.Fink – A.Alekhine</u>

Pasadena 1932

1.e4 e5 2.②f3 ②c6 3.c3 d5 4.豐a4 ③f6!? 5.③xe5 氯d6 6.④xc6 bxc6 7.e5? (△7.d3) 7...氯xe5 8.d4 氯d6 9.豐xc6†? 氯d7 10.豐a6 0–0 11.氯e2 單e8 12. ④d2 單b8 13.a4 豐e7 14. ④f1

Diagram 18-11

#### 14....禽b5! 0–1

(1 point)

#### Ex. 18-12

#### M.Euwe – C.Duffield

#### Weston 1924

1.e4 e5 2.ඞf3 ඬc6 3.ൔc4 ൔc5 4.c3 ඬf6 5.d4 exd4 6.cxd4 ൔb4† 7.ඬc3 d5 (∩7...ඬxe4) 8.exd5 ඬxd5 9.0–0 ൔxc3 10.bxc3 0–0 11.ደe1 ඬa5??

#### Diagram 18-12

#### 12.**&**xd5!

(1 point)

White wins a piece: 12... 鬯xd5 13. 邕e5. 1-0

## Scoring



If you scored less than **10** points, we recommend that you read the chapter again and repeat the exercises which you got wrong.

. Or

# CHAPTER 19

#### Contents

- ✓ Perpetual check in defence
- ✓ An open king position
- Combinations involving perpetual check
- ✓ Perpetual check in attack
- Perpetual check in the endgame
- Diagram 19-1





# Perpetual check

Perpetual check is a very important tactical element, which can be especially useful in defence. Even in positions where one side is at a material or positional disadvantage, a perpetual check may play a key role and save the game.

#### Diagram 19-1

Variation from the game

M.Taimanov – B.Larsen

Copenhagen 1965

White is a pawn behind. But the active position of his rook allows him to reach a typical set-up for perpetual check.

#### 1.②e5!! 曾xc2

Black has no choice and must accept the sacrifice.

2.@xg4†

The knight and the rook cooperate superbly to give perpetual check and save the game.

#### 2.... 查h5 3. ②xf6† 查h6

Of course not 3... 空h4?? allowing 4. 置g4#.

#### 4.2g4† 2h7 5.2f6† 2h6 6.2g4†=

Of course, in most perpetual check situations the queen, the strongest piece, plays a decisive part. If his king position has been opened up, the side with a material advantage can often no longer avoid a perpetual check.

#### Diagram 19-2

#### D.Bronstein – I.Boleslavsky

Candidates Match(13), Moscow 1950

#### 1.營g5†

Here the players agreed a draw, in view of the inevitable perpetual check. Any attempt by Black to avoid the perpetual check would have led to the loss of the game: 1... $\oint f7$  (or 1... $\oint h7$  2. $\bigoplus e7$ †  $\oint g6$  3. $\bigoplus g5$ †=) 2. $\limsup f5$ †  $\oint e7$ ?? (2... $\oint g7$ =) 3. $\boxplus xe4$ †  $\oiint d8$  4. $\limsup xf8$ †+-

#### Diagram 19-3

#### G.Lisitsin – K.Klaman

Leningrad 1950

Despite his advantage in material, Black cannot win here, as his king cannot escape the perpetual check.

#### 1.營g5† 查f7 2.營h5†

But not 2.鬯d5†?? 鬯e6-+.

#### 2.... 空e7 3. 留g5† 空e8

#### 4.≝h5†=

4.鬯e5† 岱d8 5.鬯g5† also leads to a draw. 1/2-1/2

It is naturally harder to give a perpetual check if the opposing king is protected by its pawns or pieces. Then combinations are often required in order to open up the king position.



#### 1...**<sup>1</sup>**xd4?

Correct was 1...c3 2. Ixc3 and only then 2... l数d4-+. 2. **營e6**† **含h8** 

Now White was able to save himself with a little combination.

#### 3.②g6†! hxg6 4.凹h3†

With perpetual check.

1/2-1/2

## Diagram 19-5

K.Opocensky – A.Kotov Moscow 1946

White makes a typical sacrifice on g7, in order to weaken his opponent's castled position.

#### 1.皇xg7 空xg7 2.營g5† 空h8

The bishop on e4 is pinned to the black queen! Black must agree to the draw.

#### 

1/2-1/2











Often the side with more material cannot avoid a perpetual check (or rather a repetition of moves) on account of the threat of material losses.

#### Diagram 19-6

## G.Ilivitzki – P.Dubinin

Sverdlovsk 1948

#### 1...莒xf1†2.莒xf1 營e3† 3.空g2

The king must defend the rook on f1. 3...曾d2† ½-½

Diagram 19-7

V.Ragozin – G.Levenfish

Moscow 1935

Black is threatening to seize the initiative. So White forces the draw.

1.營xh6†! ②xh6 2.罩xh6† 查g7 3.罩h7† 查f8 4.罩h8† 查e7 5.②g8† 查f8

5... Wxg8? 6. Exg8 is good for White.

5...堂d7 6.迄f6† 堂e7 leads to a draw, as in the game, but 6...堂c7?? would even lose to 7.鼍xc8† 堂xc8 8.堂xc1.

#### 5.②f6†

1/2-1/2

A perpetual check can also be the saving grace when you have started an attack on the king, but do not have enough material left to successfully finish it off.

#### Diagram 19-8 A.Alekhine – Em.Lasker Moscow 1914

Alekhine finds a combination which is, however, merely enough for a draw.

#### 1.皇xh6!? gxh6 2.罩xe6! fxe6 3.凹g3† 空h8 4.凹g6 凹e8

And the game is drawn, on account of the perpetual check after 5. Wxh6† followed by Wg5†.

#### Perpetual check

# "你有这些问题,有这些不能是了。"











#### R.Schmaltz – A.Yusupov

Philadelphia 2002

1....Øh3†! 2.@h1

Or 2.gxh3 凹f2† 3.空h1 凹f3†=. 1/2-1/2 2...②f2† is repeatition.

Sometimes perpetual check is the only thing left to you against a dangerous counterattack by your opponent.

#### Diagram 19-10 Hahnke – K.Richter Berlin 1931

Here White has a combination which forces his opponent to deliver perpetual check!

#### 1.邕xc3! 鬯xc3

- 1...增xe2?? 2.邕cxc7#
- 2. 增b5! c6口 3. 增a6! 幻f1 † 4. 空h1 Or 4. 查g1 鬯e3† 5. 查h1 ②g3†=. 4.... 包g3† 5. 垫h2 But not 5. 垫g1?? 骂d1 † 6. 垫h2 骂h1#.
- 5...②f1†=
- 1/2-1/2

A perpetual check situation can also arise in the endgame.

#### Diagram 19-11 Theoretical position

In this important theoretical drawing position, the black king cannot cross the f-file without the loss of the queen.

1. 置g2† 查h6 2. 置h2† 查g5 3. 置g2† 查h4 4. 置h2† 查g3 5.邕g2†=

#### Tactics 9



#### Diagram 19-12

#### A.Yusupov – S.Dolmatov

Candidates (12), Wijk aan Zee 1991

#### 1.¤e3!

Another typical endgame situation. White brings his rooks to the 7th rank, which practically guarantees him perpetual check.

#### 1....Ēf4 2.\extsf{2.\extsf{Bee7} \extsf{Bd3} + 3.\extsf{bg2} \extsf{Bxg4} + 4.\extsf{Bf1} \extsf{Ed8}

1/2-1/2

In the exercises, try to find a perpetual check in every case!









and the second s



GT WILLING



#### G.Sax – S.Mariotti

Las Palmas 1978

#### 1... ②xe3! 2. 邕xc2 邕a1† 3. 杏h2 幻f1†

(1 point)

A typical set-up. 1/2–1/2

#### Ex. 19-2

#### G.Mazzoni – Y.Kraidman

Tel Aviv Olympiad 1964

The game continued:

#### 1.營h6! 龛xh6

പപ്പവം ജg∕ പ്പാക്ഗുക്ഗ്

#### 2...堂h8 3.皇xf6# 3.②f5† 查g8 4.②e7† 查g7 ½-½

For this solution you get 2 points. After all, you did find the perpetual check you were looking for. But White could even have won!

#### 

Black now loses in all variations:

a) 2....\arg1 3.42g5!+-

(3 points for this important variation!) b) 2.... 逸e8 3. ②g5 凹c7 4. ③e6 凹f7 5. 罩xb1+-

c) 2..., 鬯c7 3. ②g5 象xd5 4. ③xh7! 罩xg1 (4..., 鬯xh7 5. 罩xg6† 查f7 6. 罩xf6†+--) 5. 鬯xf8† 查xh7 6. 鬯h6† 查g8 7. 鬯xg6† 象g7 8. 鬯e8† 查h7 9. 罩xg1+--

'Who doesn't dare, doesn't win!'

#### Ex. 19-3

#### Steinberg – Makarov USSR 1966

#### 1.營xf6†! 空xf6 2.奠d4† 空g5 3.奠e3†

(1 point)

#### 3....✿f6

After 3... \$\vec{b}h4?? White can give perpetual check by 4.\$\vec{2}f2\$\dots\$? \$\vec{b}g5 5.\$\vec{e}a3\$\dots\$=.

But 4.f4!! (threatening 皇f2#) is much more unpleasant for Black: 4...習b6 5.罩f3! 鬯xe3†

(1 bonus point for this variation)

#### 4.逸d4† ½\_1/2

#### Ex. 19-4

#### I.Bilek – B.Feustel

Berlin 1983

White saves the game with a combination: 1.罩h6†! 堂xh6 2.②g8† 堂h5 3.②f6†

(1 point)

1/2-1/2

#### Ex. 19-5

#### G.Lisitsin – V.Makagonov

Moscow 1936

1.**②h**7†

But not 1.₺e6†? because of 1...₺g8∓. 1...₺e8 2.₺f6† ₺f8 3.₺h7†

(1 point)

3...∲e8 4.∲f6† ½–½

Ex. 19-6

#### N.Kopaev – I.Vistinietzki

Vilnius 1949

#### 1....鬯f1†!

(1 point)

1....句xe3? would be too optimistic: 2.fxe3 暫f1† 3.空h2 舀xe3 (3...舀f3 4.舀a8† 查g7 5.舀b7†+-) 4.鬯g4+-

'Pride goes before a fall!'

#### 2. 堂xf1 赵xe3† 3. 堂e2 包c4†!

(another 1 point)

#### 4.�f1

4.₾d3?? is bad, due to 4...Ôxb2†-+. 4...Ôe3†

Of course not 4...∕∆xb2?? 5.\@g4+-. 1⁄2-1⁄2

# Solutions

#### Ex. 19-7

G.Orlov – P.Wolff USA 1991

#### 1....₩g4†!

e de la compresente de la comp

(1 point)

Now White must choose the squares for his king moves carefully, so as not to lose his rook on d8.

#### 2.Φf1

Other moves lose the rook: 2.堂e3 幽g5†; 2.堂d2 幽g5†; 2.堂e1 幽h4†

#### 2....鬯c4†!

But not 2...빱f4†?? on account of 3.빱f2+-.

#### 3.Ågl

3.空e1 鬯h4†

3...凹c1† 4.查f2 凹f4†!

#### (another 1 point)

5.魯e2 營g4†

#### 1/2-1/2

#### Ex. 19-8

V.Smysl<u>ov – E.Vasiukov</u>

Moscow 1961

#### 1.邕h5†! gxh5

1/2-1/2

#### Ex. 19-9

#### T.Wedberg – R.Kuczynski

Novi Sad Olympiad 1990

#### 1.邕c8†! 魯b6

The 'desperado' rook cannot be taken:  $1... \stackrel{\circ}{ au}xc8$ ??  $2. \stackrel{\circ}{ au}xb7$ <sup>†</sup>+–.

#### 2.邕c6† 魯a7

#### (1 point)

(1 point)

4....杏c7 5.骂c8†! 杏b6 6.骂c6† ½–½ Ex. 19-10

#### H.Lieb – T.Jackelen

Bundesliga 1990

1.營h5† 營h7 2.營e5† 邕g7 3.營e8† 營g8 4.營h5† 邕h7 5.營e5†

(1 point)

A typical perpetual check. 1⁄2–1⁄2

Ex. 19-11

Based on the game

Baranov – Zeli<u>nsky</u>

Saratov 1950

#### 1.₩xe7! \$xe7

(1 point)

#### Ex. 19-12

Variation from the game

#### V.Panov – L.Abramov

Moscow 1949

#### 1.邕d8†!

#### 1...IIxd8 2.增b3†!

(another 1 point)

(1 point)

3.營c4†? 空h8 4.皇d4† would be bad, due to 4...皇e5†-+.

#### **2...**��h7

If the king goes onto a black square, the queen is lost after the discovered attack: 2... 查g7? 3. 盒d4†+-; 2... 查f8? 3. 盒c5†+-; 2.... 查h8? 3. 黛d4†+--

#### 3.營f7† 查h8 4.營f6† 查h7

Or 4... 查g8 5. 徵xd8† 查f7 6. 徵d5† 查g7 7. 徵g2=.

5.蹭f7†=



If you scored less than 9 points, we recommend that you read the chapter again and repeat the exercises which you got wrong.

# CHAPTER 20

## Contents

- Calculating short variations
- Possibilities for the opponent
- Exercises with mate in two moves



We previously did some exercises with 'mate in two moves' in *Build Up Your Chess 1*, Chapter 9. They are very useful for training in the calculation of variations. One is often forced to take into account a lot of candidate moves in order to reach the solution. It is very important to consider all possible replies for your opponent. This develops your skill in calculating short variations.

Try to solve the positions from this chapter with a short thinking time (a maximum of 10 minutes). If your answer is different from that given in the book, please check through the defensive moves to find why your suggestion fails. In each case there is only one correct solution for these problems.

If after 10 minutes you still have not found the solution, take a good look at the first move. Your task is to then find a mate for **all replies by your opponent**. That way you will get used to thinking out your opponent's moves as well.

Diagram 20-1	
H.Bettman	ſ
1915	

Please consider all possible replies for the opponent. 1. 盒d6! 空f8

1...exf6 2.鬯e7# 1...exd6 2.鬯e8# 1...e6 2.鬯a7# 1...e5 2.鬯b3# **2.鬯xe7#** 



#### Mate in two moves



h g



Diagram 20-3 Ï b d f h а с e g

と ⁄ 冨

Ë

b с d e f

3 2 1 Ż

Δ Diagram 20-4 8 7 6 5 4 Ŵ 3 2 1 d b f h а с e g

In some problems you have to set up the correct threat.



#### 1.營f3!

The threat is simply Wxb7#. Black has no adequate defence.

#### 

1.... 違d5 2. 營xf8# 1...骂b8 2.營a3# 2.營xb7#

#### Calculating variations 2









Diagram 20-5

N.Petrovic

#### 1.營d5!

With the threat of  $rac{100}{3}$ xg2#. Other ways of threatening the mate on g2, such as 1. $rac{100}{3}$ g3, are thwarted by 1...d5.

#### 1....\h2

1...∲h2 2.\∰xg2#

2.₩d1#

In other problems you can exploit a zugzwang.



#### 1.②d5!

And Black is in zugzwang! A knight must move and surrender control of one of the vital squares f6 or f4. 1...23g5

Or 1....<sup>2</sup>7g5 2.<sup>2</sup>f6#. 2.<sup>3</sup>f4#

#### Diagram 20-7

#### E.Livshits & V.Melnichenko

1967

#### 1.<u>\$</u>f4!

This does not threaten mate, but Black faces a decisive quandary: he has to move!

#### 1...b1=₩

Or 1...b1=2 2.\(\mathbf{2.\)\(\mathbf{2}\)c2#.

#### 2.e4#

202

Many mating problems employ typical tactical motifs and help train your eyes to spot the hidden possibilities of the pieces!

#### Diagram 20-8

**E.Martin** 1934

#### 1.営b7!

Here White utilizes a well-known tactical motif – obstruction!

#### 1...**\$xb**7

1...罩xb7 2.營h1# 1....罩e8 2.罩b1# 1....空f1 2.營h1# 1....空d1 2.營b1#

#### 2.凹b1#

#### Diagram 20-9

V.Chepizhny 1968

#### 1.쌭h1!

The queen prepares to make a long move. 1...b1=₩

- 1...b1=∅ 2.₩d5#
- 2.₩a8#

Diagram 20-10

G.Zakhodyakin 1949

#### 1.₩e1!

The queen can reach the a5-d8 and h4-d8 diagonals from far away, in order to deliver the deadly check.

Other queen moves are unsuccessful, for example 1.營e5? fails to 1...c5 and 1.營c6? to 1...e6. **1...e6** (or 1...e5)

1...c5 or 1...c6 is met by 2.幽a5#. 2.窗h4#

In the next set of exercises, please try to consider **all relevant moves** for your opponent. In all the positions in the test, it is of course mate in two moves that you are looking for.







204







EC antenation

# **Solutions**

#### Ex. 20-1

#### **B.Harley & C.Watney**

1921

1.<sup>1</sup>/<sup>1</sup>/<sub>2</sub>/<sub>6</sub>8! h3

OZ YELEVIVEL

1.... 查h6 2. 營h8# 2.營xh3#

(1 point)

Ex. 20-2

J.Buchwald 1937

1.\$a5!

1....c1=₩ 1...f1=鬯 2.②b6# 2.②b6#

Ex. 20-3

H.Weenink

1920

1.c8=鼻! 查b8 2.幻c6#

(1 point)

(1 point)

Ex. 20-4

V.Chepizhny

1968

1.\#d6! \$\phic4 

2.營b4#

(1 point)

Ex. 20-5

M.Lokker

1967

#### 1.營e1! g4

1... 2g4 allows 2. We8#; and after any knight move other than 1.... g4 White has 2.g4#. 2.凹xe5#

(1 point)

Ex. 20-6

G.Zakhodyakin

1969

#### 1.2h1! 2g3

1... dd6(or e3, e7, h6) allows White a choice between  $2.\Xi(x)e3\#$  or  $2.\Xi(x)h6\#$ . 1....②h4 2.④f4# 1.... 纪g7 2. 邕e3#

2.②f2#

(1 point)

#### Ex. 20-7

#### S.Boros

1937

1.\$2g3!

Threatening 🖄 f2#. 1....營xd5 1...增xb8† 2.④d6# 1....凹a3† 2. 24c3# 2.②f2#

(1 point)

Ex. 20-8

#### M.Lokker 1966

#### 1.奠b7!

But not 1.奠c6? on account of 1... 垫c5.

#### 1...d3

1...c2 2.鬯xc2# 1.... 空c5 2. 鬯c6#

#### 2.營d5#

(1 point)

# **Solutions**

Ex. 20-9	Ex. 20-11		
<b>S.Pimenov</b>	A.Kuznetsov		
1956	1968		
1.\$c8! exd6	1.鬯d7! ②xh2		
1e6 2.\$b7#	1 查h3 2. 骂h8#		
1e5 2.鬯d2#	1 查h5 2. 鬯h7#		
2.鬯e4#	1②f6 2.臭g3#		
(1 point)	2.營h7#		
-	(1 point)		
Ex. 20-10			
V.Marin	Ex. 20-12		
1895	<b>V.Lebedev</b>		
- 104 cm - Kh	1929		
1.845! (2)e5			
1∕⊇d6 2.≝d5#	1.\$\Pa3!		
1905 2. <sup>1</sup> / <sub>2</sub> / <sub>2</sub> / <sub>4</sub> / <sub>4</sub>	Threatening \#a4#.		

1		meatening 🕾 a4#.	
1骂d5 2.營xd5#		1b2	
1≌d6 2.≝a4#		1骂b5 2.營a8#	
1≌a8(or c8) 2.≝d5#		1\$b5 2.\$b4#	
2.骂f4#		1≌b4 2. <b>≜</b> xb4#	
	(1 point)	2. <b>2</b> a4#	
	• •		(1 point)

 Scoring

 Maximum number of points is 12

 11 points and above
 > Excellent

 9 points and above
 > Good

 6 points
 > Pass mark

If you scored less than **6** points, we recommend that you read the chapter again and repeat the exercises which you got wrong.

#### Contents

CHAPTER [2]

- Cooperation between the major pieces
- ✓ Mating set-ups with the queen
- Mating set-ups with the rook
- Coordination of the major pieces

#### Diagram 21-1





# Combinations with the major pieces

In this chapter we shall take another look at various combinations in which the major pieces play a decisive part. We have already seen some of them in the chapters on 'Combinations involving files' and 'Back rank combinations'. Above all we wish to study the cooperation between the major pieces, but of course we shall also take a look at some typical tactical motifs.

#### Diagram 21-1

#### M.Vlk – O.Duras

Prague 1899

#### 1...骂b1†!

A sacrifice involving decoying.

#### 2.\$xb1

2. 堂d2 loses more quickly: 2... 罩xf2†! 3. 奠xf2 (3. 堂e3 鬯e2# or 3. 堂e1 鬯e2#) 3... 奠c3†! 4. 堂xc3 (or 4. 堂e3 d4#) 4... 鬯b4#

#### 2....宮b6†!

Black now opens the long diagonal for his bishop.

#### 3.垫c1

3.氯xb6 is followed by 3...增b4† 4.堂c1 氯b2† 5.堂b1 奧a3† 6.堂a1 營b2#.

#### 

5.魯e3 d4#; 5.魯xc3 營b4#.

#### 5...¤b1†!

A fresh sacrifice to decoy the king to b1 once more.

6.营xb1 凹b4† 7.营c1 凹b2#

#### Diagram 21-2

#### R.Kimmelfeld – V.Luchinkin

USSR 1979

#### 1.\ar{\mathbf{Z}xg7\fm}

Another typical combination, which destroys Black's castled position.

#### 

Or 3...hxg5 4.豐xg5 邕g8 5.豐f5† 空h6 (5...邕g6

6.彙xf7+-) 6.彙g5† 查g7 7.彙xf6† 查f8 8.罩xg8† 查xg8 9.營g6† 查f8 10.營xf7#.

4. 包xf7 † 罩xf7 5. 豐xh6 † 包h7 6. 皇xf7 豐f8 7. 豐g6

And Black has no sensible defence against  $\underline{\mathbb{W}g8}$ <sup>†</sup>. **1–0** 

#### Diagram 21-3

**S.Furman – E.Ubilava** USSR 1971

In this game Black set a trap with: 1...2e5

However White saw through the trap and simply played:

#### 2.<u>\$</u>e2!±

On the other hand  $2.\text{(act)} = 2 \text{(better is 4.f4 (better i$ 

#### Mating set-ups with the queen

Here are some mating motifs in which the queen plays an active part.



Budapest 1950

This example demonstrates the strength of the queen. 1.營e8†! 堂h7

If 1...增f8, then simply 2.exf6 營xe8 3.氯xe8 gxf6 4.Ξxe6+-.

2.ወg5†! hxg5 3.፪g6†! ጃxg6 4.ጀh1† ጀh6 5.ጀxh6† gxh6

#### 6.營f7#

This mating position is typical and very beautiful.

Diagram 21-3





#### Tactics 10



#### Diagram 21-7



#### Diagram 21-5 G.Lolli 1763 A similar mating position can be seen in this study. White first brings his queen to e5. 1.營e7† 1.營f6† is just as good. 1.... 空h6 2.營h4† 空g7 3.營d4† 空h6

Or 3... 查g8 4. 智d5† 查g7 5. 智e5†.

4. 響f4† 查g7 5. 響e5† 查h6

5...查g8 is met by 6.鬯xb8† 查g7 7.鬯f8#.

6.邕h5†! gxh5 7.營f6#

#### Diagram 21-6

V.Hort – L.Portisch Madrid 1973

Another typical set-up, in which a bishop supports its queen very well in the attack.

#### 1.邕g4†! fxg4 2.幽g5† 杏h8 3.幽h6!

Black has no defence against the double threat of 4. Wxf8# and 4. Wxh7#.

1–0

Λ

#### Diagram 21-7

G.Agzamov – M.Ruderfer

Uzbek Ch., Tashkent 1974

#### 1.뽑d5!

Black resigned, in view of the following variations: 1... **<sup>w</sup>xd5** 

#### Mating set-ups with the rook

And now some mating motifs with an active rook.



A mating attack can even be fashioned in the endgame.

1...g4† 2. 🖞 f4

2. 空e2 is simply met by 2...b1=營†-+.

2....Äa5!

The threat is ... g5#.

#### 3.e5 ≝a4† 4.e4 ≅a3

#### Diagram 21-9

#### Herrmann – Ranfeld

1976

#### 1...②g3†!

A really spectacular combination.

2.hxg3 邕f6!

And White has no defence against ....\Bh6#, not even after:

- 3.鼍xf2 exf2
- 0–1



Beverwijk 1968

#### 1.¤f3!

This move deflects the black queen from the defence of the g7-square.

#### 1....Ÿxf3?

Did Black really believe that his opponent had simply left the rook lying like that?

1...'''e6 would have been better: 2.'''g7† 空h5 3.罩g3±

#### 2.營g7† 垫h5 3.營xg6†!! hxg6

Or 3... 空h4 4. 鬯xg5#. 4. **罩h8**#



#### Tactics 10



#### Coordination of the major pieces

Diagram 21-11

<u> Wennerström – Garam</u>

Correspondence game 1973

This example shows how well a queen and a rook can cooperate.

#### 1....\#g2!!

The threat is simply  $\dots \Xi ag8$  followed by mate on g3.

#### 2.邕g1

#### 

#### 5...骂xg4†

White resigned. 6. \$f1 \[\Ixf4\] teads to mate.

In the test you should try to exploit the power of the major pieces. Look for active attacking moves!

**>** Ex. 21-4 **≪** 

×



3

2

1

a b c



t-i) monori

 $\triangle$ 

<u>Å</u> Å 🗳

g

h

f

d

e



(mr. )) (mr. )

的第三人称单数 化氯化氯化氯化



#### W.Steinitz – N.N

Vienna 1861

#### 1.邕d8†! 鬯xd8

Or 1... 查h7 2. 罩xh6† gxh6 3. 罾e7† 查g6 4. h5#.

2.營e6† 空h7 3.罩xh6† gxh6 4.營f7#

(1 point)

#### Ex. 21-2

#### U.Andersson – A.Mestel

London 1982

(1 point)

#### 2.営xd2 營xe1† 3.营h2 鼻e5†

This is more accurate than the immediate 3...<sup>Ward2.</sup>

4.g3 ₩xd2†-+

#### Ex. 21-3

**J.Tarjan – A.Karpov** Skopje 1976

Skopje 197

#### 1...曾f4† 2.查h3 邕e3†!

(1 point) White resigned. He is quickly mated after 3.g3 (3.fxe3 幽g3#) 3...罩xg3†!.

#### Ex. 21-4

Based on the game

#### E.Sindik – M.Cebalo

Zagreb/Skopje 1978

#### 1.¤b4!

(1 point) But not 1.邕fc1? on account of 1...邕g1!=. 1...曾c7 Black also loses in all other variations: a) 1...豐xb4 2.豐d8# b) 1...敻xe4† 2.鼍xe4+c) 1...敻xb4 2.豐xb6+-

2.≌xb7!+–

#### Ex. 21-5

Dzambelli – G.Maroczy 1889

#### 1....宫h5†!

(1 point)

But not 1...g6? which allows 2.鬯d8† 空g7 3.皇h6†! 空xh6 4.鬯f8#.

After 1...h5? White has a strong defence in 2.  $g_{1!+-}$ .

The rook sacrifice, decoying the king forward, leads to a forced mate.

2.营xh5 凹h3† 3.营g5 h6† 4.营f4 g5† 5.营e5 凹e6#

(another 1 point for this variation)

#### Ex. 21-6

#### E.Vladimirov – G.Agzamov

USSR 1977

#### 1.¤g6!

(1 point)

1.\Imega was also possible, intending Igh4 followed by Ixh6<sup>†</sup>.

After 1.\Beg6! Black resigned. If 1...\Beg6, then 2.\Lexuble xg6 fxg6 3.\Begr4 xh6 f gxh6 4.\Begr4 xh6#. And after 1...fxg6 there follows the immediate 2.\Begr4 xh6 gxh6 3.\Begr4 xh6#.

#### Ex. 21-7

#### Solter – Brigg

1947

1.營g8†! 邕xg8 2.②g6†! hxg6 3.邕h1# (1 point)
### Solutions

### Ex. 21-8

Tavernier – Grodner

Charleville 1952

1...h4†! 2.空g4 f5†! 3.営xf5 邕g2#

(1 point)

### Ex. 21-9

### B.Spassky – V.Korchnoi

Candidates Match(7), Kiev 1968

### 1.鬯h6†!

(1 point)

Black resigned, in view of 1... 空xh6 2. 置h1# or 1... 空g8 2. 罩c8†+-.

#### Ex. 21-10

### I.Smejkal – A.Adorjan

Vrnjacka Banja 1972

### 1.\#xh6†!

(1 point)

Black resigned. Either he is mated by 1....堂xh6 2.營h4# or he loses his queen after 1....違xh6 2.營xc3.

### Ex. 21-11

Variation from the game

### J.Speelman – A.Yusupov

Linares 1992

### 1...<u>\$xg3!</u>

(1 point)

2.fxg3 舀xg3† 3.垫f1 營h3† 4.垫e1

4.堂e2 罩g2† 5.夐f2 罩xf2†! 6.堂xf2 凹h2†-+. (1 bonus point if you found this idea!)
4...凹h1† 5.堂e2 罩g2† 6.夐f2 Or 6.堂e3 凹h3†-+.
6...罝xf2†! 7.堂xf2 凹h2†-+ Ex. 21-12

#### O.Moiseev – A.Sokolsky

USSR 1951

### 1....②f3†!

(1 point)

(another 1 point)

The strongest continuation. 1...e2? would be bad, because of 2.\$\mu\$xf6+-.

1 consolation point for the slightly less accurate move 1...公g6. Black will win here too, after 2.營xe3 筥f2 3.敻f6 敻xd5† 4.營xf2 岂xf6-+.

### 2. \$xg2

2....�e1† 3.�h2

### 4.✿h1

If 4. 查g3, then 4.... 罩g2† 5. 查h4 约f3† 6. 查h5 罩f5†-+.

### 4...邕f1† 5.杏h2 乞f3† 6.杏g3 邕g1#

en d

ALT ALL ALL A



If you scored less than **8** points, we recommend that you read the chapter again and repeat the exercises which you got wrong.

# CHAPTER 22

### Contents

- Developing all the pieces
- ✓ Coordinating the pieces
- Coordination in the endgame
- ✓ 'General advance!'



# Coordination of the pieces

There is one typical mistake which less experienced players often make: they develop only two pieces and then try to play on and attack their opponent with these pieces. If an experienced player doesn't actually fall off his chair laughing, then he will find it easy to deal with these attacking attempts, since he simply has more pieces available for the defence. Of course you should not behave like that; you should also bring your reserves into play.

It is very important to develop all the pieces quickly. But it is also necessary to be able to coordinate these same pieces well. **The pieces have to mutually support and complement one another**. In the ideal case they should form a single unit. They are only really strong when they work together. Coordinated units are much stronger than an army with regiments which are not cooperating with each other.

### Diagram 22-1

#### C.Adrian – A.Yusupov French Team Ch. 2004

Black begins action against the white position in the centre. In a few moves he manages to organize massive pressure against the e3-pawn. White tries his luck on the queenside, but he has to send some of his forces to help the defence.

### 1.... 2g4 2. 2d2 exf4 3.gxf4 2be8

The black pieces are now playing actively together; both the knight on g4 and the rook on e8 are attacking the vulnerable point in the white position – the e3-pawn.

### 4.宮f3 包c5 5.皇xc5 dxc5 6.h3

White has to chase away the active knight, but in doing so he slightly weakens his castled position. 6...②f6 7.營a2

White prepares a5-a6. This attack on the queenside is not dangerous, since White cannot properly coordinate his forces there. Black concentrates his

sectored we have

pieces on the kingside and the centre. They will be attacking the e3-pawn, but at the same time they will also be protecting the queenside.

### 7...邕f7! 8.鬯a3 鼻f8

The bishop must protect the c5-pawn.

### 9.a6 bxa6 10.\"xa6 Ife7

### Diagram 22-2

Doubling the rooks is a simple form of the coordination of the major pieces.

### 11.杏f2 볼e6!

The queen too can crank up the pressure on e3. White is forced to end his operations on the queenside and bring the queen back into defence. 12.@a2@e7 13.@d2

### Diagram 22-3

Compare the positions of the pieces. Black is much more harmoniously developed and is attacking on the kingside with all his forces. On the other hand, the white pieces are not so well coordinated, the knight on b6 is out of play and even the rook on b3 is not really taking part in the game.

### 13...Ôh5!

Black prepares to open the position on the kingside in order to activate his bishop and queen.

### 14.Da4

White tries to bring his lonely knight back home, but he does not have time to do so.

### 14...凹h4† 15.堂g2 g5! 16.fxg5 鬯xg5† 17.堂f2 皇h6 Diagram 22-4

Black is coordinating four pieces in his attack on the e3-pawn; moreover the knight and the f5-pawn are also participating in the attack on the kingside. It is no wonder that White cannot hold his position together.

### 18.d4 f4

The destruction of the pawn shield around the white king is the quickest way to victory.

### 19.包xf4 凹h4† 20.空g1 皇xf4 21.exf4 罩e1† 22.罩f1 罩xf1†

22... $\Xi$ 8e2-+ or 22... $\bigtriangleup$ xf4 23. $\Xi$ bf3 Bg5† 24.Ch1  $\Xi$ 8e2 would also be very strong. But having seen that the move played in the game also won easily, Black aimed for a simpler solution.

### 25.营xf1 包g3† 26.鼍xg3†

Or 26. 空g1 凹xh3 27. 罩e3 凹h1 † 28. 空f2 凹h2 † and



Black wins.

26...增xg3 27.包xc5 筥e3!

And White resigned, since the loss of his queen is unavoidable.

In the endgame the coordination of the pieces plays an even greater part. In his masterpiece *My System*, Nimzowitsch describes the importance of coordination in these terms:

'Coordination is 80 per cent of all endgame technique; all the individual topics we have treated here such as centralization, bridge building, hiding and gap plugging are subordinate to the main goal, coordination. They are like the cogs which fit together in the movement of a clock and set the whole mechanism in motion; so what we are talking about is a slow but steady advance of the serried ranks of your army. "General advance!" is the watchword!'

### Diagram 22-5

### K.Shirazi – A.Yusupov

Saint John 1988

White already has severe problems opposing the well coordinated black army. However, the next move is a clear mistake.

### 1.②f4?

1. $\mathbb{Z}$ d1 is an improvement, although Black is still doing well after 1... $\mathbb{Q}$ e5 $\mp$  and then ... $\mathbb{Q}$ f3.

### 1...cxd4 2. 2xd3 dxe3 3. 2e2

3.骂d1 is bad, in view of 3...逸f3-+.

### Diagram 22-6

Black has an extra pawn, and in addition his bishop can provide very good support to the passed pawn. In such positions, winning is relatively simple. Black simply has to play as Nimzowitsch recommended, coordinate his pieces and then the 'general advance'!

### 5...f6 6.鼍c1 堂f7 7.堂e3 e5 8.a4 堂e6

The king 'plugs' the gaps in the position and supports its passed pawn perfectly.

9.a5 f5 10.c5 bxc5 11.包d3 皂d5 12.包xc5† 卤d6



「「小山」をデオーを、「

### 13.b4 g5 14. 2a6 f4†

### The pawns move forward slowly, but surely. 15.堂f2 e4 16.h4 h6 17.②c7 堂e5 18.hxg5 hxg5 19.gxf4† gxf4 20.邕c5 e3† 21.堂e2 堂e4

There is no defence against this coordinated attack; the exchange of all the pieces on d5 leads to a lost pawn ending. 0–1

### Diagram 22-7

### A.Yusupov – O.Cvitan

Dresden 1998

The white king, rook and knight are all supporting the passed h-pawn, and in addition they will create mating threats against the black king.

### 1.핲g5 営xa4

1....莒g1 is met by 2.堂f4±.

### 2. 2f5 🗄 al

2......Za7 would be no better, in view of 3.h5 b5 4.h6+-.

### 

The rook is very well positioned here; it is restricting the black king to the 8th rank and hindering any further advance of the b-pawn.

### 4....뽑f1 5.핲g6 핲e8

If Black tries 5....邕xf5, then the intermediate check 6.邕b8†! results in a win for White after 6....登e7 7.岱xf5.

5.... 莒g1† 6.堂f6 堂g8 is also no improvement, on account of 7. ②h6† 登h8 8. ③f7† 堂g8 (or 8... 堂h7 9. ③g5† and mate next move) 9. 莒b8† 堂h7 10. 莒h8#. 6. **h5 ③d2** 

The black knight arrives too late. Once again White makes the most of the better cooperation of his pieces.

### 7.h6 De4

7...置g1† 8.萤f6 包e4† is followed by 9.萤e5 包g5 10.包d6† 萤f8 (10...萤d8 11.h7+-) 11.萤f6+-.

### 8.鼍e7† 岱d8

After 8...堂f8 9.罩f7† 垫e8 10.<sup>4</sup>2g7† White wins the rook.

### 9.¤xe4!

This is the simplest solution. White pushes his h-pawn through after 9...dxe4 (or 9...置g1† 10.营h5



CITANT REPAIR

dxe4 11.h7 莒h1† 12.心h4+- and White has built a bridge) 10.h7 莒h1 11.心h6 莒g1† 12.空f5 莒f1† 13.空xe4 莒f8 14.公g8+-. 1-0

In the next test, try to coordinate your pieces properly. Often the simplest way to achieve that is to attack an opposing weakness with all your forces.

### Exercises





### Exercises





### A.Yusupov – J.Hickl

Cologne 1999

1.₩c7!

(1 point) 1...鬯g8 2.鬯c1† g5 3.逸e4 莒f7 4.逸d5+-鬯h8 5.逸xf7

Black resigned, because 5...Ξa1 allows 6.Ξb6† 空g7 7.鬯xa1†.

### Ex. 22-2

### A.Yusupov – W.Rapparlie

Swiss Team Ch. 2004

### 1...&d6!

(1 point)

This is the only way to secure a draw for Black. Other moves are followed by a knight fork.

### 2.鼍xd3

2.\arrowscarsec 2.\arrowscars

### 2....莒g2† 3.杏f3 莒gf2† 4.杏g3

But not 4.햪e3?? 茑ce2† 5.햪d4 茑e4† 6.햪c3 茑c4#.

4...骂g2† 5.杏f3 骂gf2† 6.杏g3 ½–½

### Ex. 22-3

### M.Cebalo – A.Yusupov

Bastia (rapid) 2004

### 1....**¤d**8!

(1 point) This leads to an advantageous position for Black

1... $\Xi$ c2 would be rather bad, because of 2. $\bigcirc$ c4!+-. And if 1...&e8?! then also 2. $\bigcirc$ c4 $\pm$ . **2.\textcircled{B}c4** 

2.Oc4 is met by 2... $\nexists$ xd4 3.Oxb6 e8 and the weakness of the b5-pawn gives Black an edge.

### 2....皇e8 3.包f3

Or 3.₩xe2 ₩xc5∓.

### 3....≌b2∓ 4.≌e1?

Better is 4.€)d4∓.

4...奧xb5 5.營c3 奧c6 6.包d4 罩b1 7.罩xb1 營xb1† 8.查h2 奧d5∓

8...盒xg2!? would not be so clear: 9.堂xg2 營e4† 10.營f3 (10.公f3 罩d3-+) 10...罩xd4 11.罩c8† 查h7 12.罩c7干.

9.f3 營g6 10.g4 營d6† 11.空h3 兔e6 12.包xe6 營xe6 13.罩b5 b6 14.營c7 罩d6 15.罩b4 h5 16.罩e4 hxg4† 17.空g3 營d5∓ 18.罩xg4? 營e5†

0–1

### Ex. 22-4

### A.Yusupov – M.Mrdja

Rapid game 2004

### 1.₩e2!

White threatens 🖄 xg6†.

1. 25? would not be so strong, on account of 1...  $2c8\mp$ .

Only 1 point for 1. $\Xi$ ce1 which can be met by 1... $\Xi$ d8 $\infty$ .

### 1....莒d8 2.邕exc5 乞d7?

After 2...心c4! 3.臣c6 鬯d2 (3...鬯xa3? 4.邕1xc4 bxc4 5.鬯e5† f6 6.邕xf6+-) 4.鬯xd2 ②xd2 5.鼍xa6 ②xb3= Black could hold the position.

3.罩d5! 凹e6 4.凹xe6 fxe6 5.罩d6 包e5 6.罩xe6 包d3 7.罩d1!?

Or 7.\"Ef1 \[Dc5 (7...\[Dxf2 8.\]Xxa6±) 8.\]Ee3±. 7...\[Dc5 8.\]Zxd8 \[Zxd8 9.\]Ee3±

### Ex. 22-5

M.Krasenkow – K.Sakaev

Copenhagen 2003

### 1.②e5!

(1 point)

(2 points)

This natural move sees White start an attack on the kingside.

1....鼍xa3 2.包xg6 包g7 3.鼍d8† 查f7 4.包e5† 查e7 5.包c6† 查f7 6.鼍d7† 查f8 7.g6 包e8 8.鼍f7†

### Solutions

Black resigned. 8... \$28 is followed by 9.例e7† 垫h8 10.罩h7#.

### Ex. 22-6

### G.Michelakis – A.Yusupov

Copenhagen 2003

#### 1....9d4!

2.¤g3

(1 point)

And 2. 2b6 loses simply to 2... \area5t.

#### 2....営a5†

White resigned, on account of 3. \$\presstyle{2}g4 (3.营h4 幻f5†-+) 4...骂g5† 5.营f4 (5.营h4 ②f5#) 5...④e2†-+.

(another 1 point for this variation)

#### Ex. 22-7

V.Smyslov – P.Benko

Monte Carlo 1969

### 1.岔f1!

(1 point)

(1 point)

1.h4 would not be so strong, but nevertheless you get 1 consolation point.

#### 1....邕xf2†

If 1... 邕b2, then 2.f4! 查f5 3.h3 followed by ₿**f**7#.

(another 1 point for this variation) 2. 堂xf2+- 堂xg5 3. 堂e3 堂g4 3.b5 堂h3 4.邕c4 ②b2 5.邕c2 1 - 0

### Ex. 22-8

#### A.Yusupov – S.Lputian Kazan 1997

### 1.¤b4!

White wins a pawn. 1...b5 Or 1..., Zb8 2, \$xc6+-. 2.\$xc6±

Ex. 22-9

A.Yusupov – Computer Rebel

Ischia (blitz) 1997

### 1...<u></u>ģg3!

Black threatens ... \$e1#.

2.営b1

2... 邕e2 3. 堂b4 邕xe3 4. 包g5 皇d6† 5. 堂a5 邕xa3† 6.堂b6 邕b3† 7.邕xb3 cxb3-+ 8.包f3 鼻f4 9. 空c5 b2 10. 空xd5 b1=凹 11. 包e5 皇xe5 12.dxe5 We4+ 13.de6 f4 14.de6 f3 15.e6 f2 16.e7 f1=₩ 17.\$d7 ₩b5† 0-1

#### Ex. 22-10

### A.Shirov – A.Yusupov

European Team Ch., Batumi 1999

### 

(1 point)

(1 point)

Black recovers the pawn.

2.鼻c7

2.c5? ②xc5 3.奠xc5 骂d1<sup>†</sup>-+.

(another 1 point for this variation)

### 2....莒d4 3.g3

1/2-1/2

#### Ex. 22-11

T.Thorhallsson – A.Anastasian

Capelle la Grande 1996

### 1.\\B6!

(1 point)

But not 1.\mathbb{Z}c7? on account of 1...\mathbb{Z}b7!!=.

### 

1..., 国h7 2. 国a6† 国a7 3.b6! 国xa6 4.b7† 空a7 5.b8=營#

(another 1 point for this variation) 2.留b7

### 1-0

loses to 3. 268† (or 3.66 264† 4. 267 2xc7† 5.bxc7+-) 3... 查a7 4.b6† 查a6 5.邕a8†.

### **Solutions**

Ex. 22-12

### <u> E.Post – A.Alekhine</u>

Mannheim 1914

### 1....Ïf2!

(1 point)

### **2.∕∆d6**†

If 2.罩xf2<sup>†</sup>, then 2...gxf2 3.堂g2 h3<sup>†</sup> 4.堂f1 h2-+.

### 

General advance!

### 4.魯xh4 鼻d8† 5.魯h5 呂h2†

White resigned, in view of 6. Big 6 g2 7.Big 1 = 1  $Big h_{1-+}$ .



If you scored less than **8** points, we recommend that you read the chapter again and repeat the exercises which you got wrong.

## CHAPTER 23

### Contents

- Dangerous knight moves
- ✓ Knight forks
- Attacking a hemmed-in king



### **Combinations with knights 2**

In this chapter we shall take another look at the numerous possibilities for the knight. A knight is a very nimble and awkward piece, which is why less experienced players frequently overlook knight moves. These moves (especially knight forks) can be very dangerous and lead to material losses. Here are some typical combinations, in which the knight plays a decisive part.

### **Knight Forks**

After the queen, the knight is perhaps the most dangerous piece for executing a double attack.



1916

In this position the black queen will eventually become the victim of a fork.

### 1.f4† ₩xf4

1.... \$xf4 2. 2e2 +--

### 2.②e2 營f8

Other moves also lose:

b) 2....<sup>™</sup>e3 3.<sup>©</sup>g4<sup>†</sup>+−

- c) 2....鬯xg5 3.②f7†+-
- 3.②g4† 魯d5

3... 查f5 is followed by 4. 创d4† 查xg5 (or 4... 查f4)

5.囵xe6†+-.

### 4.②f6†!

This sacrifice prepares the decisive double attack.

### 4...exf6

### 5.幻f4† 魯xc5

Nor are other moves any better: 5... \$\Delta e 5 6. \$\Delta xg6\$+-- or 5... \$\Delta d4 6. \$\Delta xe6\$+--.

6.@xe6†+-

ange af 28 3 e f 90 f 2 f 2 f

### Diagram 23-2 J.Polgar – A.Yusupov Madrid 1995

Here White played:

### 1.營xf6

### Attacking a hemmed-in king

Frequently the side with the knight can take advantage of situations in which the opposing king is stuck in the corner for various variations on the theme of smothered mate. (This motif was also treated in *Build Up Your Chess 1*, Chapter 23.)

### Diagram 23-3

The end of a study by



### 1.②g5† 查h8!

1... 堂g8 loses even more quickly after 2. 違a2† 堂f8 (2... 堂h8 3. 堂f7! and so on, as in the main line) 3. 違f7! and mate follows.

Of course 1... 空h6 allows the immediate 2. 约行#.

### 2.**\$a2! \$b**7

Nor would 2...h4 be any better, due to 3.\$f7! h3 4.\$f8 h2 5.\$f7! \$h7 6.\$b1\$+--.

### 3.\$f7! \$a6! 4.\$f8 \$d3 5.\$g8!

Threatening 约f7#.

### 5...\$g6 6.\$h7!

The black pawn prevents the bishop from retreating to h5. Black either loses his bishop or he is mated.

### **6...**\$xh7

This deprives the king of the h7-square. 7.②f7#





### Tactics 11







#### Diagram 23-4

#### Perez – C.Chaude de Silans

1958

White exploits the overloading of the black queen for a nice tactical blow.

### 1.邕xf7! 凹e5†

The bishop is pinned and after 1... 🖞 xf7 there follows 2. 🖞 xd8† 🖞 g8 3. 🖞 f6†+-.

#### 2.f4 ₩d6

The queen must protect the rook on d8.

### 3.營b2† 營d4 4.邕f8†!

A deflecting sacrifice which Black cannot accept.

#### 4...<u>\$g</u>8

4...邕xf8 5.鬯xd4++-

### 5.包g5!

A pretty move which exploits the pinned position of the black pieces. Black cannot parry the mating threat of 267 and so resigned.

#### Diagram 23-5

The end of a study by

### V.Korolkov

1951

### 1.✿h6!

This is the only winning move.

1.堂xg4? is followed by 1...遑xf5† 2.堂xf5 堂g7 3.堂e6 堂f8 4.堂f6 stalemate.

If 1. 空f6? then 1... 罩g8 2. ④e7 罩d8=.

#### 1....**¤g8**

1...,置g6† does not help matters: 2.堂xg6 黛xf5† 3.堂h6+-.

### 2.乞e7 鼻e6

#### 3.fxg8=鬯†!

But not 3. ②g6†? 邕xg6† 4. 垫xg6 黛xf7†=.

### 3...\$xg8 4.2g6#

Another smothered mate, as in the study by Bron.

A knight can also threaten a king which is hemmed in on the edge of the board.

### Diagram 23-6

### L.Vadasz – P.Lukacs

Hungarian Ch., Budapest 1977

Black exploits the endangered position of the white king.

1...g5!

Threatening 1... \area h4\frac{1}{2.gxh4} g4\frac{1}{3.\Delta g3} \area e2#.

### 2.邕fe1

2.骂g1 is simply met by 2...纪e2-+.

### 2...뽑f4!

### 0-1

The threat is 3...g4#. And after 3.gxf4 there comes 3...g4† 4.  $\mathring{\Phi}g3$  Of5#.

### Diagram 23-7

M.Shereshevsky – A.Buslaev

### 1973

In the game White did not find the winning move and played:

### 1.包g5?

White could have mated his opponent after 1.2h8!!, when 2.2g6# cannot be prevented. 1...2d3

### 0–1

### Diagram 23-8

The end of a study by

### M.Liburkin

How should White proceed against the advance ... e3-e2?

### 1.②c5!

The only way! If 1.句f4? then 1...e2†! 2.包xe2 勾f1! 3.句c3 句e3† 4.堂d2 勾f1†=.

### 1...e2† 2.营d2 幻f1†

Black wins the rook, but...

### 3.空c1 空xe1

3...堂e3 survives longer, but also loses: 4.堂c2 ②h2 5.②d3 ②f3 (5...②f1 6.罝a1+-) 6.罝b1 ②d4† 7.堂c3+-4.②d3#



f

g h

4

3

2

1

a b c d e

### Tactics 11



Diagram 23-10

8 7 6 5 ප 4 3 2 1 đ f h с е h а g Λ Diagram 23-11 8 7 6 Ŵ 5 Å 4 3 2 1 d f b с e h а g

Diagram 23-9

#### Mueller – Weihnacht

1937

### 1...De4!

Black utilizes his knight-queen battery for a rapid attack. 1... 2a4-+ would also be good.

### 2.**�\_h**4

White cannot take the knight because of the double check and mate after  $2.\cancel{2}xe4$  (3d3# (or  $2...\cancel{2}c2#$ ).

### 2...ᡚc5 3.₩g3

The queen is forced to abandon the defence of c2. 3... <a>Wxa3!</a>

After Black has driven away the queen, he gets rid of the second defender and threatens ... (2)c2#.

Every player knows from his own experience that combinations are not always correct. But sometimes even incorrect combinations achieve the desired aim!



### C.Golmayo Zupide – S.Loyd

Paris 1867

### 1....¤a1†?!

Instead of this spectacular sacrifice, Black should simply exchange rooks or first give a check on g5, e.g. 1...  $\underline{\mathbb{B}}$  g5 $\dagger$  2.  $\underline{\mathbb{C}}$  b1  $\underline{\mathbb{B}}$  xa3 3.bxa3  $\underline{\mathbb{B}}$  xg4-+.

### 2.**Ξxa1 鬯g5† 3.空b1 包d2† 4.空c1** 4.空a2?? Ξa8†-+

### 4... 包b3† 5. 雪b1 凹c1 †?!

Black did not want to give perpetual check! He tried with all his might to entice the king on to a2.

### Diagram 23-11

### 6.邕xc1??

Greed (according to GM Jonathan Rowson) is one of the seven deadly sins in chess too.

6. a2! was correct: 6... accent accenter accent accent accent accent accent accent accent accent ac

### 6....包d2†7.营a2 邕a8†

We know this as Anastasia's mate (see *Build Up Your Chess 1*, Chapter 1).

### Exercises





THE SECTION AND A DESCRIPTION

### Exercises



Contraction of the second





USSR Ch., Moscow 1988

### 1.2g5†!

### 1 - 0

1.2b7† or 1.2xe5 would also have won easily, but the move in the game leads to a forced mate: 1...fxg5 2.凹f5#.

Ex. 23-2

The end of a study by

### A.Troitzky

1897

### 1. g2†!

1.... 查xg2 2. 包f4† 查g1 3. 查e1 Black is in zugzwang. 3...g2 4. De2#

(another 1 point)

Ex. 23-3 The end of a study by

A.Gurvitch

1929

### 1.営h8!

1...Be6

1...b2 2.邕a8† 曾b3 3.④c5†+-

### 2.邕a8†

But not 2. 2c5?? on account of 2... Ze1#.

### 6.Øc4#

(another 1 point for this variation)

Ex. 23-4

The end of a study by

L.Kubbel

1925

### 1.營b2†

(1 point) If 1. 營d2† 查b5 2. 營e2†, then 2... ④d3!=. 1...Øb3

1... 查a5 is met by 2. ②c4† 查a6 3. 營b6#. 2.凹a3†!! 空xa3 3.包c2#

(another 1 point)

Ex. 23-5

### A.Beliavsky – A.Yusupov

Ubeda 1997

### 1...Øc2!

(1 point) Black wins the exchange and so White resigned. 2.邕e2 is followed by 2...④b4-+.

Ex. 23-6

### Dal – Sperber

1968

### 

(1 point) Mate can even be achieved one move quicker by 1. ②c7†! 空b8 2. 邕d8†! (also 1 point) 2...遑c8 (2...邕xd8 3.⁄公a6† 峦a8 4.凹b8† 邕xb8 5.匃c7#) 3.匂a6† 啻b7 4.鬯b8† 壺xa6 (or 4...杏c6 5.鬯b5#) 5.鬯b5#.

### 1...\$c8

If 1... Ixd8, then 2. ②c7† 查b8 3. ②a6† 查a8 (3... 查c8 4. 鬯c7#) 4. 鬯b8† 邕xb8 5. ②c7#. 2.營xf3†

### 1-0

(1 point)

(1 point)

(1 point)

### Solutions

### Ex. 23-7

V.Korchnoi – A.Karpov

World Championship Match (17), Baguio City 1978

### 1...Øf3†!

2년1년\_31년 오네 오네 위

(1 point)

White resigned, as he is mated after either 2.堂h1 创f2# or 2.gxf3 罩g6† 3.堂h1 创f2#.

### Ex. 23-8

Based on

### P.Romanovsky

### 1.營f8†!

(2 points)

### 1...**¤xf8**

1....空xf8 2.罩h8#

2.∕De7#

### Ex. 23-9

**M.Tal – N.N.** 1974

### 1.Df5!

(1 point)

But not 1. $\underline{W}h5$ ? because of 1...f5-+.

### 1....**₩g**5

### 2.鬯h5!

(another 1 point) The threat is 鬯h8#. Black resigned, in view of 2...鬯xh5 (or 2...f6 3.②e7#) 3.②e7† 查h7 4.罩xh5#. Ex. 23-10

G.Chepukaitis – N.N.

2002

### 1.d6!

### 1....äxg5

#### 2.@xg5!

And 🖄 xf7# will follow.

1–0

### Ex. 23-11

### Ed.Lasker – I.Horowitz 1946

15

### 1...₩a5!

### 2.幻d2

If 2.奠e2, then 2...②c2† 3.堂f1 ②xa1-+. After 2.鬯d2 there follows 2...②e4!-+.

### 2...曾e5†! 3.包e2 包d3#

(1 bonus point for this variation)

### Ex. 23-12

G.Levenfish

### 1.②f3!

(1 point)

(1 point)

(1 point)

White wins a pawn. If 1...c5, then  $2.2g5\pm$  threatens both 2f7 and 2xe6.



If you scored less than 9 points, we recommend that you read the chapter again and repeat the exercises which you got wrong.

# CHAPTER 24

### Contents

- ✓ What is zugzwang?
- ✓ Reserve tempi
- ✓ Other zugzwang situations





### Zugzwang

Zugzwang describes 'the obligation in a game to make a move, even if this move results in a worsening of one's own position.' (Meyers Schachlexikon)

Zugzwang situations mostly occur in the endgame, when there are only a few pieces left on the board.

We have already looked at some important zugzwang positions in pawn endings. In the ending 'king + pawn against king' the stronger side often requires a zugzwang to be able to win

### Diagram 24-1

In the struggle for the key squares d6, e6 and f6, White gains the opposition, because he still has the *reserve tempo* e3-e4!

1.e4! 화f7 2.화d6

Flanking.

### 

4.e5 wins here too, because the central pawn has already reached the other half of the board and the white king is in front of the pawn, e.g. 4... 268 5. 2646 268 6.e6 268 7.e7 $\odot$ .

In *Build Up Your Chess 1*, Chapter 10 - 'The opposition', we learned about some other zugzwang situations. It can be said that there is almost always a zugzwang in pawn endings. The positions involving mutual zugzwang are especially interesting. In them *reserve tempi* often play a decisive role.

### Diagram 24-2

In pawn endgames it is very useful to have some pawns still on their starting squares, because then you have the choice of moving forward one square or two squares. In a zugzwang situation, this can decide the game.

### 1.a3!

1.a4? would be wrong, due to 1...a5 and White would already be in zugzwang.

### 1...a5 2.a4+-

Now Black is in zugzwang. He has to move his king and loses the g5-pawn.

And here are a few more important zugzwang situations.



### 1.f4??

### Diagram 24-4

Black must move his king and leave the square of the h-pawn. A typical zugzwang situation!

Let's go back to the position after 1.f4??.

### 1...f6!

Black prevents the white breakthrough f5-f6.

#### 2.g5 营d4

0–1

### Diagram 24-5

**V.Borisenko – K.Zvorykina** Riga 1963

White has wrongly evaluated the transition to a pawn ending.

### 1.... 增xf4†! 2. 堂xf4 a4! 3. 堂e4 b4! 4. 堂xd4 bxa3 5. 堂c3 堂g5⊙

The white king cannot move and Black wins both the g- and the d-pawns. Then White will be left without any sensible moves.

### 6.d4 🖄 xg4

0–1

But in other endgames too, zugzwang plays an important part. In the examples which follow you



correction of the contract of

Diagram 24-6 Λ 8 7 6 5 4 3 2 1 b d f h a с e g Diagram 24-7  $^{\wedge}$ 8 7 6 5 4 3 2 1 b d с f h a e g Diagram 24-8 8 7 6 5 4 3 2 1

d

e

b

с

а

f

h

g

should first try to spot the zugzwang situation and work out how to exploit it. A typical marker for such situations is that the mobility of the opposing pieces is severely restricted.

### Diagram 24-6

The end of a study by

### V.Korolkov

1947

### 1.¤e6!

Endgame 4

It is important to control the e1-square. 1...@xh4

### Diagram 24-7

The end of a study by

### A.Gurvitch

1927

### Diagram 24-8

The end of a study by

### H.Rinck

1926

### 1.₫h6!⊙

But not 1. h4? on account of 1... ad4 +=.

### 1...¤xc7

Other moves also lose:

- a) 1...."xc7 2.\"f8#
- b) 1...≝b2 2.≌c8#
- 2.營f8†+-



1927

### 1.₩d3!⊙

There is no threat, but Black has to move the queen and finds himself without a sensible way to protect the important squares c3 and a3.

### 1...₩al

Other moves also lose quickly:

- a) 1.... \$a4 2. \$a3#
- b) 1...增f2 2.鬯c3† 垫a4 3.鬯a3#
- c) 1...凹c1 2.凹a3† 空c4 3.b3++-
- 2.營c3† 曾a4 3.b3†+-



### Exercises



CORAME LEVES



### Exercises





· 二、王一尼、平、王、平、王、王、王、王、

### Solutions

### Ex. 24-1

### G.Goldberg – V.Zak

Leningrad 1934

1.h6! gxh6 2.gxh6 화f6 3.f5① 1–0

(1 point)

### Ex. 24-2

1.堂c6! b5 2.堂c5 b4 3.axb4#

(1 point)

### Ex. 24-3

### F.Sackmann

1911

1.뽑h2! 핲g5

If 1....∲h5, then 2.∲f4⊙+–.

2.筥h1!

d N

CITE A EY E ECER

But not 2. 2 h3? on account of 2.... 倉e1=. 2.... **2h5 3. 查f**4①+-

(1 point)

(1 point)

(1 point)

(1 point)

### Ex. 24-4

The end of a study by

J.Fritz 1953

1.皇f7†! 空g5 2.皇e8!①+-

Ex. 24-5

### **P.Morphy**

### 1.≝h6!⊙ gxh6

Or 1...\$d5 2.\mathbb{Z}xh7#. 2.g7#

### Ex. 24-6

1.ዿੈd2! �b7 2.�c6⊙+-

Ex. 24-7

### 1.a4!

(1 point)

It is important to leave the b-pawn on its starting position.

1.b4?? loses to 1...b5; whereas 1.b3?? loses to 1...a6 2.a4 (2.b4 b5<sup>(2)</sup>) 2...a5<sup>(2)</sup>.

### 1...a6 2.b4!

Of course not 2.b3?? a5<sup>O</sup>.

Also bad is 2.a5? although White can still save the game: 2...bxa5 3.b3 a4 4.bxa4 a5① 5.萤g2 萤xh4 6.萤h2 萤g5 7.萤g3 萤f5 8.萤g2 萤e4 9.萤g3 萤d4 10.萤xg4 萤c3 11.萤f3 萤b3 12.萤e2 萤xa4 13.萤d2 萤b3 14.萤c1=

### 2...a5

Or 2...b5 3.a50. **3.b5**0+-

### Ex. 24-8

1.邕h1†! ��d2 2.��b3!+-

(1 point)

Black is in zugzwang and loses the bishop.

### Ex. 24-9

The end of a study by

D.Goldberg 1931

1.\$d7!

(1 point)

Other moves do not win, e.g. 1.&f5?  $\mathring{D}a8$ 2.&e4† Dd5†=.

1.... 空a8 2. 堂c6† 空b8 3. 堂b7<sup>①</sup> 堂h4 4. 堂xc7# (another 1 point for this variation)

### Ex. 24-10

### A.Ilyin Zhenevsky – M.Botvinnik Leningrad 1938

1.曾f3! first is correct.

(1 point)

Black loses in all lines:

- a) 1....화e6 2.화f4

(another 1 point for these variations)

### 1...g6!

Of course not 1...  $\triangle e6$ ?? because of  $2.g3\odot$ .

A draw was agreed here. 2.hxg6† is followed by 2...堂xg6 3.g3 h5① 4.e6 堂f6 5.e7 堂xe7 6.堂xf5 h4!=.

### Ex. 24-11 M.Taimanov – R.Ekstroem

Stockholm 1984

### 1.h3!

(1 point)

1.min xg5? is no good, due to 1...in f3†=.

Nor does 1. 248? win, on account of 1... 创3 2.h3 创e5† 3. 查xg5 (if 3. 查h5 查f3 4.g4, then 4... 查g2!=) 创f7† 4. 查f6 创xd8 5.g4 查f4 6.g5 创b7 7.g6 创d6=.

There is an alternative win, but it is much more complicated and so only earns 1 point: 1.h4 gxh4 2.gxh4 营d5 (2...纪c4 3.h5 包e3† 4.합g5 친f5 5.象b8 친d4 6.h6 친e6† 7.합f6 친f8 8.象d6+-) 3.합f5 친f3 4.h5 친d4† 5.합f6 친e6 6.象g3 친f8 7.h6 친h7† 8.합f5 친f8 9.象e5 친h7 10.象g7+-

1...∕⊇f3 2.黛b6⊙

(another 1 point)

2....包e5† 3. 空xg5 空f3 4. 皇c7

Black resigned, in view of 4... \$\$xg3 5.h4+-.

### Ex. 24-12

R.Reti – F.Marshall

Baden-Baden 1925

White must reach the same position with Black to move.

### 1.✿g3!

(1 point) There is the equally good 1.堂f3 堂f5 2.堂g3 g4 (2...堂f6 3.堂g4⊙) 3.堂h4 堂f4 4.d6 g3 5.堂h3 堂f3 6.d7 g2 7.忆d4† 堂f2 8.忆e2+-. 1...堂f7

Or 1... 화f5 2. 화f3 화f6 3. 화g4⊙+-.

(another 1 point)

2.화f3 화f6 3.화g4⊙ 화g6 4.d6 b4 5.d7 1–0

### Scoring Maximum number of points is 16



If you scored less than **8** points, we recommend that you read the chapter again and repeat the exercises which you got wrong.

















F-1

Tactics /Chapter 1

### A.Filipowicz – Z.Gabrys

Polish Ch., Wroclaw 1960

### 1.營xh5!

(1 point)

1.ģe7? �c6! 2.ģxf8 ₩xf8 3.0–0–0 �xd4∓ 1...gxh5

1...exd4<sup>†</sup> would be more stubborn, although the simple 2.鬯e2 is good for White. 2.\$f6!

(another 1 point) Of course not 2. ②f6†? ✿h8∓.

### 2.... 2 d7

Or 2... $\underline{W}e6$  3. $\underline{\Xi}xg7$ <sup>†</sup> (3. $\underline{\$}xg7$  also wins) 3... 查h8 4. 違d3 e4 5. 違xe4 鬯xe4 † 6. 查d2 鬯f5 7.邕g8† 岱xg8 8.纪e7#.

### 3.\$xg7!+- h6 4.2f6†

4.奠xe5†! is also good: 4... 查h7 5.奠d3† f5 6.邕g7† 查h8 7.邕xd7†+--.

### 4... ②xf6 5. 違xf6† 查h7 6. 邕g7† 查h8 7. 邕xf7† 空g8 8.邕e7†

1 - 0

### F-2

Strategy /Chapter 2

### M.Euwe – I.Capablanca

Netherlands 1938

### 1. 2c6!

(1 point)

This ensure that the c7-pawn remains blocked and weak.

1.f3 would not be so good, due to  $1...c5 \rightleftharpoons$ . After 1.2f4 Black can even chance 1...g5.

### 1....皇xc6 2.鬯xc6 鬯xc6 3.岂xc6 邕f6 4.邕fc1 Ixc6 5.Ixc6 皇d6 6.a3±

F-3

Tactics /Chapter 3

A.Sznapik – N.Gaprindashvili

Sandomierz 1976

Black exploits the weakness of the back rank. 1....鬯xc1†! 2.鬯xc1 臭xb2

(1 point) White resigned, since 3.\"xb2?? allows 3... It and otherwise he is losing the rook on a3.

F-4

Tactics /Chapter 5

### A.Yusupov – S.Berndt

Bundesliga 2001

### 1.\argee e4!

(2 points)

be nearly as good, but the active position of the queen on the 7th rank brings extra advantages in the game.

### 1....營d2†

If 1..., 當f8, then 2. 營e6† 查h8 3. 營xc4+-.

### 2.��g3 邕f8 4.邕d4

5.骂d7 凹h8 6.凹e6++-.

> F-5 Strategy /Chapter 11

### V.Smyslov – B.Kohlweyer

Dortmund 1986

### 1.e5!

(1 point)

A typical idea. White opens the game and activates his forces on the semi-open d-file.

### 1...dxe5 2.fxe5 e6?

Black unnecessarily weakens the important f6-square. Better was 2... \Bd8 3.\Be3±.

### 3.②e3 莒bd8

3....②c5 4.④g4+-4.皇xa8 鬯xa8 5.邕cd3! Pinning the knight.

### 5....鬯f3 6.鬯f4

Black resigned, in view of 6... 幽c6 7. 匈g4+-.

F-6

Tactics /Chapter 13

### Besser – Maakert

West Germany 1970

A combination on the h-file quickly leads to mate.

1.皇g5! 鬯e5 2.鬯xh7†! 查xh7 3.岂h4† 约h5 4.岂xh5† 查g7 5.皇e7†

1–0

(1 point)

### **F-7**

Calculating variations /Chapter 20

A.Cheron

1936

1.倉f3!

But not 1.c7? because of 1...f6!. 1.... **亞f5** 1....f5 2.逸d5#; 1...f6 2.鬯d5#.

2.<u>\$g</u>4#

### (1 point)

### F-8

Tactics /Chapter 17 The end of a study by

### A.Herbstmann

1934

White has a forced win. 1.營g4†!

(1 point)

But not 1.<sup>②</sup>xh6? f2† 2.空xd1 f1=鬯†=. 1...**空h1** 

Or 1...堂h2 2.鬯g3† 营h1 3.包xh6+-.

### 2.包xh6 f2† 3.垫f1!

3....皇xg4 4.②xg4 皇h2 5.②xf2#

(another 1 point for this variation)

### F-9

Endgame /Chapter 24

### L.Bronstein – A.Yusupov

Lucerne Olympiad 1982

### 1...**\$xf**3

White resigned, since he will be in zugzwang after  $2.2xf^3 d4!$ .

(1 point)

(2 points)

### F-10

Positional play /Chapter 4

### V.Kramnik – P.Leko

World Championship Match (14), Brissago 2004

### 1.邕c1†!

### 1...ĝc6

It is hopeless to allow the white rook to c7: 1... 空b8 2.鼍c7! 鼍xh4 3.④xf7 龛xf7 4.鼍xf7 (Δ鼍f8#) 4... 空c8 5.鼍c7†! 空d8 (5... 空b8 6.鼍xg7+-) 6.鼍xb7+-

### 2.包xf7 罩xh4 3.包d6† 垫d8 4.罩g1!

(another 1 point for this variation) White activates his rook.

### 4... 当h3† 5. 空e2 三a3 6. 三xg7 三xa4 7.f4!+-

This essentially decides the game; the threat is now f5. The white pieces are perfectly coordinated.

### 7....\a2†

If 7.... 五水d4, then 8.f5 exf5 9.e6 置e4† 10. 公xe4 dxe4 11. 五c7! and the threat of 五xc6 means that White is winning.

8. 查f3 罩a3† 9. 查g4 罩d3 10. f5 罩xd4† 11. 查g5 exf5 12. 查f6 罩g4 13. 罩c7

### Or 13.邕h7+-.

### 13...骂h4 14.幻f7†
F-11 Endgame /Chapter 6 The end of a study by

#### **R.Skuja**

1935

# 1.��f1!

(1 point) But not 1.堂xf2?? 친b6 2.堂f1 친c4 3.堂f2 친d2⊙-+.

2...②b6 3.营xf2 ②d5 4.营f1=

Fortress VIII.

F-12

Tactics /Chapter 7

#### <u>Edelstein – Yazze</u>

1957

The game continued 1...  $\Xi f 8? 2.$ Dh 4!+-. However, Black could have won with:

1...骂xh2†!

(1 point)

## F-13

Calculating variations /Chapter 9

#### M.Illescas Cordoba – V.Epishin

Dos Hermanas 1994

In the game, Black missed his chance and lost after 1... 單e8? 2. 公c4 罩xe3 3. 公xe3 空g6 4. 公g2.

He could have saved the game with:

#### 1....\arappa xe5! 2.\arappa xe5

- 2.邕xd2? 邕a4†-+

3.exf3?? 骂xh2#

3...ᡚxe5=

(2 points)

**F-14** Tactics /Chapter 10

Zdanovs – Pigits Riga 1953

## 1.h4!

(1 point)

White puts his king into a stalemate position and threatens to surrender his queen. Black has no defence against this threat, e.g. 1... $@g7 2.@g8^{!}=$  (but not 2.@f7??@xf7#).  $\frac{1}{2}-\frac{1}{2}$ 

#### F-15

Tactics /Chapter 10 The end of a study by

#### G.Bernhardt

1923

# 1.✿d3‼

But not 1.a5? when White can win with either 1...d3 or  $1... \stackrel{\circ}{2}e2$ .

1...\$xg3 2.a5 d5 3.a6 \$b8 4.a7 \$xa7 stalemate

(1 point)

#### F-16

Endgame /Chapter 12 Based on

G.Levenfish

# 1.\$d3!

(1 point)

White shuts the black king off from the wrong corner and constructs a prison for the king.

## 1...杏c7 2.臭b5 杏d8 3.包f6

Or 3.包e5 魯c7 4.包c4.

4...堂c7 5.包d5† 堂d8 6.堂f7 堂c8 7.堂c7 堂b7 8.堂d7 堂b8 9.巢a6 堂a7 10.巢c8 堂b8 11.包c7 莹a7 12.堂c7 莹a8 13.巢b7† 莹a7 14.包c6# **F-17** Positional play /Chapter 14

# S.Gligoric – A.Yusupov

Vrbas 1980

## 1...Ød3!

(1 point)

A good practical solution. Black occupies the d3-outpost and prepares to castle queenside.

However, objective analysis shows that the principled line 1...hxg5 2.黛g6† (2.fxg5 ②fe4-+) 2...堂e7 3.exf6† (3.fxg5 ②fd7! 4.邕f7† 堂d8干) 3...gxf6干 also promises Black an advantage. You get 2 points if you opted for this uncompromising line.

#### 2.兾xd3

If 2.②xe6, then 2...曾b6† 3.堂h1 鬯xe6 4.exf6 0–0–0 and Black has a strong attack.

2.exf6? is bad, in view of hxg5 3.f7† ₩xf7 4.ዿxd3 ዿc5† 5 .控h1 0-0-0!-+.

2...0–0–0!∓

(another 1 point)

## 3.幻f3

3.②xe6 is followed by 3...鬯b6† 4.空h1 鬯xe6 5.exf6 舀xd3∓.

Black also gets a decisive attack after 3.exf6 hxg5 4.營g4 皇c5† 5.亞h1 cxd3 6.營xe6† 空b8. 3...**罩xd3** 

3...堂c5† 4.堂h1 ∅g4∓ would be slightly more accurate.

#### 4.凹e2 皇c5† 5.空h1 幻d5

Now 5...②g4?! is met by 6.②e1!.

6.包e4 筥f8! 7.包e1 筥d4 8.包xc5 鬯xc5 9.鬯g4 鬯e7!

Black is clearly more active and went on to exploit this advantage.

# **F-18** Tactics /Chapter 15

A.Troitzky 1895

The solution to this well-known study is an elegant mate in 4, starting with: 1.g8=鬯†!!

#### Then comes:

1... 查xg8 2. 垫e6 查h8 3. 垫f7 e5 4. 皇g7#

(2 points)

Delaying for a move throws away the win:  $1.\pounds e4 e5!= \text{ or } 1.\pounds e5 e6!=.$ 

#### F-19

Endgame /Chapter 16 The end of a study by

# F.Amelung

#### 1.\$2f8!

(1 point)

2.盧e4? would be weaker, on account of 2...避f2-+ (but not 2...h4? 3.查f8!=).

Black cannot prevent the combination which now follows.

#### 1....凹e3

If 1...h4, then 2. 逸e4!= threatens 幻疗#.

And after 1...堂h7 there follows 2.皇e4† 營xe4 (of course not 2...堂h6?? 3.②f7#) 3.②xe4=.

2. ②f7† 查h7 3. 鼻e4†! 鬯xe4 4. ②g5†=

(another 1 point)

#### F-20

Opening /Chapter 18

S.Andermatt – A.Yusupov

Winterthur simultaneous 2004

#### 1...f5!

(2 points)

Simple development with 1... 2d7 (1 point) is not bad, but in any case Black can make no progress without ... f5. The active knight on e4 must be forced away!

## 2.Dc3

2.@eg5? hxg5 3.@xg5 is not correct, because of 3...\$d5-+.

#### 2...g5 3. 2b5

Threatening 🖄 xg5.

#### 3...曾d7 4.b4 邕c8 5.乞c3 0-0 6.邕b1 ��d4∓

Black is better placed in the centre and can attack on either flank.

# Solutions

7. ②xd4 exd4 8. ③d1 象d5 9. 象h3 c5 10. 徵b2 ②g6 11.f3 c4 12. 邕c1 c3 13. ③xc3 dxc3 14. 象xc3 邕xc3 15. 邕xc3 g4 16. 象g2 gxf3 17. 象xf3 象xf3 18. 邕xf3 營d4† 0-1

## F-21

Tactics /Chapter 19

#### B.Toth – H.Karl

Switzerland 1984

Black forces perpetual check. 1... "xh2†!!

#### 

(1 bonus point for seeing this defence) 3.堂g1? loses to 3...②h3† 4.堂h2 ②xf2† 5.堂g1 ②h3† 6.堂h2 ②g5† 7.堂g3 (7.堂g1 ③xf3†-+) 7...③e4† 8.堂f4 ③xd2. 3...**罩xh4† 4.堂g1 ②h3† 5.堂h2 ②f4**†

But not  $5...2g5^{\dagger} 6.2g3^{+-}$ .

6.∲g1

1/2-1/2

## F-22

Tactics /Chapter 21 Based on

#### **D.Ponziani**

#### 1.¤xa6†!

(1 point)

(1 point)

### 1...bxa6

Or 1... 查b8 2. 增f4 +--.

(another 1 point for the whole variation)

F-23

Positional play /Chapter 22

## A.Yusupov – M.Gurevich

Linares 1991

## 1.<u>\$</u>e3!

(2 points)

The weakness on a7 forces Black to open up his position even further. 1.②d5 (1 point) would not be so strong after 1...②e6±.

#### 1...e5

The pawn cannot be taken: 1...곕xe2† 2.聋f1+-

#### 2.臭d5† 魯e7

2... 2...  $g7\pm$  would be slightly better.

#### 2.臭xd4 exd4 3.创b5 臭e6

3...a6 4.∅xd4± would be more stubborn. Black is losing a pawn in any case.

#### 

White goes a pawn up, while Black's weakness on d4 remains.

#### 5....莒a8 6.②b5 莒a4

See F-24.

#### F-24

Positional play /Chapter 22

#### A.Yusupov – M.Gurevich

Linares 1991

Only 1 consolation point for 1.心c7† 啓f7 2.②d5. White has a much better solution! 1.**b3!** 

(2 points)

Now Black also loses the d4-pawn.

#### 1....Ba2

Capturing on b4 is impossible: 1...\@xb4?? 2.\@c7\!\@f7 3.\@d5+-

2.화f1 화d7 3.환xd4 필e8 4.e3 f4 5.gxf4 흹h4 6.한e2 화c6 7.필d5 필ea8 8.필bd1 흹e7 1-0



If you scored less than **21** points, we recommend that you read again those chapter dealing with the areas where you made a lot of mistakes and repeat the exercises which you got wrong.

# Index of composers

Amelung,F. 168, 253 Averbakh,Y. 160, 160

Bernhardt,G. 252 Bettman,H. 200 Boros,S. 206 Bron,V. 229 Buchwald,J. 206

Chepizhny,V. 203, 206 Cheron,A. 251 Cook,E. 201

del Rio,E. 137 Dobrescu,E. 167

Fabel,K. 201 Falk,L. 63 Fritz,J. 244

Goldberg,D. 244 Gorgiev,T. 167 Guljajev,A. 62 Gurvitch,A. 235, 240 Guttman,E. 159

Harley,B. (& Watney,C.) 206 Hasek,J. 167 Herbstmann,A. 251 Heuacker,P. 168 Horwitz,B. 169

Kaila,O. 62, 63 Kaminer,S. 165 Karstedt,M. 164, 168 Keres,P. 173 Kliatskin,M. 172 Koranyi,A. 63 Korolkov,V. 230, 240 Kubbel,L. 62, 155, 173, 228, 235, 241 Kuznetsov,A. 207

Lazard,F. 104 Lebedev,V. 207 Levenfish,G. 119, 236, 252 Liburkin,M. 231 Livshits,E. (& Melnichenko,V.) 202 Lokker,M. 206, 206 Lolli,G. 163, 168, 210

Marin,V. 207 Martin,E. 203 Melnichenko,V. (& Livshits,E.) 202 Moravec,J. 167 Morphy,P. 244

Naef,W. 167

Oreshin, A. 201

Petrov,A. 171 Petrovic,N. 202 Pimenov,S. 207 Platov,V. & M. 174 Pogosiants,E. 168 Ponziani,D. 103, 254

Rinck,H. 168, 240 Romanovsky,P. 236

Sackmann,F. 244 Salvio,A. 104 Selesniev,A. 103 Shaigarovsky,S. 62 Skuja,R. 252 Smyslov,V. 104

ten Kate,P. 202 Topko,L. 15 Troitzky,A. 126, 235, 253

Watney,C. (& Harley,B.) 206 Weenink,H. 206

Zakhodyakin, G. 203, 206

Numbers in **bold** type indicate that the player named first had Black.

Aaron, M. - Tal, M. 98 Abramov, L. - Panov, V. 198 Adams, M. - Almasi, Z. 140 Adorjan, A. - Smejkal, J. 216 Adrian, C. - Yusupov, A. 218 Afanasjev – Koshelev 14 Agzamov, G. - Ruderfer, M. 210 - Vladimirov, E. 215 Aik – Derremo 177 Aissin - Mikhailovich, Y. 188 Akopian, G. - Kotkov, V. 187 Alekhine, A. - Bernstein, O. 49 - De Cossio, J. 82 - Fine, R. 23 - Fink, A. 189 - Hulscher 68 - Johner 27 - Kaufman, A. 82 - Lasker, Em. 192 - Lugowski, S. 177 - Nimzowitsch, A. 89 - Opocensky, K. 74 - Post, E. 227 - Rubinstein, A. 23 Alexander, C. - Marshall, F. 137 Almasi, Z. - Adams, M. 140 Al Modiahki, M. – Tin, H. 83 Anand, V. - Khalifman, A. 131 Anastasian, A. – Thorhallsson, T. 226 Andermatt, S. - Yusupov, A. 253 Andersson, U. - Mestel, A. 215 - Velimirovic, D. 83 Antunac, G. – Hübner, R. 13 Aratovsky, N. - Tolush, A. 43 Arkhipov, S. – Glek, I. 84 Aronson, L. - Tolush, A. 82 Averbakh, Y. - Bondarevsky, I. 63 - Spassky, B. 17 - Taimanov, M. 16 Bagdatiev – Guldin 32

Balinas,R. – Smyslov,V. 108

Balshan, A. – Basman, M. 74 Bankov – Lumsjagi 73 Baranov – Zelinsky 198 - Zherdev 97 Barash - Streck 32 Bareev, E. - Beliavsky, A. 128 Basman, M. – Balshan, A. 74 Batoczky – Ormos 103 Beliavsky, A. - Bareev, E. 128 - N.N. 172 - Yusupov, A. 235 Beni, A. – Schwarzbach 13 Benitez - Euwe, M. 188 Benko, P. - Smyslov, V. 226 Berger, J. - Koss, R. 138 Berndt, S. - A. Yusupov, A. 250 Bernstein, O. - Alekhine, A. 49 - Smyslov, V. 103 Berzinsh – Pilskalniete 88 Besser - Maakert 251 Bhend, E. – Schmid, L. 73 Biever, R. - Cassidy, R. 79 Bilek, I. - Feustel, B. 197 - Smyslov, V. 141 Blackburne, J. - Lipschuetz, S. 68 Blatny, F. - Fichtl, J. 103 Blatny, P. - Lobron, E. 62 - Yusupov, A. 138 Boleslavsky, I. - Bronstein, D. 190 - Gurgenidze, B. 183 - Ufimtsev, A. 14 Bondarevsky, I. - Averbakh, Y. 63 Borisenko, G. - Simagin, V. 89 Borisenko, V. - Nakhimovskaya, Z. 130 Zvorykina, K. 239 Boskovic, M. - Karaklajic, N. 52 Botvinnik, M. - Bronstein, D. 23 - Chekhover, V. 38 - Euwe,M. 48 – Goldberg,G. 114 - Golombek, H. 116 - Ilyin Zhenevsky, A. 244 - Keres, P. 74 - Lisitsin, G. 114 Bronstein, D. - Boleslavsky, I. 190

- Botvinnik, M. 23 - Gligoric, S. 52 Mikenas, V. 28 Bronstein, L. - Yusupov, A. 251 Brigg – Solter 215 Buslaev, A. - Shereshevsky, M. 231 Bylino - Savon, V. 94 Capablanca, J. - Euwe, M. 250 - Flohr.S. 45 - Raubitschek, R. 137 Cassidy, R. - BieverR. 79 Cebalo, M. - Sindik, E. 215 – Yusupov, A. 225 Chaude de Silans, C. - Perez 230 Chekhover, V. - Botvinnik, M. 38 - Korchnoi, V. 52 Chepukaitis, G. - N.N. 236 Chervis, P. - Martin Ojeda, J. 83 Chigorin, M. – Marco, G. 88 - Znosko-Borovsky, E. 177 Computer Rebel – Yusupov, A. 226 Cordovil, J. - Garcia Martinez, S.137 Cornelis, F. – Smyslov, V. 113 Cortlever, N. - van der Weide 211 Cramling, D. – Yusupov, A. 187 Cvitan, O. - Yusupov, A. 221 Dal – Sperber 235 Damjanovic, M. - Lutikov, A. 69 Dartov – Kogan 178 Dashkevich, N. - Shashin, A. 158 Dautov, R. - Yusupov, A. 150 De Cossio, J. – Alekhine, A. 82 de Firmian, N. - Yusupov, A. 93 Dementiev, O. - Zilberstein, V. 70 Denker, A. – Gonzales 153 Derremo - Aik 177 Doda, Z. - Sliwa, B. 104 Dolmatov, S. - Ivanov, A. 93 - Yusupov, A. 194 Doncevic, D. - Hausner, I. 98 Donner, J. – Spanjaard, E. 93 Dos Santos, F. - Ginzburg, M. 13 Dragun, N. – Sandrin, A. 138

Dubinin, P. – Ilivitzki, G. 192 Dückstein, A. - Szabo, L. 53 Duffield, C. - Euwe, M. 189 Duhm,A. - Nimzowitsch,A. 48 Dunkelblum, A. - Reti, R. 82 Duras, O. - Spielmann, R. 10 - Vlk,M. 208 Dvoretsky, M. - Ruderfer, M. 94 Dzambelli – Maroczy, G. 215 Edelstein – Yazze 252 Eger - Taimanov, M. 19 Ekstroem, R. - Taimanov, M. 245 Eliskases, E. – Ivkov, B. 32 Engelgard - Schulze 31 Englund, F. – Perfiliev, A. 154 Epishin, V. – Illescas Cordoba, M. 252 Eslon, J. – Yusupov, A. 24 Estevez, G. - Yusupov, A. 113 Estrin, Y. - Shvedchikov, A. 73 Euwe, M. - Benitez 188 - Botvinnik, M. 48 - Capablanca, J. 250 - Duffield, C. 189 - Flohr, S. 35 – Smyslov, V. 9 - Speijer, A. 53 Evans, L. - Larsen, B. 170 - Reshevsky, S. 103 Faibisovich, V. – Lerner, K. 15 Farago, I. - Flesch, J. 178 Feigin, M. - Flohr, S. 39 Feustel, B. - Bilek, I. 197 Fichtl, J. – Blatny, F. 103 Filatov – Kofman 189 Filipowicz, A. – Gabrys, Z. 250 Fine, R. - Alekhine, A. 23 Fink, A. – Alekhine, A. 189 Flesch, J. - Farago, I. 178 Flohr,S. - Capablanca,J. 45 - Euwe, M. 35 - Feigin, M. 39 – Opocensky, K. 43 - Sultan Khan 43

Flüss – Nimzowitsch.A. 53 Freidl – Kellerman 158 Frydman, P. - Regedzinski, T. 31 Furman, S. - Ubilava, E. 209 Gabrys, Z. – Filipowicz, A. 250 Gajduk – Zaitsev, A. 188 Gaprindashvili, N. – Sznapik, A. 250 Garam – Wennerström 212 Garcia Martinez, S. - Cordovil, J.137 Garcia Padron, J. – Martin Gonzalez, A. 67 Gaudenti, P. – Keller 159 Gelfand, B. - Yusupov, A. 177 Geller, E. – Palatnik, S. 137 Georgiev, Ki. - Yusupov, A. 148 Ginzburg, M. - Dos Santos, F. 13 Glebov – Zotov 177 Glek, I. - Arkhipov, S. 84 Gligoric, S. - Bronstein, D. 52 - Yusupov, A. 253 Goban - Schmidt 209 Goldberg, G. – Botvinnik, M. 114 - Zak.V. 244 Goldenov, B. - Zakharian, V. 211 Goldin - Riabow 104 Goldstein - L.Shamkovich 99 Goljak – Kholmov, R. 25 Golmayo Zupide, C. - Loyd, S. 232 Golombek, H. - Botvinnik, M. 116 Goltsov, L. - Moiseev, V. 137 Gonzales - Denker, A. 153 Gorniak, Y. - Mosionzhik, I. 158 Grodner – Tavernier 216 Guldin – Bagdatiev 32 Gurevich, M. - Yusupov, A. 254 Gurgenidze, B. – Boleslavsky, I. 183 Gutman, L. – Yusupov, A. 148 Hahnke – Richter, K. 193 Hartlaub – Testa 134 Hartston, W. - Whiteley, A. 54 Hausner, I. - Doncevic, D. 98 Havasi,K. - Sacconi,A. 67 Heemsoth, H. - Heisenbutter 74 Heiman – List 95

Heisenbutter – Heemsoth, H. 74 Herrmann - Ranfeld 211 Hickl, J. - Yusupov, A. 225 Hmadi,S. - Yusupov,A. 25 Honfi,K. - Minic,D. 27 Horowitz, I. - Lasker, Ed. 236 Hort, V. - Portisch, L. 210 - Sosonko, G. 133 Hübner, R. - Antunac, G. 13 Hulscher – Alekhine, A. 68 Ilivitzki, G. - Dubinin, P. 192 Illescas Cordoba, M. – Epishin, V. 252 Ilyin Zhenevsky, A. – Botvinnik 244 Iskov, G. – Yusupov, A. 24 Ivanov, A. - Dolmatov, S. 93 Ivkov, B. - Eliskases, E. 32 Jackelen, T. - Lieb, H. 198 Janowski, D. - Lasker, Em. 86 Jansa, V. - Jongsma 31 – Rublevsky, S. 94 John, W. – Saemisch, F. 158 Johner – Alekhine, A. 27 Johner, P. - Steiner, L. 138 Jongsma – Jansa.V. 31 Kaidanov, G. – Malyshev, S. 131 Kallai, G. – Yusupov, A. 137 Kapanidze – Zhuravlev 74 Karaklajic, N. - Boskovic, M. 52 Karl, H. - Toth, B. 254 Karpov, A. – Korchnoi, V. 236 - Salov, V. 130 - Taimanov, M. 130 - Tarjan, J. 215 Kasparov, G. – Pigusov, E. 132 - Yusupov, A. 86 Katalymov, B. - Mnatsakanian, E. 52 - Rotstein, A. 73 Kaufman, A. – Alekhine, A. 82 Keller – Gaudenti, P. 159 Kellerman - Freidl 158 Keres, P. - Botvinnik, M. 74 - Kholmov, R. 96

- Korchnoi, V. 115 - Levenfish, G. 32 - Petrovs, J. 82 - Simagin, V. 25 - Smyslov, V. 109 - Tal, M. 178 - Troeger, P. 31 Khalifman, A. – Anand, V. 131 Kharitonov, A. – Vladimirov, E. 73 Kholmov, R. – Goljak 25 - Keres, P. 96 - Simagin, V. 94 Kimmelfeld, R. – Luchinkin, V. 208 Kindermann, S. – Yusupov, A. 148 Klaman,K. – Lisitsin,G. 191 Klovsky, R. - Muratov, V. 68 Kluger, G. - Sandor, B. 104 Koch - Stuber 178 Kochiev, A. - Tukmakov, V. 26 Kofman - Filatov 189 Kogan - Dartov 178 – Poliak **87** Kohlweyer, B. - Smyslov, V. 250 Kopaev, N. - Vistinietzki, I. 197 Kopylov, N. - Kotov, A. 23 Korchnoi, V. - Chekhover, V. 52 - Karpov, A. 236 - Keres, P. 115 – Langeweg, K. 148 - Spassky, B. 216 - Yusupov, A. 187 Kort, J. - Malich, B. 32 Koshelev – Afanasjev 14 Koss, R. - Berger, J. 138 Kotkov, V. – Akopian, G. 187 Kotov, A. - Kopylov, N. 23 - Opocensky, K. 191 Kozlov, V. – Sturua, Z. 73 Kraidman, Y. - Mazzoni, G. 197 Kramnik, V. - Leko, P. 251 Krasenkow, M. - Sakaev, K. 225 Kreichik - Laitgeb 13 Kuczynski, R. - Wedberg, T. 198 Kudriashov – Sadarov 96 Kuzmin, G. - Yusupov, A. 150

Kuzovkin – Yusupov, A. 45 Laitgeb – Kreichik 13 Langeweg, K. - Korchnoi, V. 148 Larsen, B. - Evans, L. 170 - Taimanov, M. 190 Lasker, Ed. - Horowitz, I. 236 – Moll,K. 239 Lasker, Em. - Alekhine, A. 192 - Janowski, D. 86 - Torre, C. 8 Leko, P. - Kramnik, V. 251 Lerner, K. - Faibisovich, V. 15 – Vyzmanavin, A. 94 Levenfish, G. - Keres, P. 32 - Mikenas, V. 24 - Ragozin, V. 192 - Zubarev.N. 191 Lieb, H. - Jackelen, T. 198 Lipschuetz, S. – Blackburne, J. 68 Lisitsin, G. - Botvinnik, M. 114 – Klaman,K. 191 – Makagonov, V. 197 List - Heiman 95 Litkiewicz - Malich, B. 14 Ljubojevic, L. – Yusupov, A. 53 Lobron, E. – Blatny, P. 62 - Yusupov, A. 149 Lomonosov - Rumjantsev 171 Lorscheid, G. - Yusupov, A. 116 Loyd, S. – Golmayo Zupide, C. 232 Lputian, S. - Yusupov, A. 149, 226 Luchinkin, V. – Kimmelfeld, R. 208 Lugowski, S. - Alekhine, A. 177 Lukacs, P. - Vadasz, L. 231 Lukanin - Schmuljan 100 Lumsjagi – Bankov 73 Lutikov, A. - Damjanovic, M. 69 Luzganov – Novichkov 31 Maakert - Besser 251

Makagonov,V. – Lisitsin,G. **197** Makarov – Steinberg **197** Malesic,S. – Masic,L. 159 Malich,B. – Kort,J. 32

- Litkiewicz 14 - Panno, O. 153 Malyshev, S. - Kaidanov, G. 131 Mankus – Yusupov, A. 24 Mann – Papp 158 Marangunic, S. – Planinc, A. 133 Marco, G. - Chigorin, M. 88 Mariotti,S. - Sax,G. 197 Maroczy, G. – Dzambelli 215 Marshall, F. – Alexander, C. 137 - McClure 99 - Reti, R. 245 Martin Gonzalez, A. – Garcia Padron, J. 67 Martin Ojeda, J. – Chervis, P. 83 Masic, L. - Malesic, S. 159 Maurian, C. - Morphy, P. 53 Mazzoni, G. – Kraidman, Y. 197 McClure - Marshall, F. 99 Mecking, H. - Souza Mendes, J.154 Mestel, A. - Andersson, U. 215 Michelakis, G. - Yusupov, A. 226 Mikenas, V. - Bronstein, D. 28 - Levenfish, G. 24 Mikhailovich, Y. - Aissin 188 Miles, A. – Yusupov, A. 36, 106 Milov, V. – Yusupov, A. 144 Minic, D. - Honfi, K. 27 Mitkov, N. - Simbolon, Y. 89 Mnatsakanian, E. - Katalymov, B. 52 Moiseev, O. - Sokolsky, A. 216 Moiseev, V. - Goltsov, L. 137 Moll,K. - Lasker,Ed. 239 Morphy, P. - Maurian, C. 53 Mosionzhik, I. - Gorniak, Y. 158 - Yerofeev, S. 158 Mrdja, M. – Yusupov, A. 225 Mueller – Weihnacht 232 Müller - Volc 159 Muratov, V. – Klovsky, R. 68 Murshed, N. - Nunn, J. 70 Musiol - Wachtel 158 Muth - Schmid, L. 13

Nakhimovskaya,Z. – Borisenko,V. **130** Nedeljkovic,S. – Udovcic,M. **171** 

Niedermann – Zucs 74 Nilssen, J. - Yusupov, A. 46 Nimzowitsch, A. - Alekhine, A. 89 - Duhm.A. 48 - Flüss 53 - Post, E. 98 - Schlage, W. 43 - von Holzhausen, W. 44 Novichkov – Luzganov 31 Nunn, J. – Murshed, N. 70 - Timman, J. 63 Opocensky, K. – Alekhine, A. 74 - Flohr,S. 43 - Kotov, A. 191 Orlov, G. - Wolff, P. 198 Ormos – Batoczky 103 Oushtati – Yusupov, A. 44 Palatnik, S. – Geller, E. 137 Panno, O. - Malich, B. 153 Panov, V. – Abramov, L. 198 Papp – Mann 158 Perez – Chaude de Silans, C. 230 Perfiliev, A. – Englund, F. 154 Petrosian, T. - Ree, H. 83 - Yusupov, A. 115 Petrovs, J. - Keres, P. 82 Pigits – Zdanovs 252 Pigusov, E. – Kasparov, G. 132 Pilskalniete – Berzinsh 88 Planinc, A. – Marangunic, S. 133 Plaskota, L. – Yusupov, A. 149 Pokojowczyk, J. – Szajna, W. 178 Polgar, J. – Yusupov, A. 229 Poliak – Kogan 87 Polugaevsky, L. – Zakharov, A. 63 Portisch, L. - Hort, V. 210 Post, E. – Alekhine, A. 227 - Nimzowitsch, A. 98 Psakhis, L. - Veselovsky, S. 93

Rabinovich,I. – Verlinsky,B. **13** Ragozin,V. – Levenfish,G. 192 Ranfeld – Herrmann **211** 

Rapparlie, W. - Yusupov, A. 225 Raubitschek, R. – Capablanca, J. 137 Ree, H. - Petrosian, T. 83 Regedzinski, T. - Frydman, P. 31 Renet, O. - Yusupov, A. 40 Reshevsky, S. - Evans, L. 103 Reti, R. - Dunkelblum, A. 82 - Marshall, F. 245 Ribli,Z. - Yusupov,A. 145 Richter, K. - Hahnke 193 - N.N. 31, 177 Risch, P. - Yusupov, A. 181 Rjabow – Goldin 104 Rossolimo, N. - N.N. 138 - Schmid, L. 153 Rotstein, A. - Katalymov, B. 73 Rott – Yusupov, A. 187 Rubinetti, J. – Yusupov, A. 129 Rublevsky, S. – Jansa, V. 94 Rubinstein, A. - Alekhine, A. 23 - Selezniev, A. 43 Ruderfer, M. – Agzamov, G. 210 – Dvoretsky, M. 94 Rumjantsev - Lomonosov 171 Sacconi, A. - Havasi, K. 67 Sadarov – Kudriashov 96 Saemisch, F. - John, W. 158 Sakaev, K. - Krasenkow, M. 225 Salov, V. - Karpov, A. 130 Sandor, B. - Kluger, G. 104 Sandrin, A. - Dragun, N. 138 Sasikiran, K. – Turner, M. 93 Savon, V. - Bylino 94 Sax, G. - Mariotti, S. 197 Schlage, W. - Nimzowitsch, A. 43 Schmaltz, R. - Yusupov, A. 193 Schmid, L. – Bhend, E. 73 – Muth 13 - Rossolimo, N. 153 Schmidt – Goban 209 Schmuljan - Lukanin 100 Schneider, H. - Yusupov, A. 44 Schulze – Engelgard 31 Schwarzbach – Beni, A. 13

Selezniev, A. – Rubinstein, A. 43 Shamkovich, L. - Goldstein 99 - Smyslov, V. 113 Shashin,A. – Dashkevich,N. 158 Shereshevsky, M. - Buslaev, A. 231 Shirazi, K. - Yusupov.A. 220 Shirov, A. - Yusupov, A. 47, 226 Shvedchikov, A. – Estrin, Y. 73 Simagin, V. - Borisenko, G. 89 - Keres, P. 25 – Kholmov, R. 94 Simbolon, Y. - Mitkov, N. 89 Simon, R. – Soltau, A. 99 Sindik, E. – Cebalo, M. 215 Skala – Vanka, M. 158 Sliwa, B. - Doda, Z. 104 - Stoltz, G. 26 Slussarjow - Tikhomirow 187 Smejkal, J. – Adorjan, A. 216 Smyslov, V. - Balinas, R. 108 - Benko, P. 226 - Bernstein, O. 103 - Bilek, I. 141 - Cornelis, F. 113 - Euwe, M. 9 - Keres, P. 109 - Kohlweyer, B. 250 - Shamkovich, L. 113 - Vasiukov, E. 198 - Yusupov, A. 235 Sokolov – Tomovic 93 Sokolsky, A. - Moiseev, O. 216 Soltau, A. – Simon, R. 99 Solter – Brigg 215 Sosonko, G. - Hort, V. 133 Souza Mendes, J. – Mecking, H.154 Spanjaard, E. – Donner, J. 93 Spassky, B. - Averbakh, Y. 17 - Korchnoi, V. 216 - Taimanov, M. 177 Spassov, L. – Yusupov, A. 52 Speelman, J. - Yusupov, A. 216 Speijer, A. – Euwe, M. 53 Sperber – Dal 235 Spielmann, R. – Duras, O. 10

Steinberg – Makarov 197 Steiner, L. - Johner, P. 138 Steinitz, W. – N.N. 9, 52, 215 Stepite – Zelina 188 Stohl, I. – Yusupov, A. 113 Stolberg, M. – Zak, V. 170 Stoltz, G. - Sliwa, B. 26 Streck – Barash 32 Stuber - Koch 178 Sturua, Z. - Kozlov, V. 73 Suetin,A. – Taimanov,M. 23 Sultan Khan – Flohr, S. 43 Sveshnikov, E. - Yusupov, A. 66 Szabo, L. – Dückstein, A. 53 Szajna, W. – Pokojowczyk, J. 178 Sznapik, A. – Gaprindashvili, N. 250 Taimanov, M. – Averbakh, Y. 16 - Eger 19 - Ekstroem, R. 245 - Karpov, A. 130 - Larsen, B. 190 - N.N. 14 - Spassky, B. 177 - Suetin, A. 23 Tal, M. – Aaron, M. 98 - Keres, P. 178 – N.N. 236 Tarjan, J. – Karpov, A. 215 Taulbut, S. - Yusupov, A. 143 Tavernier – Grodner 216 Testa – Hartlaub 134 Thorhallsson, T. - Anastasian, A. 226 Tikhomirow – Slussarjow 187 Timman, J. – Nunn, J. 63 Timoschenko, G. – Yusupov, A. 150 Tin,H. – Al Modiahki,M. 83 Tolush, A. – Aratovsky, N. 43 Aronson, L. 82 Tomovic - Sokolov 93 Torre, C. - Lasker, Em. 8 Toth,B. – Karl,H. 254 Troeger, P. – Keres, P. 31 Troitzky, A. – Vogt 97 Tukmakov, V. – Kochiev, A. 26

Turner, M. – Sasikiran, K. 93 Ubilava, E. – Furman, S. 209 Udovcic, M. - Nedeljkovic, S. 171 Ufimtsev, A. – Boleslavsky, I. 14 Vadasz, L. – Lukacs, L. 231 Vaganian, R. – Yusupov, A. 115 Vallifuoco, G. – Yusupov, A. 44, 44 van der Weide – Cortlever, N. 211 Van der Wiel, J. – Yusupov, A. 149 Vanka, M. – Skala 158 Van Wely, L. – Ye Rongguang 83 Vasiukov, E. – Smyslov, V. 198 Velimirovic, D. – Andersson, U. 83 Verlinsky, B. – Rabinovich, I. 13 Veselovsky, S. – Psakhis, L. 93 Vistinietzki, I. – Kopaev, N. 197 Vladimirov, E. – Agzamov, G. 215 – Kharitonov, A. 73 Vlk,M. - Duras,O. 208 Vogt – Troitzky, A. 97 Volc – Müller 159 von Holzhausen, W. - Nimzowitsch, A. 44 Vukovic – N.N. 152 Vyzmanavin, A. – Lerner, K. 94 Wachtel – Musiol 158 Wedberg, T. – Kuczynski, R. 198 Weihnacht – Mueller 232 Wennerström – Garam 212

Yazze – Edelstein Yerofeev,S. – Mosionzhik,I. Ye Rongguang – Van Wely,L. 83 Yrjola,J. – Yusupov,A. Yudasin,L. – Yusupov,A. Yusupov,A. – Adrian,C. – Andermatt,S. – Beliavsky,A. – Berndt,S. 250 – Blatny,P. – Bronstein,L.

Whiteley, A. - Hartston, W. 54

Wolff, P. – Orlov, G. 198

- Cebalo, M. 225 - Computer Rebel 226 - Cramling, D. 187 - Cvitan,O. 221 - Dautov, R. 150 - de Firmian N. 93 - Dolmatov, S. 194 - Eslon, J. 24 - Estevez, G. 113 - Gelfand, B. 177 – Georgiev, Ki. 148 - Gligoric, S. 253 - Gurevich, M. 254 - Gutman,L. 148 - Hickl, J. 225 - Hmadi,S. 25 - Iskov,G. 24 Kallai,G. 137 - Kasparov, G. 86 - Kindermann, S. 148 - Korchnoi, V. 187 – Kuzmin,G. 150 – Kuzovkin 45 - Ljubojevic, L. 53 - Lobron, E. 149 - Lorscheid, G. 116 - Lputian, S. 149, 226 - Mankus 24 - Michelakis, G. 226 - Miles, A. 36, 106 - Milov, V. 144 - Mrdja, M. 225 – Nilssen, J. 46 - Oushtati 44 - Petrosian, T. 115 – Plaskota, L. 149 - Polgar, J. 229 - Rapparlie, W. 225

- Renet, O. 40 - Ribli,Z. 145 - Risch.P. 181 – Rott 187 - Rubinetti, J. 129 - Schmaltz.R. 193 - Schneider, H. 44 Shirazi, K. 220 - Shirov, A. 47, 226 - Smyslov, V. 235 Spassov, L. 52 Speelman, J. 216 Stohl, I. 113 Sveshnikov, E. 66 - Taulbut, S. 143 - Timoschenko, G. 150 - Vaganian, R. 115 - Vallifuoco, G. 44, 44 – Van der Wiel, J. 149 – Yrjola, J. 148 - Yudasin, L. 49 Zaitsev, A. - Gaiduk 188 Zak, V. - Goldberg, G. 244 – Stolberg, M. 170 Zakharian, V. – Goldenov, B. 211 Zakharov, A. - Polugaevsky, L. 63 Zdanovs – Pigits 252 Zelina – Stepite 188 Zelinsky – Baranov 198 Zherdev – Baranov 97 Zhuravlev – Kapanidze 74 Zilberstein, V. – Dementiev, O. 70 Znosko-Borovsky, E. - Chigorin, M. 177 Zotov – Glebov 177 Zubarev, N. - Levenfish, G. 191 Zucs – Niedermann 74 Zvorykina, K. – Borisenko, V. 239

#### GAMES/CHESS

# **ARTUR YUSUPOV**



Artur Yusupov was ranked No. 3 in the world from 1986 to 1992, just behind the legendary Karpov and Kasparov. He has won everything there is to win in chess except for the World Championship. In recent years he has mainly worked as a chess trainer with players ranging from current World Champion Anand to local amateurs in Germany, where he resides.

Winner of the Boleslavsky Medal from FIDE (the World Chess Federation) as the best instructional chess books in the world (ahead of Garry Kasparov and Mark Dvoretsky in 2nd and 3rd place).



leslavsky

# **BOOST YOUR CHESS** THE FUNDAMENTALS

BOOST YOUR CHESS 1 continues Artur Yusupov's Fundamentals series, helping players to build their skills on solid foundations. Yusupov guides the reader towards a higher level of chess understanding using carefully selected positions and advice. This new understanding is then tested by a series of puzzles.





€ 23.99

\$ 29.95



# www.qualitychess.co.uk